
  

 

 Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 
Telephone: 0161 234 3006 
j.roney@manchester.gov.uk 
PO Box 532, Town Hall 
Extension, Manchester 
M60 2LA 

 
Tuesday, 24 January 2023 

 
Dear Councillor / Honorary Alderman, 
 
Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 1st February, 2023 
 
You are summoned to attend a meeting of the Council which will be held at 10.00 am on 
Wednesday, 1st February, 2023, in The Council Chamber, Level 2, Town Hall Extension. 
  
1.   The Lord Mayor's Special Business - The Lord Mayor's 

Special Business - New Year's Honours List   
 

 

 
2.   Lord Mayor's Special Business - We Love MCR Charity 

Rising Stars Fund   
 

 

 
3.   Interests 

To allow members an opportunity to declare any personal, 
prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest they might have in 
any items which appear on this agenda; and record any items 
from which they are precluded from voting as a result of Council 
Tax or Council rent arrears. Members with a personal interest 
should declare that at the start of the item under consideration. If 
members also have a prejudicial or disclosable pecuniary interest 
they must withdraw from the meeting during the consideration of 
the item 
 

 

 
4.   Minutes 

To submit for approval the minutes of the meeting held on 30 
November 2022. 
 

11 - 28 

 
5.   Notice of Motion - Standing up for Wythenshawe 

Council notes:- 
  
                Manchester City Council’s Executive approved their 

ambitious plans for the transformation of Wythenshawe 
Civic Centre on 18th February. These plans have been 
described as an ‘exciting and a ‘once in a generation 
opportunity’ by local people and reflect Manchester Labour’s 
ambition for Wythenshawe 

                After campaigning from local Wythenshawe Labour 
Councillors and Mike Kane MP over many years, these 
plans have been brought forward in conjunction with local 
people, and will see: 

 

Public Document Pack



Council 
 

 

         A new cultural hub with a community cinema 
         Job opportunities through office space and a new 

Enterprise Centre 
         Over 1500 low carbon homes (including genuinely 

affordable homes) 
         A new food hall, supporting day and night time 

businesses 
         A new civic square with top quality public realm 
         A new green transport hub; with EV charging and 

bike hire 
                Manchester Council with the support of Mike Kane MP 

submitted these plans to Government as part of the 
‘Levelling Up Fund’- as it met all of the publicised criteria 

  
Council further notes:- 
  
                This Council has had over £420million taken from its 

budgets since 2010, and across the country local 
Government has had £16 billion cut (which rises to over 
£40bn if you factor inflation) 

                In the Summer Leadership context Prime Minister Rishi 
Sunak boasted about reversing Treasury formulas "that 
shoved all the funding into deprived urban areas” 

                The Government did not support the Wythenshawe Civic 
bid, and like most Labour Cities in the UK did not receive 
funding in this round. 

  
Council resolves:- 
  
(1)      That Manchester’s Labour Council will always stand up for 

the residents of Wythenshawe and despite the 
Government’s failure to back Wythenshawe Civic Centre the 
Labour Council will push ahead with it’s plans and seek a 
commitment that work will begin as soon as possible. 

(2)      To call on the Government to support the plans for 
Wythenshawe through other means to help Level Up our 
city. 

(3)      To call on the Government to fund local authorities fairly, so 
local council’s have the resource to fund vital projects like 
this themselves. 

(4)      That Manchester’s Labour Councillors will always stand up 
for Wythenshawe. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Craig, Seconded by Councillor 
Newman and Supported by: Councillors White, Lynch, 
Cooley, Evans, Whiston, Judge, Rawlins, Russell and Taylor 
  

6.   Notice of Motion - Attacks on Public Service Workers 
Manchester Council sends support and solidarity to the Public 
Services Workers Rally in St Peters Sq. today. 
  

 



Council 
 

 

Thirteen years of underfunding has forced nurses, ambulance 
drivers, teachers, and civil servants on to picket lines to defend 
and protect public services. 
  
Rather than negotiating, the Government is rushing through an 
anti -strike bill that amounts to a full frontal attack on working 
people and their trade unions. 
  
Manchester's workers and families need a new Government 
which will enhance worker rights and invest in public services 
  
This Council resolves to condemn these attacks. 
   
Proposed by Councillor Chambers, Seconded by Councillor 
Wright and Supported by Councillrs Rawson, Connolly, 
Stanton, Hilal, Karney and Doswell 
  

7.   Notice of Motion - Free School Meals 
Over 42% of Manchester’s children are now living in poverty, 
according to the figures released in the Government statistics in 
2021. The highest density of these residents live in the North and 
Central of the city, however there are other areas in the South 
where the residents face the same issues. 
  
Free school meals should be available for all primary school 
children from Reception through to Year 11 and should not be 
restricted to Key stage 1 only, which is Reception, Year 1 and 
year 2. New analysis by Child Poverty Action Group (CPAG), 
based on free school meals, showed that children in poverty in 
England continue to be overlooked by government measures, 
with over 1 in 3 (800,000) children in poverty not qualifying for 
free school meals. These figures come as the cost of living crisis 
continues to worsen and cause hardship.  
  
The government must not just stand and watch, this is the time 
change is needed. The Government must stop the eligibility test 
for free school meals and not put parents and children through 
the stigma of being poor.  
  
Free school meals are only provided for those who are eligible, 
this eligibility is so minute that it leaves a huge gap to those 
children whose parents are on Universal credit and earn above 
the threshold of £616.67 per month. Children aged 7-16 are 
affected by this eligibility as a lot of these children belong to low-
income families, whose earnings are over £616.67 per month 
threshold but the household is below average income. 
  
We hear from Headteachers and school staff how children come 
into school unable to have a warm meal due to the low household 
incomes. All children should be given meals during the school day 
without any assessments of parental income. We must make sure 
each child has the nutrition required for them to be able to 

 



Council 
 

 

concentrate and work to their full potential at school. An empty 
stomach compromises the child’s learning ability, Children need 
nutritious warm meals, for the health, wellbeing and development, 
no child should have to go hungry. 
  
Manchester City Council recognised the shortfall, during 
lockdown due to coronavirus and provided free school meals in 
the holidays. The Government had not stepped in quick enough, 
and the Council had already put in the provision to support the 
families through the most difficult time.  The Council also 
supported children in vulnerable families known to the school who 
were outside the scope of free school meals but where an 
assessment had identified they required extra support in the 
holidays. 
  
Parents are currently struggling with the cost of living; they are 
unable to source heating bills and will be worried about putting 
meals on the table. They will worry about using gas or electric 
cookers and ovens due to the cost of inflation of energy bills. 
There are hardworking parents out there having to visit food 
banks to put a meal on the table. Its is heart breaking to see 
families in our city living through these times. As a Council we are 
working on this, we are asking all schools to have a named lead 
on poverty and how they can poverty proof the school day.  
  
Greater Manchester poverty action group stated in August 2022 
that the number of children in Relative poverty had increased. 
The statistics for children living in Manchester in poverty have 
gone from 35.4% 2015 up to 42% in 2021. Year after Year the 
children of this city have gone deeper into poverty. The 
government has failed these children since it has come into 
power, the number of households in poverty has risen and 
nothing has been done to address this. Now is the time the 
Government must expand the provision to free school meals for 
all children.  
  
This Council resolves:- 
  
(1)      To ask the Leader of the Council to continue to provide 

support to the most vulnerable in our city 
(2)      To request the Leader of the Council writes to Government 

to call for an extension of free school meals for all children 
and a review of eligibility criteria, which is currently at £7,400 
per annum, is undertaken, to ensure those in need do not 
miss out (such as 7–16-year-olds). The threshold is 
currently very low. 

(3)      To lobby government to extend the inflationary uplift to 
benefits in year not just next year, to help struggling families. 

  
 Proposed by Councillor Butt, Seconded by Councillor M Dar 
and Supported by  Councillors Noor, Bridges, Karney, 
Douglas, Reid, Abdullatif and Amin  



Council 
 

 

8.   Notice and Motion - The Right to Strike and Protection of 
Workers' Rights 
This Council recognises that the right of a worker to withdraw 
their labour is a fundamental and sacrosanct right which should 
not be undermined or diluted in any way.  
  
This Council notes that this Conservative Government is seeking 
to undermine the right to strike by: 
  
                Allowing the use of Agency staff during industrial disputes 
                Introducing legislation to guarantee minimum levels of 

service during strike action.  
                Allowing the increasing use of fire and rehire 
  
This Council calls for the UK Government to:- 
  
                Ban the use of Fire & Rehire by all employers in the UK 
                Ensure that the Health & Safety Executive is properly 

staffed and funded so that they can undertake workplace 
inspections unannounced. This includes the reversal of over 
£100 million pounds in cuts. 

                Support trade unions being allowed to use electronic voting 
for all elections and ballots including ballots for industrial 
action 

                Support the right of all workers to work from home from 
Day 1 for anyone who wants it after appropriate induction 
training, where practical.  

  
This Council requests Leader of the Council to write to all Greater 
Manchester MPs, urging them to oppose all attempts in 
Parliament to undermine the fundamental rights of workers, and 
those of their trade unions to fight for improved pay and 
conditions for their members. 
  
Proposed by Councillor Leech, Seconded by Councillor 
Bayunu and Supported by Councillors Johnson, Good and 
Nunney 
  

 

 
9.   Notice of Motion - Insourcing First Motion - Manchester City 

Council 
This Council notes:- 
  
                All political parties represented on this Council are 

committed to democratic public services, support the 
principle of reversing the trend of providing Council services 
indirectly through outsourcing, and are committed to 
reversing this policy.  

                Multiple public polls that show that the UK public support 
public ownership. 

                Councils across the country spend hundreds of millions of 
pounds buying in essential goods, services and expertise 

 



Council 
 

 

from the private sector each year. 
                The Public Services (Social Value) Act was introduced in 

2012. It provides a legal basis for public authorities to look 
for wider social, economic and environmental benefits when 
undertaking procurement exercises. 

                Evidence shows that insourcing public services can deliver 
lower costs, more efficiency, a public sector ethos, 
economies of scale and an enhanced level of democratic 
accountability to local residents. 

  
The Council further notes:- 
  
                That a number of high value outsourced contracts for 

Manchester City Council are due to expire in the next few 
months. 

                The council has received numerous complaints about some 
of these contracts from the workforce and their union, as 
well as residents in receipt of services. 

                A report by Unite the union highlights how  contracts are 
being badly managed, resulting in a poor service for 
residents, mistreatment of the workforce and unacceptable 
waste and expenditure for the council.  

                We have a major opportunity to rebuild the council’s 
capacity to deliver services in-house, saving money, 
improving services for residents and raising terms and 
conditions for staff.  

  
This Council believes:-  
  
                That residents are more likely to trust local councillors to 

take decisions on their behalf over and above private 
companies.  

                That public service workers and their trade unions support 
the insourcing of public services.  

                That investing in strengthening the council’s capacity, skills 
and ability to deliver services in-house will make the council 
more sustainable, innovative and effective for the long term.  

                That residents supporting their local councils to run 
services and redistribute wealth, will elect a national 
government willing to provide the financial resources to 
catalyse new social contracts and make public services 
local. 

  
This Council therefore resolves to call on its Executive to:-  
  
(1)      Run an urgent investigation into all outsourced contracts 

through the relevant scrutiny committee for the council. 
(2)      Develop and implement a full business plan for re-insourcing 

the relevant contracts. 
(3)      Immediately halt plans to commission the delivery of 

upcoming environmental retrofitting contracts and instead 



Council 
 

 

rebuild its direct labour organisation to deliver that work. 
(4)      Develop and introduce an ‘Insourcing First’ policy that makes 

an assumption that all local authority services should be 
delivered in-house by the council, unless there are strong 
countervailing reasons not to, (e.g., the need for 
independence to prevent a conflict of interest or where local 
companies or the third sector are recognised as being better 
placed to provide the service that Manchester residents 
deserve). 

(5)      Develop and introduce strong standards for tendering, bid 
evaluation and contract management for any outsourced 
contracts that are made with the council which evidences 
why this contract cannot be insourced as default and why 
any expiring contracts should not result in insourcing. 

  
Proposed by Councillor Bayunu, Seconded Councillor Good 
and Supported by Councillor Johnson, Leech and Nunney 
  

10.   Proceedings of the Executive 
To submit the minutes of the Executive on 14 December 2022 
and 18 January 2023, and in particular, to consider: 
  
Exe/23/10        Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - 

Solar Farm Purchase (Part B)  
  
Recommend to Council approval of a capital budget increase of a 
maximum of £50m funded by borrowing on an invest to save 
basis, noting that the purchase will only progress if the Council is 
successful in its submission and it can be demonstrated that there 
are sufficient revenue savings to fund the capital financing costs. 
 

29 - 52 

 
11.   Questions to Executive Members and Others under 

Procedural Rule 23 
To receive answers to any questions that councillors have raised 
in accordance with Procedural Rule 23. 
 

53 - 56 

 
12.   Scrutiny Committees 

To note the minutes of the following committees: 
  
Communities & Equalities – 6 December & 10 January 2023  
Resources & Governance – 6 December & 10 January 2023  
Health – 7 December & 11 January 2023  
Children & Young People – 7 December & 11 January 2023  
Environment & Climate Change – 8 December & 12 January 
2023  
Economy – 8 December & 12 January 2023 
 

57 - 166 

 
13.   Proceedings of Committees 

To submit for approval the minutes of the following meetings and 
consider recommendations made by the committee: 
  
Audit Committee – 29 November 2022, and in particular, to 

167 - 182 



Council 
 

 

consider: 
  
AC/22/49       Code of Corporate Governance 
  
To recommend to the Council that responsibility for approval of 
the Code of Corporate Governance is delegated to the Audit 
Committee and in doing so that Council: 
  

•      Agrees changes to the delegations to the Audit Committee 
set out in the Council's Constitution so that approval of the 
Code of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of 
Audit Committee.  

•      Agrees to delete the reference to the Code of Corporate 
Governance from the Council's Policy Framework at Article 
4 of the Council’s Constitution; and  

•      Removes Section G of Part 6 ("Manchester City Council - 
Code of Corporate Governance") from the Council's 
Constitution. 

  
  
Licensing Committee - 5 December 2022  
Planning and Highways Committee – 15 December 2022 & 19 
January 2023 (to follow) 
Health and Wellbeing Board – 25 January 2023 (to follow) 
Constitutional and Nomination Committee – 1 February 2023 (to 
be tabled) 
 

 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Joanne Roney OBE 
Chief Executive 

Information about the Council  
The Council is composed of 96 councillors with one third elected three years in four. 
Councillors are democratically accountable to residents of their ward. Their overriding duty 
is to the whole community, but they have a special duty to their constituents, including 
those who did not vote for them. 
 
Six individuals with previous long service as councillors of the city have been appointed 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester and are entitled to attend every Council 
meeting. They do not however have a vote. 
 
All councillors meet together as the Council under the chairship of the Lord Mayor of 
Manchester. There are seven meetings of the Council in each municipal year and they are 
open to the public. Here councillors decide the Council’s overall strategic policies and set 
the budget each year. 
 



Council 
 

 

Agenda, reports and minutes of all Council meetings can be found on the Council’s 
website www.manchester.gov.uk 
 
Members of the Council 
Councillors:- 
 
Ludford (Chair), Y Dar (Deputy Chair), Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, 
Shaukat Ali, Alijah, Amin, Andrews, Appleby, Baker-Smith, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, 
Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, Collins, Connolly, Cooley, Craig, Curley, M Dar, 
Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, Flanagan, Foley, Gartside, Good, Green, Grimshaw, 
Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, Hilal, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Hussain, Igbon, Ilyas, Iqbal, 
Jeavons, Johns, Johnson, T Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, 
J Lovecy, Lynch, Lyons, McHale, Midgley, Moran, Newman, Noor, Nunney, Ogunbambo, 
B Priest, H Priest, Rahman, Raikes, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, 
Richards, I Robinson, T Robinson, Rowles, Russell, Sadler, M Sharif Mahamed, Sheikh, 
Shilton Godwin, Simcock, Stanton, Stogia, Taylor, Wheeler, Whiston, White, Wills, Wilson 
and Wright 
 
Honorary Aldermen of the City of Manchester –  
Hugh Barrett, Andrew Fender, Audrey Jones JP, Paul Murphy OBE, Nilofar Siddiqi and 
Keith Whitmore. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact the meeting Clerk: 
 Andrew Woods 
 Tel: 0161 234 3011 
 Email: andrew.woods@manchester.gov.uk 
 
This agenda was issued on Tuesday, 24 January 2023 by the Governance and Scrutiny 
Support Unit, Manchester City Council, Level 2, Town Hall Extension (Library Walk 
Elevation), Manchester M60 2LA 

http://www.manchester.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Council 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 30 November 2022 
 
 
Present: 
 
The Right Worshipful, the Lord Mayor Councillor Ludford – in the Chair 
 
Councillors:  
Y Dar, Abdullatif, Akbar, Azra Ali, Ahmed Ali, Nasrin Ali, Shaukat Ali, Alijah, 
Andrews, Appleby, Bano, Bayunu, Bell, Benham, Bridges, Butt, Chambers, Chohan, 
Collins, Connolly, Cooley, Craig, Curley, M Dar, Davies, Doswell, Douglas, Evans, 
Flanagan, Foley, Gartside, Good, Green, Grimshaw, Hacking, Hassan, Hewitson, 
Hilal, Hitchen, Holt, Hughes, Hussain, Igbon, Ilyas, Iqbal, Jeavons, Johns, Johnson, 
T Judge, Kamal, Karney, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury, Leech, J Lovecy, Lynch, Lyons, 
McHale, Midgley, Moran, Newman, Noor, Nunney, Ogunbambo, B Priest, H Priest, 
Rahman, Rawlins, Rawson, Razaq, Reeves, Reid, Riasat, Richards, I Robinson, 
T Robinson, Rowles, Russell, Sadler, Shilton Godwin, Simcock, Stanton, Whiston, 
White, Wills, Wilson and Wright 
 
 
CC/22/75 The Lord Mayor's Announcements - death of former councillors 

 
The Lord Mayor informed Council of the death of former Councillors: Ken Strath, 
Chris Morris and Colin Brierley. 
 
Former Councillor Ken Strath had served as a councillor for Longsight Ward 
between 1982 – 1999 and had served as Chair of the Council for 1985-1986. 
 
Former Councillor Chris Morris had served as a councillor for Whalley Range Ward 
between 1986-1994. 
 
Former Councillor Colin Brierley had served as a councillor for Levenshulme Ward 
between 1971-1973 and Gorton North ward from 1973-1994. 
 
In memory of the former councillors, the Lord Mayor invited those present to take 
part in a minute silence.   
 
CC/22/76 The Lord Mayor's Announcements – Urgent Business 
 
The Lord Mayor announced that she had agreed to the submission of the minutes of 
the Constitutional and Nomination Committee, held on 30 November 2022. 
  
CC/22/77 The Lord Mayors Special Business – 2022 Our Year Presentation 
 
The Lord Mayor invited representatives from St Wilfred’s Primary School, 
Manchester Academy, Abraham Moss Academy and Manchester Youth Parliament 
to speak to the Council as part of the activities that have taken place throughout 
Manchester as part of 2022’s Our Year.  

Page 11

Item 4



Councillor Bridges (Executive Member for Early Years, Children and Young People) 
addressed the Council and introduced the presentation and summarised the reasons 
and preparations for the 2022 Our Year initiative and plans moving forward into the 
next year. A video was shown providing some of the highlights of the year.    
 
The Leader of the Council responded and thanked those students who had taken 
part in the presentations and those in attendance and welcomed the views 
expressed and the important points raised. 
 
(The Lord Mayor adjourned the meeting for five minutes) 
 
CC/22/78 Minutes 
 
The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2022 were approved as a correct 
record and signed by the Lord Mayor. 
 
CC/22/79 Notice of Motion - Support the Climate and Ecology Bill 
 
Councillor Nunney proposed the motion, which was seconded by Councillor 
Johnson:- 
 
This summer, the UK has witnessed the highest temperatures on record, nine 
regions of drought zones and the driest July since 1935. Alongside this, there is the 
looming danger of the cost-of-living crisis with energy prices rising fourfold and 
experts predicting that two-thirds of the UK population will be under threat of fuel 
poverty by January 2023. 
 
Our over-reliance on fossil fuels and the need for a transition to renewable energy 
has never been so clear.  
 
Humans have already caused irreversible climate change, the impacts of which are 
being felt in the UK and around the world. The global temperature has already 
increased by 1.2°C above pre-industrial levels, and the natural world has reached 
crisis point, with 28% of plants and animals threatened with extinction. 
 
Council will be aware that the UN Environment report published last month, finds that 
there is currently no credible pathway to 1.5°C in place. In tandem with this there is a 
severe biodiversity crisis. 
 
The UK is one of the most nature-depleted countries in the world. More than one in 
seven of our plants and animals face extinction, and more than 40% are in decline. If 
we fail to halt and reverse biodiversity loss by 2030, we increase the risk of further 
pandemics, rising global temperatures and loss of species. The UK needs a legally 
enforceable nature target so that, by 2030, nature is visibly and measurably on the 
path to recovery, in line with the Global Goal for Nature. 
 
This council notes that: 
 
There is a Bill that was introduced into the current UK Parliament in May 2022 - the 
Climate and Ecology Bill - which, if it becomes law, would require the development of 

Page 12

Item 4



a strategy to ensure that the UK’s environmental response is in line with the latest 
science.  
 
The Bill is the only proposed legislation before the UK Parliament that ensures a 
comprehensive approach to the joint climate and nature emergency. 
 
It would ensure that: 
 
• the Paris Agreement aim is enshrined into law to ensure that the UK does its 

full and fair share to limit the global temperature rise to 1.5°C;  
• we halt and reverse biodiversity loss by 2030 to ensure that the UK’s 

ecosystems are protected and restored; 
• the UK takes responsibility for its greenhouse gas footprint, including 

international aviation and shipping, and by accounting for consumption 
emissions related to the goods and services that are imported and consumed in 
the UK; 

• the UK takes responsibility for its ecological footprint in order to better protect 
the health and resilience of ecosystems, including along domestic and global 
supply chains; and 

• An independent, temporary Climate and Nature Assembly is set-up, 
representative of the UK population, to engage with the UK Parliament and UK 
Government to help develop the strategy. This would be setup on broadly 
similar lines to the Climate Assembly 2020 which was very successful and very 
well received on all sides of the political divide. 

 
Over 130 MPs have publicly pledged their support for the Bill, including Greater 
Manchester MPs Debbie Abrahams, Rebecca Long Bailey, Tony Lloyd and Barbara 
Keeley. Over 200 councils have vouched their backing of the Bill together with two in 
Greater Manchester.  
 
When Rishi Sunak was appointed Prime Minister, he made the disgraceful decision 
to shun COP27. It was only after intense pressure from politicians and activist 
groups that he finally gave in and turned up at the conference. This shows that with 
enough pressure from MPs and councils, even this Tory government can sometimes 
be shamed into doing the right thing. 
 
Therefore, this council resolves to:- 
 
(1) Support the Climate and Ecology Bill; 
(2) Write to Manchester MPs Mike Kane, Afzal Khan, Lucy Powell, Jeff Smith and 

Graham Stringer, letting them know that this motion has been passed, and 
urging them to sign up to support the Bill; and 

(3) Write to Zero Hour, the organisers of the cross-party campaign for the Bill, 
expressing its support (joinus@ceebill.uk). 

 
Councillor Johnson moved an amendment to the motion, which was seconded 
by Councillor Nunney and accepted by Councillor Nunney (proposer). In 
accordance with Rule of Procedure 20.3, the amendment was incorporated into 
the motion. 
 

Page 13

Item 4



Councillor Rawlins moved an amendment to the motion, which was seconded 
by Councillor Shilton-Godwin and accepted by Councillor Nunney 
(proposer). In accordance with Rule of Procedure 20.3, the amendment was 
incorporated into the motion. 
 
The amended motion was as follows: 
 
This summer, the UK has witnessed the highest temperatures on record, nine 
regions of drought zones and the driest July since 1935. Alongside this, there is the 
looming danger of the cost-of-living crisis with energy prices rising fourfold and 
experts predicting that two-thirds of the UK population will be under threat of fuel 
poverty by January 2023. 
 
Our over-reliance on fossil fuels and the need for a transition to renewable energy 
has never been so clear.  
 
Humans have already caused irreversible climate change, the impacts of which are 
being felt in the UK and around the world. The global temperature has already 
increased by 1.2°C above pre-industrial levels, and the natural world has reached 
crisis point, with 28% of plants and animals threatened with extinction. 
 
Council will be aware that the UN Environment report published last month, finds that 
there is currently no credible pathway to 1.5°C in place. In tandem with this there is a 
severe biodiversity crisis. 
 
The UK is one of the most nature-depleted countries in the world. More than one in 
seven of our plants and animals face extinction, and more than 40% are in decline. If 
we fail to halt and reverse biodiversity loss by 2030, we increase the risk of further 
pandemics, rising global temperatures and loss of species. The UK needs a legally 
enforceable nature target so that, by 2030, nature is visibly and measurably on the 
path to recovery, in line with the Global Goal for Nature. 
 
This council notes that: 
 

• There is a Bill that was introduced into the UK Parliament - the Climate and 
Ecology Bill - which, if it becomes law, would require the development of a 
strategy to ensure that the UK’s environmental response is in line with the 
latest science.  

 
• The Bill is the only proposed legislation before the UK Parliament that ensures 

a comprehensive approach to the joint climate and nature emergency. 
 

• In 2009 Manchester launched its first collective citywide action plan 
‘Manchester: A Certain Future’ 

 
• Manchester City Council declared a Climate Emergency in July 2019, setting 

a science-based target for Manchester to be zero carbon by 2038 at the 
latest.   

 

Page 14

Item 4



• In March 2020, the Council’s Executive Committee approved the Council’s 
five-year Climate Change Action Plan 2020-25, which aims to reduce the 
Council’s direct emissions by 50% and in 2022 Manchester refreshed its 
Climate Change Framework. 

 
• At COP26, Manchester City Council signed up to the Edinburgh Declaration 

on Biodiversity. 
 

• Since COP26 in November 2021, the Council produced a Biodiversity 
Strategy for the city of Manchester, which highlights that "Manchester was the 
first city in England to sign the Edinburgh Declaration – a global pledge 
registering our concern about biodiversity loss and signalling our commitment 
to tackling the twin challenges of the biodiversity and climate crises." Further 
actions on biodiversity and the natural environment have been included within 
the refresh of the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan 2020-25 (under 
Workstream 4 – Climate Adaptation, Carbon Storage & Carbon 
Sequestration), which was approved by Executive in September 2022.  

 
• At the 2022 Local Government Chronicle awards we were Highly 

Commended for our Climate Change Action Plan, and Climate Change was 
cited in our Council of the Year Award. 

 
• MCCs Council climate score card for 2021 achieved 87% scoring full marks 

for ecological emergency. 
  

• The Our Rivers Our City Strategy was shortlisted as a finalist at the 
Landscape Institute Awards 2022 

 
It would ensure that: 
 

• the Paris Agreement aim is enshrined into law to ensure that the UK does its 
full and fair share to limit the global temperature rise to 1.5°C;  

• we halt and reverse biodiversity loss by 2030 to ensure that the UK’s 
ecosystems are protected and restored; 

• the UK takes responsibility for its greenhouse gas footprint, including 
international aviation and shipping, and by accounting for consumption 
emissions related to the goods and services that are imported and consumed 
in the UK; 

• the UK takes responsibility for its ecological footprint in order to better protect 
the health and resilience of ecosystems, including along domestic and global 
supply chains; and 

• An independent, temporary Climate and Nature Assembly is set-up, 
representative of the UK population, to engage with the UK Parliament and 
UK Government to help develop the strategy. This would be setup on broadly 
similar lines to the Climate Assembly 2020 which was very successful and 
very well received on all sides of the political divide. 

 
Over 130 MPs have publicly pledged their support for the Bill, including Greater 
Manchester MPs Debbie Abrahams, Rebecca Long Bailey, Tony Lloyd and Barbara 

Page 15

Item 4



Keeley. Over 200 councils have vouched their backing of the Bill together with two in 
Greater Manchester.  
When Rishi Sunak was appointed Prime Minister, he made the disgraceful decision 
to shun COP27. It was only after intense pressure from politicians and activist 
groups that he finally gave in and turned up at the conference. This shows that with 
enough pressure from MPs and councils, even this Tory government can sometimes 
be shamed into doing the right thing. 
 
Therefore, this council resolves to:- 
 
1. Support the Climate and Ecology Bill; 
2. Write to Manchester MPs Mike Kane, Afzal Khan, Lucy Powell, Jeff Smith and 

Graham Stringer, letting them know that this motion has been passed, and 
urging them to sign up to support the Bill; and 

3. Write to Zero Hour, the organisers of the cross-party campaign for the Bill, 
expressing its support (joinus@ceebill.uk). 

 
Resolution 
  
The motion, as amended, was then put to the Council and the Lord Mayor declared it 
was carried unanimously. 
  
Decision 
  
This Council resolves to:- 
 
1. Support the Climate and Ecology Bill; 
2. Write to Manchester MPs Mike Kane, Afzal Khan, Lucy Powell, Jeff Smith and 

Graham Stringer, letting them know that this motion has been passed, and 
urging them to sign up to support the Bill; and 

3. Write to Zero Hour, the organisers of the cross-party campaign for the Bill, 
expressing its support (joinus@ceebill.uk). 

  
CC/22/80 Notice of Motion - Late night trams and a better service 
 
Councillor Good proposed the motion, which was seconded by Councillor 
Johnson:- 
 
This Council notes that since Covid shuttered the world, our city has bounced back 
in a big way. Gigs, restaurants, clubbing, and festivals have blossomed in the wake 
of the pandemic with millions flocking to Greater Manchester to pursue this 
entertainment.  
 
If you are out working, or enjoying yourself late at night, residents face a curfew for 
the tram, expensive taxis, or a risky walk home in the dark.  
 
Ella Watson, a local resident in London, successfully campaigned to get the night 
tube reinstated to increase women’s safety in the city.  The night tube is currently 
running on Friday and Saturday nights on the Central, Jubilee, Northern and Victoria 

Page 16

Item 4



lines. When it's fully operational, the Night Tube runs on Fridays and Saturdays on 
the Victoria, Jubilee, and most of the Central, Northern and Piccadilly lines.  
 
Since November 2021 the night tube continues to be successful and has surpassed 
fears that it would have limited customers. The service runs at an off peak cost.  
Concerns that there won’t be enough passengers can be compared to the later 
running airport line which is much used as the “last tram” home for many. An 
expansion to service does not mean less use and many users use a day ticket which 
runs for the whole service. A late-night level of access to Greater Manchester’s Tram 
services is the best transport option to ensure thousands of women across the 
region can get home safely in the evenings and at night.  
 
Metrolink has seen a growth in levels of service users on the tram network.  Millions 
enjoy and work as part of the City’s famous and vibrant night-time economy. Let’s 
provide a commuter service that extends beyond the 9 – 5 for our hospitality 
workers.  
 
The population of Greater Manchester is projected to rapidly increase in the coming 
years as more and more people move to our city. We must have the responsibility 
and foresight to put into practice safe and accessible public transport.  Salford City 
Council has passed a motion calling for a 3-month trial of a night tram on Eccles via 
Media City to Ashton-under-Lyne. 
 
This Council resolves to:-  
 
1. Congratulate Ella Watson on her work to restore the Night tube and help 

pursue safe late-night travel for people in Greater London. 
2. Ask Transport for Greater Manchester to run a 3 month trial of the night tram on 

the Eccles via Media City to Ashton-under-Lyne service, and to monitor its 
success.  

3. Ask the Mayor of Greater Manchester to support this trial. 
 
Resolution 
  
The motion was put to the Council and the Lord Mayor declared it lost. 
  
CC/22/81 Notice of Motion – Call an immediate general election to end the 

chaos of the Conservative Government  
 
Councillor Stogia proposed the motion, which was seconded by Councillor 
Ilyas:- 
  
This Council notes that over the last 12 years the Conservative government has 
caused immeasurable damage to the residents of Manchester and the entire United 
Kingdom including:- 
 
• The unprecedented Government public service cuts, increased costs from 

spiralling inflation, increased demand for services, higher energy costs have left 
our economy on its knees, and the vulnerable, most at need and hard-working 
residents, families and households shoulder the impact of funding shortfalls 

Page 17

Item 4



• The housing crisis leaving millions forced to live in unsafe and uninhabitable 
properties as shocking conditions are being endured by households despairing 
at the lack of action, increasing mortgage and rental payments, while younger 
generations are unable to enter the housing market; 

• The NHS struggling to cope with record demand and waiting times, social care 
services are stretched to the limit without a plan to put the health and social 
care system on a sustainable footing; 

• The justice system in crisis with court backlogs reaching unprecedented levels, 
leaving victims, witnesses and defendants waiting years for justice, with rising 
crime and fewer police; 

• The signature “levelling up agenda”, is just empty rhetoric as inequalities widen; 
• The slow progress on developing long term regulatory strategies post- Brexit 

reducing the UK’s competitiveness, productivity and openness to trade with the 
world largest trading bloc and reduced British influence in the world; 

• The misconduct in public office through a series of scandals including holding 
parties at 10 Downing Street during Covid lockdowns and the failure to deal 
with misconduct in ministerial office by senior Conservative MPs; and 

• The mismanagement of the economy, real terms reductions in salaries, the 
devaluation of sterling. 

 
This Council believes:- 
 
• The economic, political and environmental permacrisis and state of flux indicate 

that despite the attempts of four prime ministers since 2016, a succession of 
chancellors, secretaries of state, and u-turns the government has run out of 
ideas, credibility, and confidence having spectacularly failed to deliver on its 
own promises; 

• Despite the financial challenges over the last decade, Manchester Labour and 
our Council staff have worked tirelessly to challenge the government to provide 
a fairer funding settlement and ensure Manchester remains a great place to 
live, work and play, and remain ambitious for the future of the City; 

• The Conservative government is implementing a programme far removed from 
the 2019 manifesto, written before the pandemic and current economic crisis 

• The City has no confidence in the new UK Prime Minister and Government to 
act in the best interests of the citizens of Manchester and the UK; and 

• Any “difficult decisions on the public finances”  and further sacrifices by the 
British public should be subject to a new mandate that has gained public 
endorsement and constitutional recognition  

 
This Council resolves to:- 
 
1. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Chair of the LGA to request all 

local leaders who over the last 12 years have worked tirelessly for their places 
to impose maximum pressure on the government to call a general election. 

2. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to Sir Keir Starmer, Leader of Her 
Majesty’s Official Opposition; Nicola Sturgeon, Scottish First Minister; Ian 
Blackford, Leader of the SNP at Westminster and Ed Davey, Leader of the 
Liberal Democrats urging them to support any motion tabled to stop this blatant 
abuse of power. 

Page 18

Item 4



3. Ask the Leader of the Council to call on Councillors and MPs of all parties to 
put our country and our community first and demand an immediate general 
election so the public can decide on the future of Britain. 

 
Councillor Johnson moved an amendment to the motion, which was seconded 
by Councillor Nunney and accepted by Councillor Stogia (proposer). In 
accordance with Rule of Procedure 20.3, the amendment was incorporated into 
the motion. 
 
Councillor Nunney moved an amendment to the motion, which was seconded 
by Councillor Johnson and accepted by Councillor Stogia (proposer). In 
accordance with Rule of Procedure 20.3, the amendment was incorporated into 
the motion. 
 
The amended motion was as follows: 
 
This Council notes that over the last 12 years the Conservative government has 
caused immeasurable damage to the residents of Manchester and the entire United 
Kingdom including:-  
 
• The unprecedented Government public service cuts, increased costs from 

spiralling inflation, increased demand for services, higher energy costs have left 
our economy on its knees, and the vulnerable, most at need and hard-working 
residents, families and households shoulder the impact of funding shortfalls  

 
• The housing crisis leaving millions forced to live in unsafe and uninhabitable 

properties as shocking conditions are being endured by households despairing 
at the lack of action, increasing mortgage and rental payments, while younger 
generations are unable to enter the housing market;  

 
• The NHS struggling to cope with record demand and waiting times, social care 

services are stretched to the limit without a plan to put the health and social 
care system on a sustainable footing;  

 
• The justice system in crisis with court backlogs reaching unprecedented levels, 

leaving victims, witnesses and defendants waiting years for justice, with rising 
crime and fewer police;  

 
• The signature “levelling up agenda”, is just empty rhetoric as inequalities 

widen;   
 
• Similarly, the government has veered away from taking the promised actions to 

protect and restore the natural environment and has taken decisions that 
severely jeopardise even the inadequate Net Zero-by-2050 target. 

 
• The slow progress on developing long term regulatory strategies post- Brexit 

reducing the UK’s competitiveness, productivity and openness to trade with the 
world largest trading bloc and reduced British influence in the world;  

 

Page 19

Item 4



• The misconduct in public office through a series of scandals including holding 
parties at 10 Downing Street during Covid lockdowns and the failure to deal 
with misconduct in ministerial office by senior Conservative MPs; and  

 
• The mismanagement of the economy, real terms reductions in salaries, the 

devaluation of sterling.  
 
This Council believes:-  
 
• The economic, political and environmental permacrisis and state of flux indicate 

that despite the attempts of four prime ministers since 2016, a succession of 
chancellors, secretaries of state, and u-turns the government has run out of 
ideas, credibility, and confidence having spectacularly failed to deliver on its 
own promises;  

 
• Despite the financial challenges over the last decade, Manchester Labour and 

our Council staff have worked tirelessly to challenge the government to provide 
a fairer funding settlement and ensure Manchester remains a great place to 
live, work and play, and remain ambitious for the future of the City;  

 
• The Conservative government is implementing a programme far removed from 

the 2019 manifesto, written before the pandemic and current economic crisis 
 
1. Most gravely, this programme puts at risk progress towards mitigating the 

effects of the Climate Crisis and safeguarding biodiversity and as such runs 
counter to this Council’s own urgent priorities in this regard; 

 
• The City has no confidence in the new UK Prime Minister and Government to 

act in the best interests of the citizens of Manchester and the UK; and 
 
• Any “difficult decisions on the public finances” and further sacrifices by the 

British public should be subject to a new mandate that has gained public 
endorsement and constitutional recognition 

 
This Council resolves to:- 
 
1. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Chair of the LGA to request all 

local leaders who over the last 12 years have worked tirelessly for their places 
to impose maximum pressure on the government to call a general election. 

 
2. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to Sir Keir Starmer, Leader of Her 

Majesty’s Official Opposition; Nicola Sturgeon, Scottish First Minister; Ian 
Blackford, Leader of the SNP at Westminster and Ed Davey, Leader of the 
Liberal Democrats and Carla Denyer and Adrian Ramsay, co-leaders of the 
Green Party of England and Wales urging them to support any motion tabled 
to stop this blatant abuse of power.  

 
3. Ask the Leader of the Council to call on Councillors and MPs of all parties to 

put our country and our community first and demand an immediate general 
election so the public can decide on the future of Britain.  

Page 20

Item 4



Resolution 
  
The motion, as amended, was then put to the Council and the Lord Mayor declared it 
was carried unanimously. 
  
Decision 
 
This Council resolves to:- 
 
1. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to the Chair of the LGA to request all 

local leaders who over the last 12 years have worked tirelessly for their places 
to impose maximum pressure on the government to call a general election. 

 
2. Ask the Leader of the Council to write to Sir Keir Starmer, Leader of Her 

Majesty’s Official Opposition; Nicola Sturgeon, Scottish First Minister; Ian 
Blackford, Leader of the SNP at Westminster and Ed Davey, Leader of the 
Liberal Democrats and Carla Denyer and Adrian Ramsay, co-leaders of the 
Green Party of England and Wales urging them to support any motion tabled 
to stop this blatant abuse of power.  

 
3. Ask the Leader of the Council to call on Councillors and MPs of all parties to 

put our country and our community first and demand an immediate general 
election so the public can decide on the future of Britain.  

 
(The Lord Mayor adjourned the meeting for ten minutes) 
 
CC/22/82  Proceedings of the Executive 
 
The proceedings of the Executive on 19 October and 16 November 2022 were 
submitted. The Council was asked to give particular consideration to the following 
recommendations:- 
  

Exe/22/83     Factory International 
  

To recommend that the Council approve the following approve a Capital 
Budget increase for Factory International of £25.2m funded by:  

 
• £10m from the Council’s capital scheme inflation provision  
• £15.2m to be met from borrowing 

 
This will increase the total capital budget for the construction of Factory 
International from £185.6m to £210.8m  

 
• Recommend to Council to underwrite the £7.8m increased costs of 
Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment (FFE) of Factory International from capital 
receipts and note that the venue will not be able to operate without this 
investment to enable the equipment to be in place.  

 
Exe/22/95        Capital Programme Update 

  

Page 21

Item 4



To recommend that Council approve the following changes to Manchester 
City Council’s capital programme:- 

  
•  Growth and Development - Back of Ancoats Mobility Hub. A capital budget 
virement of £3.739m from the Inflation Budget. 
  

Decisions 
  
1. The Council approves the following changes the Capital Budget increase for 

Factory International of £25.2m funded by:  
 

• £10m from the Council’s capital scheme inflation provision  
• £15.2m to be met from borrowing 

 
This will increase the total capital budget for the construction of Factory 
International from £185.6m to £210.8m  

 
2. The Council agrees to underwrite the £7.8m increased costs of Furniture, 

Fixtures and Equipment (FFE) of Factory International from capital receipts and 
note that the venue will not be able to operate without this investment to enable 
the equipment to be in place. 

 
3. The Council approves the following changes to the Manchester City Council’s 

Capital Programme: 
 
•  Growth and Development - Back of Ancoats Mobility Hub. A capital budget 
virement of £3.739m from the Inflation Budget. 
 

CC/22/83 Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural 
Rule 23 

 
The City Solicitor advised the Council that in the absence of Councillor Abdullatif, a 
written response would be provided by Councillor Rawlins to the two questions 
submitted regarding: 
1. Work on tackling air pollution across the city and in particular Ardwick where 

poor air quality exceeds the guidance from the World health Organisation.  
2. The importance of local action on Climate Crisis and the work of the Ardwick 

Climate Action Group on activities held on 2 October 2022. 
  
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Doswell regarding the work 
to address littering, fly-tipping and anti-social behaviour in Fallowfield and the 
progress of the action plan produced involving council department and partners. 
  
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Doswell regarding the 
provision of bins with a larger capacity for properties with a larger occupancy. 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Reid regarding action 
being taken to ensure social and private rented housing in Manchester are damp and 
mould free to protect tenant’s health and wellbeing. 
  

Page 22

Item 4



Councillor Robinson responded to a question from Councillor Green regarding the 
Council response on the Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust following the 
issues raised from the television documentary on Edenfield Centre, Prestwich. 
  
The Lord Mayor advised the Council that Councillor Rahman was not present, and 
Councillor Doswell would receive a written response to the question submitted 
concerning what the council is doing to address violent crime and improve street 
safety, especially for young women at night, in Fallowfield. 
  
Councillor Robinson responded to a question from Councillor Wills regarding 
progress being made in Manchester to fulfil its ambition as a Fast-Track City that will 
end new HIV infections by 2030. 
  
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor I Robinson regarding 
support for the restoration of car parks located at Kylemore Way and Falconwood 
Way 
  
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
Council’s Housing Strategy to ensure tenants are protected from damp and mould in 
social housing and private rented properties.  
  
Councillor Craig responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
deadline for the submission of amendment to motions made to Council. 
  
Councillor Midgley responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
Council decision on the Manchester Windrush and Deportations motion considered 
in October 2022. 
  
Councillor Craig responded to a question from Councillor Johnson regarding the 
Council decision on the Support Fair Votes Now motion considered in October 2022. 
 
Councillor Akbar responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding 
consideration of charities discretionary rates relief. 
 
The Lord Mayor advised the Council that Councillor Rahman was not present, and 
Councillor Leech would receive a written response to the question submitted 
concerning the publication of crime statistics for Greater Manchester. 
 
Councillor Igbon responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding gully 
cleaning on Cavendish Road and Burton Road when vehicles are parked preventing 
access to the gully. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding Tree 
Preservation Order request refusals due to the tree not being appropriately 
maintained. 
 
Councillor White responded to a question from Councillor Leech regarding a review 
of procedures by Northwards Housing for the treatment of mould and damp within 
properties to ensure the protection of health and wellbeing of tenants. 
 

Page 23

Item 4



The Lord Mayor advised the Council that Councillor Rahman was not present, and 
Councillor M Dar would receive a written response to the question submitted 
concerning parcel theft from communal areas within apartment buildings. 
 
Councillor Rawlins responded to a question from Councillor Good regarding the 
replacement of boarding on Old Mill Street. 
 
The Lord Mayor advised the Council that Councillor Rahman was not present, and 
Councillor Good would receive a written response to the question submitted 
concerning the condition of CCTV cameras managed by the Council.  
  
CC/22/84 Scrutiny Committee Minutes 
 
The minutes of the following Scrutiny Committee meetings were submitted: 
•                Communities an Equalities – 11 October and 8 November 2022 
•                Resources and Governance – 11 October and 8 November 2022 
•                Health – 12 October and 9 November 2022 
•                Children and Young People – 12 October and 9 November 2022 
•                Environment and Climate Change – 13 October and 10 November 2022 
•                Economy – 13 October and 10 November 2022 
  
Decision 
  
To receive those minutes submitted. 
 
CC/22/85 Proceedings of Committees 
 
The minutes of the following meetings were submitted: 
  
•                Audit – 18 October 2022 
• Personnel Committee – 19 October 2022 
•                Planning and Highways – 20 October and 17 November 2022 
• Health and Wellbeing Board – 2 November 2022 
• Standards Committee – 3 November 2022 
•                Constitutional and Nomination – 30 November 2022 
 
The Council was asked to give particular consideration to, the following 
recommendations from the minutes of the Constitution and Nomination Committee: 
  

CN/22/18 Establishment of a Greater Manchester Clean Air Joint 
Scrutiny Committee 

       
The Council is requested to agree the appointment of Councillor Shilton-
Godwin as the Council’s representative to the Joint Scrutiny Committee.         

 
CN/22/19 Appointments to Council Committees 

 
The Council is requested to approve the following changes to the membership 
of Council Committees and other appointments: 

Page 24

Item 4



 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
To appoint Canon Susie Mapledoram as a Co-opted Member of the Children 
and Young People Scrutiny Committee (as the Representative of the Diocese 
of Manchester). This is a permanent appointment to a vacant post, from the 
date of the Council meeting (30 November 2022). 
 
To appoint Councillor Iqbal to the post of Lead Member Post for 
Intergenerational Issues. 
 
To remove Councillor Sadler as a Council representative from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
CN/22/20 Constitution of the Council 
 
To recommend Council to agree to the changes to the Council Constitution, 
set out below and detailed within the report and in the amended version of the 
Constitution submitted: 

 
1. Adopt, subject to recommendations 3 and 4 below, the revised Sections of 

the Constitution of the Council, namely:  
 

a) Part 1 
b) Part 2 
c) Part 3: Sections A, B, C and F 
d) Part 4: Sections A, B, E and F  
e) Part 5: Sections B, D (to be redesignated as C) and E (to be 

redesignated as D) and in doing so delete the former Section C 
f) Part 6: Sections D and F 
g) Part 7 
h) Part 8 

 
(The Council considered the report on the Constitution of the Council – Minute 
Number CC/22/88 - below) 

 
Decisions 
  
1.         To receive those minutes submitted. 
 
2. To agree the appointment of Councillor Shilton-Godwin as the Council’s 

representative to the Greater Manchester Clean Air Joint Scrutiny 
Committee 

 

Committee Member to be added Member to be removed 
Planning and 
Highways Committee 

 
 

Councillor Richards 

Licensing Committee Councillor Lyons  
Licensing and 
Appeals Committee 

Councillor Lyons  

Page 25

Item 4



3.         To approve the changes in appointments to Committees of the Council, as 
detailed below. 

Committee Member to be added Member to be removed 
Planning and 
Highways Committee 

 
 

Councillor Richards 

Licensing Committee Councillor Lyons  
Licensing and 
Appeals Committee 

Councillor Lyons  

 
4. To appoint Canon Susie Mapledoram as a Co-opted Member of the Children 

and Young People Scrutiny Committee (as the Representative of the Diocese 
of Manchester). This is a permanent appointment to a vacant post, from the 
date of the Council meeting (30 November 2022). 
 

5. To appoint Councillor Iqbal to the post of Lead Member Post for 
Intergenerational Issues 
 

6. To remove Councillor Sadler as a Council representative from the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority Overview and Scrutiny Committee.  

 
CC/22/86 Establishment of a Greater Manchester Joint Clean Air Scrutiny 

Committee 
 

Consideration was given to a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer and City Solicitor seeking the Council to agree the establishment of a 
Greater Manchester Joint Scrutiny Committee to scrutinise decisions of the Clean Air 
Charging Authorities Committee and the Clean Air Administration Committee and to 
nominate and agree a representative (and substitute) from Manchester City Council 
to sit on the Joint Scrutiny Committee. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To agree to the establishment of a Greater Manchester Clean Air Joint Scrutiny 

Committee.  
 

2. To agree the Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee, as set out in Appendix 
A of the report submitted.  

 
3. To agree the appointment of Councillor Shilton-Godwin as Manchester City 

Council’s member (recommended by the Constitutional and Nomination 
Committee). 

 
CC/22/87 Constitution of the Council 
 
Consideration was given to a report of the City Solicitor seeking approval of the Council 
to adopt proposed amendments to the Constitution of the Council. 
 
The Council was requested to: 
 

Page 26

Item 4



1. Adopt, subject to recommendations 3 and 4 below, the attached revised Sections 
of the Constitution of the Council, namely:  

 
a) Part 1  
b) Part 2  
c) Part 3: Sections A, B, C and F  
d) Part 4: Sections A, B, E and F  
e) Part 5: Sections B, D (to be redesignated as C) and E (to be redesignated 

as D) and in doing so delete the former Section C  
f) Part 6: Sections D and F  
g) Part 7  
h) Part 8  
 

2. Re-adopt the remainder of the Constitution.  
 
3.   Note in relation to Part 3 of the Constitution that responsibility for the discharge of 

executive functions and the delegation of such responsibility rests with the Leader 
of the Council and that the recommended delegations of executive functions set 
out in Part 3 (Sections A, B and F) are for the information of the Council only.  

 
4.   Note that, as the Licensing Committee has statutory responsibility for the discharge 

and delegation of certain licensing authority functions, the proposed delegations 
of such functions set out in Part 3 (Sections A, C and F) will require the approval 
of the Licensing Committee and to that extent are for the information of the Council 
only. 

 
Decisions 
 
1.   To adopt, subject to decisions 3 and 4 below, the attached revised Sections of 

the Constitution of the Council, namely:  
 

a) Part 1  
b) Part 2  
c) Part 3: Sections A, B, C and F  
d) Part 4: Sections A, B, E and F  
e) Part 5: Sections B, D (to be redesignated as C) and E (to be redesignated 

as D) and in doing so delete the former Section C  
f) Part 6: Sections D and F  
g) Part 7  
h) Part 8  
 

2.   To re-adopt the remainder of the Constitution. 
 
3.   To note in relation to Part 3 of the Constitution that responsibility for the 

discharge of executive functions and the delegation of such responsibility rests 
with the Leader of the Council and that the recommended delegations of 
executive functions set out in Part 3 (Sections A, B and F) are for the information 
of the Council only.  

 

Page 27

Item 4



4.   To note that, as the Licensing Committee has statutory responsibility for the 
discharge and delegation of certain licensing authority functions, the proposed 
delegations of such functions set out in Part 3 (Sections A, C and F) will require 
the approval of the Licensing Committee and to that extent are for the 
information of the Council only. 

 
CC/22/88  Key Decisions Report 
 
The Council considered the report of the City Solicitor on key decisions that have 
been taken in accordance with the urgency provisions in the Council’s Constitution. 
 
Decision  
 
To note the report. 
  

Page 28

Item 4



Executive 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 14 December 2022 
 
 
Present: Councillor Craig (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges, Hacking, Midgley, Rahman, T Robinson and White 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Ahmed Ali, Collins, Foley, Leech, Lynch and Stanton 
 
Apologies: Councillor Igbon, Rawlins, Butt, Douglas and Johnson 
 
Also present: Councillor M Dar (Ancoats and Beswick Ward Councillor)   
 
Exe/22/105 Minutes  
 
Decision 

  
The Executive approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 16 
November 2022. 
 
Exe/22/106 Delegation of Executive Functions to the Executive and Council 

Officers  
 
The Executive considered  a report of the City Solicitor, which sought Executive to 
note the decision of the Leader of the Council to delegate all of the Council’s 
executive functions to the Executive and endorse the decision of the Leader of the 
Council to arrange for the discharge of all of the Council’s executive functions 
recorded at Part 3, Sections A and F of the Council’s November 2022 Constitution. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)       Notes the decision of the Leader of the Council to exercise the power under 

Section 9E(2) of the Local Government Act 2000 to delegate the discharge of 
all of the Council’s executive functions to the Executive; 

  
(2)       Notes and endorses the decision of the Leader of the Council to delegate to 

officers the discharge of all of the Council’s executive functions recorded at 
Part 3, Sections A and F of the Council’s November 2022 Constitution as set 
out in the revised versions of those sections presented to Council at its 
meeting on 30 November 2022; and 

  
(3)       In relation to the Scheme of Delegation to Officers set out in Part 3, Section F 

of the Council’s November 2022 Constitution, note that such delegations of 
executive functions include those functions that are designated as “Executive 

Page 29

Item 10



Functions” and those functions that are designated as “General Functions” 
insofar as these are executive functions. 

  
Exe/22/107 Our Manchester Progress Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update 
on key areas of progress against the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 
which reset Manchester’s priorities for the next five years to ensure the Council could 
still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the Our Manchester Strategy 2016 – 2025. 
  
The Executive Member for Children, Young People and Families reported that 
Manchester had been accepted by UNICEF UK onto their Child Friendly City 
programme. It was hoped in the coming months this would culminate with 
Manchester being internationally recognised as a child friendly city by the 
organisation.    In order to be recognised the city would need to show evidence of 
sustainable progress in six different ‘badges’ - areas that children and young people 
think Manchester should prioritise to help make the city more child-friendly.  Progress 
on this would be closely monitored by an independent panel of experts in human 
rights, child well-being and public services, as well as an advisory board of local 
children and young people. 
  
The Deputy Leader reported that responses to a consultation asking residents for 
their views on the Council’s updated Anti-Poverty strategy were currently being 
analysed.  With poverty remaining a significant problem across the city, the reworked 
strategy took account of the impacts of the health and economic challenges which 
highlight and exacerbate poverty. Whereas previously the focus was on families with 
children, this has been expanded to include all households.              The proposed 
strategy, which reflects input from earlier consultations with organisations and 
residents, would help tackle poverty over the next five years. 
  
The Executive Member for Growth and Development reported that building works in 
Newton Heath to deliver 69 zero and low carbon social homes on Council-owned 
land had reached their highest point, as some of the new homes near completion.  
The Silk Street project was bringing a long-term brownfield site back into use and 
already 20 of the houses had been built with solar panels fitted and were currently 
receiving the finishing touches. Each of the homes would be zero carbon on 
completion.  The first completions were expected in spring next year with the first 
residents moving in shortly afterwards. 
  
Councillor Leech enquired as to whether discussions were taking place between the 
Council and developers in regards to the layout and orientation of the properties on 
new development sites to enable all properties to benefit from solar power. 
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) reported that earlier this month Manchester marked 
the fifth anniversary of becoming a UNESCO City of Literature. Over the last five 
years, the Council along with the city’s universities and literary community had 
worked together to deliver a programme of events showcasing Mancunian talent and 
giving Manchester people the chance to take part in, and benefit from, being a City of 
Literature.  In that time the Manchester City of Literature Charity had raised more 
than £200,000 to support literature in – and from – the city.   

Page 30

Item 10



 Decision 

  
The Executive note the report. 
 
Exe/22/108 Revenue Budget Monitoring  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which outlined the projected outturn position for 2022/23, based on the latest 
expenditure and income activity and future projections. 
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources advised that the report identified 
a forecast overspend of £7.6m for 2022/23, based on activity to date and projected 
trends in income and expenditure, and included the ongoing financial implications of 
COVID-19, government funding confirmed to date and the impact of inflation and the 
agreed pay award on the financial position.   
  
The above was a substantial change from the position reported to Executive in 
September 2022, resulting in an improvement of £12.5m since the last report to 
Executive. 
  
The previous forecast included the provisional impact of the higher pay offer for local 
government and was during an extremely volatile period for energy prices, predating 
the additional government support announced for the public sector.  Since then the 
actual impact of the pay award has been costed, taking into account the current level 
of vacancies reducing the cost by £2.2m to £7.3m.  The decision to reverse the 
employer 1% national insurance increase had also resulted in savings of £0.6m.  
Energy prices had settled at a lower level along with some government compensation 
together (saving £3m) and price inflation had been mitigated where possible, 
reducing the budget requirement by £2.7m to £5.4m. These amounted to a £8.5m 
reduction in the inflation overspend. This was coupled with some improvements in 
the departmental position, many of which are one off and only impact the 2022/23 
financial year.   
  
It was positive that the main demand led services of Adults, Children’s and 
Homelessness were underspending or breakeven, which put the Council in a better 
position than many other councils and reflected the investment in prevention 
strategies over the last few years.   
  
Whilst the report focused on 2022/23, the implications of COVID-19 and record levels 
of inflation on the Council’s cost base would have a significant impact on the 
Council’s finances for a number of years. With the scale of funding pressures and 
future resource constraints, it was  therefore vital that the Council continued with its 
programme of innovation and reform and developed its operating model to help 
tackle these challenges and keep the Council’s finances stable and sustainable. A 
programme of savings totalling £42m had been developed and reported to scrutiny 
committees in November 2022.   
  
Officers continued to work to reduce the overspend through identifying in year 
efficiencies and working with suppliers to reduce and mitigate inflation requirements 
and progress would be reported back to Executive in February 2023. 

Page 31

Item 10



 Councillor Leech welcomed the work of Officers in reducing inflationary pressures on 
the Council’s Revenue Budget and sought clarification of similar work was being 
undertaken to reduce inflationary pressures associated to the Council’s Capital 
Programme.  He also sought confirmation as to whether the Council would receive a 
rebate in relation to the additional profit made by the Greater Manchester Waste 
Disposal Authority (GMWDA) through the incineration of waste.  The Deputy Chief 
Executive and City Treasurer gave assurances that the Officers were working on 
reducing the inflationary pressures associated to the Council’s Capital Programme 
and that there would likely be an expected financial return from the GMWDA but 
discussions were still ongoing at the moment so no further detail could be provided. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Note the global revenue monitoring report and forecast outturn position which is 

showing a £7.6m overspend. 
  
(2)      Approve the release of reserve funding to support residents through the Cost of 

Living as detailed in paragraph 2.18 of the report. 
  
(3)      Approve the use of unbudgeted external grant funding as detailed in paragraph 

3.2 of the report. 
  
(4)      Approve the request for contingency funding as detailed in paragraph para 3.3 of 

the report. 
  
(5)      Approve the allocation of budgets to fund the pay award as detailed in 

paragraph 3.4, electricity increases reported in paragraph 3.5 and price inflation 
outlined in paragraph 3.6 of the report. 

 
Exe/22/109 Capital Programme Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which informed Members of requests to increase the capital programme, sought 
approval for those schemes that could be approved under authority delegated to the 
Executive. 
  
The proposals which only required Executive approval were those which were funded 
by the use of external resources, use of capital receipts, use of reserves below 
£10.0m, where the proposal could be funded from existing revenue budgets or where 
the use of borrowing on a spend to save basis is required.  The following proposals 
required Executive approval for changes to the City Council’s capital programme:- 
  

•                Public Sector Housing – Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme (RSAP) 
Bring Bedsits Back in to Use.  A capital budget increase of £0.350m in 2023/24 
was requested, funded by £0.141m Government Grant and £0.209m RCCO 
from HRA Reserve to refurbish and bring back into use 11 of bedsits to be 
utilised as Move On homes. 

  

Page 32

Item 10



•                Growth and Development - Land at Withington Road.  A capital budget 
decrease of £0.160m was requested in 2022/23 and approval of a 
corresponding transfer of £0.160m to the revenue budget, funded by Capital 
Fund to remove a restrictive covenant currently in favour of Barnardo’s 
(previously The Tatton Estate), that potentially limits or prevents development 
that could take place. 

  

•                Highways Services - Manchester to Chorlton Cycleway Area 3A and 3B.  A 
capital budget increase of £2.035m is requested, funded by External 
Contribution to deliver a significant improvement in the provision of 
infrastructure for cyclists, whilst also improving the walking environment through 
making junctions safer to cross and improving the public realm. 

  
Councillor Leech queried whether the land at Withington Road would contain any 
affordable Housing in its development.  The Executive Member for Finance and 
Resources advise that it was too early to determine what would be developed on 
Withington Road however the Council’s ambitions for the city was to build affordable 
housing for Manchester residents and once the restricted covenant was removed 
discussions could take place as to what could be delivered on the land. 
  
The report highlighted that if the recommendations in the report were approved the 
General Fund capital budget would increase by £2.225m across financial years which 
would also result in an increase in the prudential indicator for Capital Expenditure in 
corresponding years. 
  
There had also been increases to the programme totalling £0.150m as a result of 
delegated approvals since the previous report to the Executive on 16 November 
2022. The increase related to Highfield Country Park S106. The scheme would utilise 
the S106 for the benefit of local residents in improving the services within the vicinity 
of Highfield Country Park in the ward of Levenshulme as set out within the general 
obligations of the agreement.  
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Approve the following changes to the Council’s capital programme: 
  

•                Public Sector Housing – Rough Sleepers Accommodation Programme 
(RSAP) - Bring Bedsits Back in to Use. A capital budget increase of 
£0.350m, funded by £0.141m Government Grant and £0.209m RCCO 
from HRA Reserve. 

  

•                Growth and Development - Land at Withington Road. A capital budget 
decrease of £0.160m and a corresponding transfer of £0.160m to the 
revenue budget, funded by Capital Fund. 

  

•                Highways Services - Manchester to Chorlton Cycleway Area 3A & 3B. A 
capital budget increase of £2.035m, funded by External Contribution. 

  

Page 33

Item 10



(2)       Note the increases to the programme of £0.150m as a result of delegated 
approvals. 

 
Exe/22/110 Manchester Piccadilly Strategic Regeneration Framework 

Addendum: East Village Central Framework  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director Growth and 
Development), which provided details of a draft framework for the East Village area 
of the Manchester Piccadilly Strategic Regeneration Framework (SRF) and sought 
endorsement in principle of the draft East Village Central Framework and sought 
agreement for a public consultation exercise to be undertaken on the draft East 
Village Central Framework. 
  
The Executive Member for Growth and Development report that the draft Framework 
would help to guide development in a way that reflected the physical and locational 
characteristics, meet the objectives and principles within the Manchester Piccadilly 
SRF, complement developments in adjacent neighbourhoods  and support future 
growth.  
  
The East Village area included 2 primary landowners. The draft framework had been 
produced in order to ensure that the area was developed in an appropriate and 
holistic manner in the future across all plots within the site 

  
Furtherrmore the draft Framework was an addendum to the Manchester Piccadilly 
SRF. It represented a major strategic opportunity capable of delivering extensive and 
comprehensive redevelopment, close to a major transport hub. It had been prepared 
in order to shape and realise the city’s ambitions to regenerate and transform the 
neighbourhood surrounding Piccadilly Station, with connected open spaces and 
public realm and a distinctive sense of place. The successful delivery of the draft 
framework would create a new vibrant, commercially-led, mixed use neighbourhood 
and community, boosting growth and new jobs. The development would be highly 
connected, functionally and physically, to the wider city centre and adjoining 
regeneration priority areas and will complement the arrival of HS2 and Norther 
Powerhouse Rail. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)       Endorse in principle, the proposals set out in the draft East Village Central 

Framework which is an addendum to the Manchester Piccadilly Strategic 
Regeneration Framework (SRF); 

  
(2)       Request the Chief Executive undertake a public consultation exercise on the 

draft East Village Central Framework with local residents, businesses and 
other stakeholder; and  

  
(3)       Agree that a further report be brought forward, following the public 

consultation exercise, for consideration by the Executive which sets out the 
comments received. 

Page 34

Item 10



Exe/22/111 Manchester Science Park (MSP) Strategic Regeneration 
Framework Addendum November 2022  

 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director Growth and 
Development), which provided details of a draft addendum to the Strategic 
Regeneration Framework (SRF) for Manchester Science Park (MSP).   It also 
updated the development principles across the SRF area to reflect the Council’s 
target to be net zero carbon by 2035. 
  
The Executive Member for Growth and Development advised that the addendum 
responded to the opportunity that had arisen for a proposed relocation of an 
internationally significant health research resource to Manchester Science Park. It 
related specifically to a site currently occupied by the Greenheys Building and 
adjacent car park, located within and to the north-west of the framework area. This 
latest update reflected increased ambitions for the area, following on from the 
ongoing success of MSP in establishing a world-class science park. The key 
principles underpinning the March 2014 MSP SRF, and the subsequent 2018 update, 
were carried forward into the 2022 addendum, and had been updated to provide a 
new emphasis on climate change, biodiversity, green and blue infrastructure.   
  
It was noted that assets within Manchester Science Park and the wider Oxford Road 
Corridor area were vital to capture the commercial potential of research and 
innovation.  The proposal would deliver several wider strategic and economic 
benefits including supporting academic advances in the Life Sciences sector; 
supporting growth in number of SMEs and start-ups in the city; driving clustering and 
agglomeration; building on Manchester’s research strengths; raising Manchester’s 
international profile; and creating new talent and graduate employment opportunities. 
It also represented an opportunity for the city to build upon the further development of 
its network of alliances and partnerships throughout the world.   
  
Decisions 
 

The Executive:- 
  
(1)       Approve in principle the draft Manchester Science Park SRF Addendum; 
  
(2)       Request the Strategic Director to undertake a public consultation exercise on 

the addendum with local stakeholders;    
  
(3)       Agree that a further report be brought back to the Executive, following the 

public consultation exercise, setting out comments received. 
  
Exe/22/112 Former Central Retail Park - Updated Strategic Regeneration 

Framework  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director Growth and 
Development), which provided details an updated Strategic Regeneration Framework 
(SRF) for the former Central Retail Park site, and sought approval of the Framework 
in principle, subject to public consultation. 
  

Page 35

Item 10



The Leader reported that the redevelopment of the Former Central Retail Park was a 
long-standing strategic priority for the city and identified for development in previous 
planning documents, including the Ancoats and New Islington Neighbourhood 
Development Framework (2016) and Development Frameworks prepared for the 
Central Retail Park site in 2015 and more recently in 2020. 
  
The 2020 Development Framework had now been reviewed to reflect the current 
market position and positively respond to the latest market requirements to provide 
purpose-built offices and high-quality facilities for workers.  
  
A new Strategic Regeneration Framework had been produced, which built on many 
of the key design principles set out in the in the 2020 Framework, to provide a 
comprehensive approach to the future redevelopment of the site, supporting the 
Council’s aspirations to drive economic growth through the provision of new high-
quality Grade A offices to attract new companies to Manchester, surrounded by 
attractive and accessible public realm.   
  
The updated SRF also responded to a potential interest from the Government 
Property Agency (GPA) to locate government offices on the site and work 
collaboratively with the Council to help unlock this development opportunity. Were 
GPA to commit to offices at the Former Central Retail Park, this would provide the 
catalyst to deliver the masterplan and provide socio-economic benefits, including new 
high-quality jobs. 
  
Councillor M Dar addressed the Committee as Ward Councillor for Ancoats and 
Beswick.  He welcome the revised SRF proposals as it took on board the concerns of 
the Ward Councillors and residents of Ancoats and Beswick in relation to the original 
SF and he welcomed the public consultation on the new proposals. 
  
Councillor Leech welcomed the revised SRF proposals.  He sought clarification as to 
whether the propose open space would be classified as a park and whether it would 
be publicly maintained by the Council.  He also sought assurance that should the 
proposals in relation to GPA not come to fruition would there still be a commitment to 
include green space in the proposals.  The Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) confirmed that the proposed open space would be public space but it 
was not possible at the present moment to determine the management arrangements 
for this space.  The site was a key strategic location for the city that had significant 
interest from third parties and as such the Council was confident there would be 
demand for the site including accessible public realm. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Approve in principle the proposals set out in the draft updated Former Central 

Retail Park Strategic Regeneration Framework (SRF). 
  
(2)      Request the Strategic Director to undertake a public consultation exercise on the 

draft updated Former Central Retail Park Strategic Regeneration Framework 
(SRF); with local residents, businesses and other stakeholders. 

Page 36

Item 10



  
(3)      Agree that a further report be brought back to the Executive, following the public 

consultation exercise, setting out comments received. 
 
Exe/22/113 Local Nature Reserve Declaration: Kenworthy Woods  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which sought approval to declare Kenworthy Woods as a Local 
Nature Reserve (LNR). 
  
The Executive Member for Environment reported that the Council’s new Biodiversity 
Strategy had, amongst others an objective to protect and recover biodiversity. One of 
the key ways to achieve this objective was to increase the number of Local Nature 
Reserves in Manchester.  There were currently eight Local Nature Reserves in 
Manchester all of which had benefitted from the designation through increased public 
usage by local and regional visitors. These sites are nationally recognised by Natural 
England and other nature conservation organisations such as Lancashire Wildlife 
Trust 
  
The designation of LNR status for Kenworthy Woods would help to establish the 
long-term maintenance and raise the profile of the site.  The designation would also 
offer opportunities for funding as it reinforced Manchester’s commitment to nature 
conservation and recreation. The location of the proposed LNR within the Mersey 
Valley also meant that the designation supported the ambition set out across a range 
of objectives in the City’s Our River Our City Strategy, providing increased 
opportunity for increased practical action, community engagement and awareness 
raising. Natural England had confirmed their informal support for the declaration of 
LNR status for the site. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)       To declare the area shown outlined on the “Location map of Kenworthy 

Woods” (Appendix 1) as the Kenworthy Woods Local Nature Reserve. 
  
(2)       Note officers are to consult formally with Natural England on the declaration. 
  
(3)       To instruct the City Solicitor (subject to the above) to prepare the formal 

declaration document as necessary. 
 
Exe/22/114 Draft Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which sought approval of the draft Manchester Electric Vehicle 
Charging Strategy. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport advised that the 
Government’s Taking Charge Strategy published earlier this year sought an 
obligation on local authorities to develop and implement local charging strategies to 

Page 37

Item 10



consider how to best assist in the delivery of an accessible public charging network. 
The Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy (MEVCS) had been developed to 
meet this requirement and to set out the Council’s main focus for the provision of EV 
charging infrastructure within the city.   
  
The main focus of the strategy was in relation to public charging although it did note 
that the Council also had a role to play in transitioning its own vehicle fleet, 
encouraging growth through planning requirements for new developments and in 
generally raising awareness as well. 
  
It was proposed that the council would assist in facilitating the installation of supplier 
owned, funded (possibly utilising existing grant funding opportunities), maintained 
and operated EV charging infrastructure within its own car parks and at facilities with 
parking such as leisure centres, parks, libraries, etc. These were proposed to be 
predominantly ‘fast’ chargers which would allow users of the car parks to top up their 
batteries and, where the car parks were operational 24h hours a day, may also allow 
for overnight charging by residents. It was also proposed that the Council could 
consider leasing small parcels of land for the development of charging hubs made up 
predominantly of ultra-rapid and rapid chargepoints which may be more suitable for 
those drivers with higher mileage requirements and for those who are more likely to 
charge when the battery levels are very low.  
  
The draft strategy was not proposing the introduction of on-street public chargepoints 
at this time although it was considered that such locations may be suitable for 
particular groups such as taxis/PHVs as well as car club vehicles. There were a 
number of reasons for this including potential damage, pavement obstructions, visual 
street clutter, etc. Whilst technology did exist to connect EV chargepoints to lamp 
posts, the majority of lamp posts in the district were located at the back of the 
pavement and it was not considered appropriate to trail cables across the footway. 
Connecting the lamp post to a charging bollard at the kerbside could again cause 
issues of street clutter and pavement obstructions and would be a more costly 
solution. Lamp post chargepoints were also slow chargers generally operating at 
around the 3kW range which was now slower than many home chargers that could 
be purchased.  
  
Councillor Leech stated that one of the largest challenges in trying to get residents to 
move to using electric vehicles was the ability to provide off street charging.  He 
sought clarification as to whether consideration was going to be given to charging 
facilities from the footway for terraced properties.  The Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) state that theissue of off street parking for terraced properties had 
been looked at in detail but currently there was too many associated risks, such as 
trip hazards, to include proposals within this strategy at the present moment.  It was 
noted that the technology for charging vehicles was changing very quickly and that 
this may be an area the Council looks at in the future. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive approve and endorse the Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging 
Strategy. 
 

Page 38

Item 10



Exe/22/115 Youth, Play & Participation Service (YPPS) Grants Framework  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), which 
set out the outcome from the design and development work to the proposed Youth, 
Play and Participation Service’s commissioning process and framework including 
timescales for the implementation of the proposed new arrangements. 
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) reported that In March 2021, Executive agreed 
several actions to build stronger and more effective arrangements for youth and play 
services to improve the outcomes for children and young people.  The Youth and 
Play Commissioning Arrangements were presented to Executive in October 2021 
and set out the principles of an alternative delivery model and the need to establish a 
revised Commissioning Framework to be designed and developed.  Since April 2022, 
the Youth, Play and Participation service had been developing the Commissioning 
Framework. 
  
The Council currently granted annual funding of £1.6m to Manchester’s voluntary and 
community sector (VCS) to deliver youth, play and participation services. It was 
proposed and agreed in 2021 that the Council would administer the budget going 
forward, and that the budget would remain unchanged. The proposals set out in the 
report sought to protect the current levels of investment and to direct those funds in 
line with the proposed new commissioning arrangements as set out in the main body 
of the report. 
  
The proposed new framework would build on the existing strengths and progress 
made over the last few years. It would aim to reduce operational overheads and seek 
to remove duplication. It was anticipated that more funding would reach grassroots 
organisations who were working directly with children and young people and would 
encourage and support applications from new and diverse non-white organisations 
that were not usually represented in the VCS.   
  
Decision 

  
The Executive agree the proposed new commissioning framework. 
  
Exe/22/116 Public Open Spaces CCTV  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), which 
sought approval of a policy for the targeted placement of CCTV cameras across the 
city to ensure they are used effectively and in line with government guidance. 
  
The Deputy Leader (Statutory) reported that the Council’s CCTV Code of Practice 
reflects the Home Office Surveillance Camera Code of Practice and updated ICO 
Data Protection Code of Practice for surveillance cameras and personal information.  
It references the Home Office’s Surveillance Camera Code of Practice, prepared in 
accordance with section 29 of the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and lists the 
guiding principles contained within it. 
  
Historically CCTV cameras had bee installed in the city for different of reasons, 
including investment in an area through regeneration, or in response to crime or anti-

Page 39

Item 10



social behaviour in an area. This meant that there were significant disparities of 
coverage across the city that do not correspond to a pressing need.  To ensure the 
Council was complying with the requirements of the codes of practice, and to address 
the discrepancies in the CCTV coverage of the city, a review of Public Space CCTV 
Cameras in their current locations had been proposed. 
  
Significant investment had also been made to upgrade the CCTV system in the city in 
recent years including the upgrade to the platform in 2018 and this year would see 
£618k investment in upgrading 169 cameras that were over 7 years old.  Additional 
funds had also been secured to expand the number of fly tipping cameras that could 
be deployed across the city to address areas that were subjected to sustained fly 
tipping. 
  
An initial review of effectiveness of all cameras would take place on approval for the 
policy so new replacement cameras were fitted in compliance with the guidance.  
There would also be regular opportunities to review whether the CCTV cameras were 
legitimate and addressing the areas with the greatest need, in accordance with the 
defined criteria 

  
The policy had been drafted in line with legislative requirements with a particular 
focus on demonstrating whether each of the CCTV cameras operated by the Council 
met a pressing need and also achieved the specific purpose(s) for which they were 
being used. Where the proposed Review's finding was that a camera did not meet 
that criterion, it  would recommend the camera was moved to a different location 
where its use was justified.  
  
Decision 

  
The Executive Approve the Policy and Procedure for legitimacy and effectiveness of 
CCTV in the city. 
  
 
 
 

Page 40

Item 10



 

 

Executive 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Wednesday, 18 January 2023 
 
 
Present: Councillor Craig (Chair) 
 
Councillors: Akbar, Bridges, Hacking, Igbon, Midgley, Rahman, Rawlins, 
T Robinson, and White 
 
Also present as Members of the Standing Consultative Panel:  
Councillors: Ahmed Ali, Butt, Douglas, Foley, Johnson, Leech, Lynch and Stanton 
 
Apologies: Councillor Collins 
 
Also present: Councillor Newman (Woodhouse Park Ward Member) and Councillor 
Reid (Gorton and Abbey Hey Ward Member)  
 
Exe/23/1 Minutes  
 
Decision 

  
The Executive approved as a correct record the minutes of the meeting on 14 
December 2022. 
 
Exe/23/2 Our Manchester Progress Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Chief Executive which provided an update 
on key areas of progress against the Our Manchester Strategy – Forward to 2025 
which reset Manchester’s priorities for the next five years to ensure the Council could 
still achieve the city’s ambition set out in the Our Manchester Strategy 2016 – 2025. 
  
The Leader reported that the Council had entered into legal agreements with 
development partner Allied London for the Grade II-listed Upper Campfield Market 
and Lower Campfield Market buildings on Liverpool Road.  Campfield was one of two 
schemes which together formed the Culture In The City project which the Council 
secured almost £20m of Government Levelling Up funding in autumn 2021.  The 
Campfield market buildings would provide 83,000 sq. ft. of modern workspace and 
over a 15-year period, it was anticipated that 1,600 jobs would be created and a 
further 2,400 jobs sustained. 
  
The Leader also reported that Manchester Libraries would be providing support for 
residents who need it to help navigate through new voter ID rules which will come 
into force ahead of the 4 May local elections.  All 22 libraries in the city would offer 
free internet and wifi which residents could use if they needed to apply for a Voter 
Authority Certificate. Staff would be able to advise which forms of photo identification 
could be used at polling stations to avoid people applying for a Certificate 
unnecessarily.  A Greater Manchester-wide communications campaign to make 
people aware of the changes and the need to ensure they had voter ID to participate 

Page 41

Item 10



 

 

in elections would amplify and supplement a national campaign being led by the 
Electoral Commission. 
  
The Executive Member for Children, Families and Young People reported that a 
Trust had been appointed to run what will be the first new primary school to open in 
the city centre in almost 20 years.  The Laurus Trust would run the 210-place Crown 
Street Primary School.  Building work was now well underway on its location at the 
end of Deansgate, with the first pupils expected through its doors in September 
2024.  The school would form an important part of the wider regenerations taking 
place in the Great Jackson Street are at the southern end of the city centre. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that strong progress 
had been made in reducing carbon emissions from the council’s estate of more than 
300 buildings.  Emissions from the Council’s operational estate had reduced by 7,161 
tonnes CO2 per annum – a 29.7% cut – since 2019/20.  It was referenced that a 
detailed report on the Decarbonisation of the Council’s estate had been considered at 
the January meeting of Resources and Governance Scrutiny and the Executive 
Member for Environment and Transport encouraged members to read this report to 
get a fuller understanding of the work being done 

  
Decision 

  
The Executive note the report. 
 
Exe/23/3 Capital Programme Update  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which informed Members of requests to increase the capital programme, sought 
approval for those schemes that could be approved under authority delegated to the 
Executive. 
  
The proposals which only required Executive approval were those which were funded 
by the use of external resources, use of capital receipts, use of reserves below 
£10.0m, where the proposal could be funded from existing revenue budgets or where 
the use of borrowing on a spend to save basis is required.  The following proposals 
required Executive approval for changes to the City Council’s capital programme:- 
  

•                     Children’s Services - New Secondary SEND School.  A capital budget 
virement of £18.1m was requested, funded from Unallocated Special 
Educational Needs Grant to develop a new 150 place secondary SEND school 
for pupils aged 11-19 with an Education, Health, and Care Plan (EHCP) in 
north Manchester. 

  

•                     Highways Services – Rochdale Canal.  A capital budget virement of £0.230m 
in 2022/23 was requested, funded from borrowing to deliver improvements to 
the towpath in Newton Heath and Miles Platting, which would include patching 
and resurfacing to the towpath, repairs to the cobbled areas, new marker 
posts to indicate distances and new signage at accesses and exits to 
advertise local amenities. 

  

Page 42

Item 10



 

 

•                     Highways Services – Safer Streets Manchester Cycleway.  A capital budget 
increase of £0.030m in 2022/23 and £0.293m in 2023/24 was requested, 
funded by External Contribution – Safer Streets Fund, alongside a capital 
budget virement of £0.220m in 2022/23, funded by borrowing via the 
Highways Project Delivery Fund, to deliver a number of improvements 
including landscaping, removal, and addition of new barriers, new access 
points and signage on the Manchester Cycleway (Fallowfield loop and Yellow 
Brick Road) to help improve safety and perception of safety along the route. 

  

•                     ICT – Contract Management.  A capital budget decrease of £0.109m was 
requested and approval of a corresponding transfer of £0.109m to the revenue 
budget, funded by Capital Fund.to introduce an ICT system for managing 
contracts across the whole Council, providing numerous benefits, including a 
central repository of all contract information, enabling recording of risks and 
issues, and contract management and performance information to be 
recorded. 

  
The report highlighted that there had  been increases to the programme totalling 
£4.002m as a result of delegated approvals since the previous report to the Executive 
on 14 December 2022. 
  
Approval had also been given for the following capital budget virements:- 
  

•                     £0.490m for the installation of Carbon Monoxide Monitors in council 
properties to comply with the Smoke and Carbon Monoxide Alarm 
(Amendment) Regulations 2022, through the utilisation of Unallocated Public 
Sector Housing budget. 

  

•                     £0.026m allocation from the Parks Development Programme for the 
predevelopment stage to commission the Capital Programmes and 
Procurement Team to progress scheme design to RIBA Stage 2 for the 
Heaton Park Orangery  

  

•                     £0.110m funding for Cringle Park – Grounded Coffee Offer to improve the 
existing offer in the park 

  

•                     £0.700m allocation from Education Basic Need funding of to provide 
additional funding to Our Lady's RC High School and Manchester Enterprise 
Academy to deliver additional school places 

  
If the recommendations in the report were approved the General Fund capital budget 
would increase by £0.214m across financial years which would also result in an 
increase in the prudential indicator for Capital Expenditure in corresponding years. 
  
Councillor Leech sought an assurance that the proposed budget for the new 
Secondary SEND School had taken account of any potential inflationary costs so to 
avoid the need to seek further funding at a future point. 
  
Councillor Johnson sought assurance that the consideration of carbon reduction was 
taken into account with any ICT projects. 

Page 43

Item 10



 

 

  
The Deputy Chief Executive commented that there was a substantial allowance for 
inflation and contingency associated with the new Secondary SEND School budget 
and that all ICT projects took account of how they could contribute to carbon 
reductions.. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)          Approve the following changes to the Council’s capital programme: 
  

•                Children’s Services - New Secondary Special Educational Needs and 
Disabilities (SEND) School – Varley Street. A capital budget virement of 
£18.1m, funded from Unallocated Special Educational Needs Grant. 

  

•                Highways Services – Rochdale Canal. A capital budget virement of 
£0.230m funded from borrowing.  

  

•                Highways Services – Safer Streets – Manchester Cycleway. A capital 
budget increase of £0.323m, funded by External Contribution and a 
capital budget virement of £0.220m, funded by borrowing via the 
Highways Project Delivery Fund. 

  

•                ICT – Contract Management. A capital budget decrease of £0.109m  
and a corresponding transfer of £0.109m to the revenue budget, funded 
by Capital Fund. 

  
(2)          Note the increases to the programme of £4.002m as a result of delegated 

approvals and the virements in the programme of £1.326m as a result of 
virements from approved budgets 

 
Exe/23/4 Making Manchester Fairer - the Anti-Poverty Strategy 2023-2028  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which provided an overview of the work undertaken to date to develop 
a refreshed poverty strategy for the city and set out the approach, evidence base and 
engagement process for developing the strategy.  The report also outlined the 
relationship between the new strategy and existing work on Making Manchester 
Fairer, developing a more inclusive economy, tackling the Cost-of-Living Crisis and 
other linked areas of work. 
  
The Deputy Leader reported that Manchester had long recognised the significant 
challenge of tackling and reducing poverty in the city.  In 2017, a Family Poverty 
Strategy was launched which focused on families with children and young people up 
to the age of 19.  A significant amount of partnership work was undertaken to deliver 
the Family Poverty Strategy in the last five years, against a backdrop of health and 
economic challenges which had highlighted and exacerbated poverty in Manchester.  
  

Page 44

Item 10



 

 

The new Anti-Poverty Strategy provided an opportunity to take account of the impact 
of these challenges and extend the strategy to cover all households in the city to 
include those without children.  Extensive research and engagement work had taken 
place with residents and partners to determine the main themes and priorities for the 
new strategy:- 
  

•                     Preventing Poverty 

•                     Mitigating Poverty 

•                     Pathways out of Poverty 

•                     Inclusive and effective delivery 

  
Learning from the experience with the Family Poverty Strategy 2017-2022 and 
considering the information that had been gathered from research and conversations 
with partners, there was an opportunity to make some changes to the governance for 
the new strategy to ensure that it was as effective as it could be. The strategy would 
be led by a Making Manchester Fairer and Anti-Poverty Programme Management 
Team made up of council officers and partners.  Delivery would ultimately be 
accountable to the Making Manchester Fairer Programme Board and would be 
undertaken through partnership working and collaboration between Manchester’s 
Voluntary and Community Sector organisations and public sector institutions with the 
support of the city’s private sector. 
  
Measuring the impact and success of the new strategy would be challenging due to 
external factors beyond the Council’s control. The worsening economic context was 
likely to put pressure on household budgets in the medium term, whilst constraining 
the ability of the Council and our partners to deliver effective services. Additionally, 
the action that could be taken was already limited in scope when compared to the 
scale and complexity of the factors driving poverty in Manchester. 
  
In response to these challenges, a series of indicators had been selected which 
would assist in identifying the risk of people experiencing poverty, and the volume 
and need of individuals accessing certain services.  This would help the Council 
understand how external factors were likely to drive demand and adapt its collective 
approach in response to changing needs. 
  
The current economic challenges and rising inflation meant that poverty was going to 
continue to be a significant issue in Manchester for several years to come. 
Manchester had a robust system and network of professionals and organisations who 
remained committed to this issue, and who worked together to ensure that everything 
possible was being done to reduce the number of people experiencing poverty.  
  
It was also recognised that in some areas the Council’s powers to tackle poverty 
were limited, and the Council was prepared to work with its partners to identify new 
solutions and ways of working to maximise the collective impact on this issue.  Where 
the Council did not have the powers locally, it would continue to make the case to 
Government for the legislative changes that were required to create the right 
conditions to effectively reduce poverty in the city. 
  
Councillor Leech questioned the impact of the Family Poverty Strategy and the 
measurements of success insofar as to how many people who had received help and 

Page 45

Item 10



 

 

support were no longer deemed to be living in poverty.  He also made a suggestion 
that to help families living in poverty the Council should consider increasing the 
amount of financial support available through the Council Tax Support Scheme from 
the current maximum of 82.5% to 100%. 
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy explained how the Council measured the impact 
of the actions and initiatives put in place through the Strategy and the Deputy Chief 
Executive and City Treasurer explained that there was a significant lead in period to 
making changes to the Council Tax Support Scheme but it had been suggested by 
Government that for 2024/25 the Council should consider its current Council Tax 
Support Scheme and whether the threshold levels remained appropriate.  
  
Councillor Johnson commented on the need to help ensure food banks had 
appropriate support and funding to continue to help those who relied on these 
through the cost of living crisis. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive agree to adopt the new Anti-Poverty Strategy for Manchester. 
 
Exe/23/5 Revised Policy for Residents Parking Schemes  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods), which 
sought approval of a revised policy around the implementation and operation of 
Residents Parking Zones (RPZ) within the city. The revised policy reflected the 
feedback and issues that have been gathered during the process of extending the 
Christie Resident Parking Scheme and in the design of other planned schemes. 
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport reported that the Residents 
Parking Scheme (RPS) Policy was last considered in September 2018.  The existing 
policy had evolved over time in response to parking issues in neighbourhoods. The 
recent review had highlighted that the current policy created issues within the design 
of the schemes, primarily because of the approach taken to visitor parking.  
  
The primary changes proposed were:- 
  

•                Provision of two (previously one) free (previously £45 per annum) digital visitor 
permits for all residents, that can be managed within the online system. 

•                Option for transferrable paper permits for those without digital access. 

•                Provision of physical temporary parking permits (scratch cards) to all residents 
in addition to the permits. A number of scratch cards would be provided free to 
each household per annum, with further scratch cards available at an additional 
charge. 

  
It was explained that the overall approach was to promote the management of visitor 
permits online consistent with providing better and more efficient services through the 
Council’s Digital Front Door. This also facilitated significant efficiencies within both 
enforcement activities and administration of the schemes. 
  

Page 46

Item 10



 

 

The policy also amended the approach to businesses to ensure that each business 
impacted will be considered on a case-by-case basis. This was to reflect the potential 
diversity between businesses and their relative needs in order to operate sustainably. 
  
The revised policy would be applied to all current and future resident parking zones.  
The enforcement of resident parking schemes would also be subject to review and 
monitoring. It was necessary to ensure that the resources deployed were 
proportionate to the scale of non-compliance, therefore, regular reviews would be 
conducted in each area to determine the level of non-compliance and the level of 
enforcement resource required. 
  
Councillors Stanton welcomed the extension of the Christie Resident Parking 
Scheme and the fact that the Council had listened to feedback from local residents to 
ensure the scheme had been appropriately thought through. 
  
Councillor Leech commented that he felt that issues that were now being resolved 
associated with extension of the Christie Resident Parking Scheme could have been 
avoided.  He also welcomed the proposals around business permits and raised a 
concern that the scratch card system could be open to abuse if these were not 
parking scheme specific scratch cards. 
  
The Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) acknowledged the points made in 
association with the extension of the Christie Resident Parking Scheme and the 
concern around the scratch card system. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive agree the revised policy. 
 
Exe/23/6 Wythenshawe Civic Centre Development Framework  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which provided an update on the next stages of the transformation of 
Wythenshawe Civic Centre.  
  
The Executive Member for Growth and Development reported that the principles of 
the proposed Development Framework for Wythenshawe Civic Centre had been 
informed by the recent public consultations. The framework set out a long-term 
regeneration vision that would guide investment and would transform the Civic 
Centre,  
  
The Development Framework had been prepared to guide future regeneration and 
redevelopment in the Civic Centre. This included long-term aspirations for the 
rebalancing  between retail, community and residential functions, aimed at creating a 
sustainable Civic Centre that widened its uses and provided an improved 
environment. 
  
The Council's aim was to create a vibrant centre that was appropriate for 
Wythenshawe in 2023 by increasing and diversifying its offer, driving new footfall, 
increasing visitors spend and capturing opportunities for considerable economic 

Page 47

Item 10



 

 

growth. Vacant and underused office and retail buildings would be brought back in to 
use as new business, community and creative spaces. A new food hall would be 
developed with access to local, affordable, sustainable produce and an evening food 
and beverage economy would be introduced.  New, improved public realm would be 
sustainably drained and naturally planted, designed to be accessible and to 
encourage walking and cycling. 
  
The Development Framework would also act as the guide for future investment and 
elements also informed the Levelling Up Fund application submitted in 2022 with the 
outcome of the Round 2 bids expected at the end of January 2023 

  
If approved, the Development Framework would be formally adopted to guide  future 
investment and the regeneration of Wythenshawe Civic Centre.  Work had 
commenced exploring procurement options in relation to an investment and 
development partner.  A further report would be submitted to Executive once this 
implementation strategy had been finalised. 
  
Councillor Newman (Ward Councillor) addressed the Executive, stating his complete 
support for the long-term aspirations for Wythenshawe and the Civic Centre, 
recognising that investment and improvement had been long overdue. 
  
The Strategic Director (Growth and Development) advised that subject to approval, 
the Council would be progressing with the appointment of a development partner to 
help move the redevelopment forward and in the short term progressing a 
commercial lettings strategy to fill some of the remaining vacant units. 
  
Councillor Johnson welcomed the proposals and commented on the level of 
responses to the consultation process and the need to ensure there would be more 
social housing provided for Wythenshawe residents. 
  
Councillor Leech sought clarification on the mix tenure of social housing that would 
be delivered as part of this Development Framework. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)          Note the outcome of the results of the public consultation on the Development 

Framework for Wythenshawe Civic Centre. 
  
(2)          Approve the Development Framework for Wythenshawe Civic Centre and that 

the Council take its Framework into account as a material consideration when 
considering planning applications for the site. 

 
Exe/23/7 Gorton District Centre Development Framework  
 
The Executive considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development), which provided an update on the on the future plans to regenerate 
Gorton District Centre and the outcome of the public consultation that had informed it. 
  

Page 48

Item 10



 

 

The Executive Member for Growth and Development reported that the Development 
Framework was being prepared to guide future regeneration and redevelopment in 
the District Centre.  This included, but was not limited to, long-term aspirations to 
maximise the potential of the centre through creating a more attractive environment 
that was more comfortable for residents/visitors to dwell in, extending the periods of 
activity of residents and visitors within the centre, beyond the traditional Monday to 
Friday 9am-5pm, encouraging more diversity through an increased provision of 
commercial offers and opportunities to deliver 400 new homes on brownfield land 
with a mixed tenure approach that matches local housing demand. 
  
Consultation with thirty local businesses was carried out October 2022 and a public 
consultation was held online from 9 December 2022 to 6 January 2023.  Overall, the 
consultation feedback was very much supportive of the objectives for the Gorton 
district centre. 
  
92% of responses supported the objective of creating a more attractive environment 
that was comfortable to spend time in. Several respondents felt that the indoor 
market, as an asset to Gorton, had a good selection of stalls, but that the exterior of 
the building was unwelcoming and needed improvement. The wider commercial offer 
was noted to be limited by available space and that a diversified retail offer was 
welcomed. 
  
87.5% of responses were supportive of extending periods of activity with a particular 
aspiration for new uses during evenings and at weekends and supported the 
diversification of uses that would appeal to different communities and age groups 
with reference to a lack of space for younger people.  81.6% of respondents 
supported making the centre more accessible by walking and cycling, especially 
through the improvement of non-car dominated connections north to the surrounding 
housing estates, south to Sunny Brow Park and west to Debdale Park. Additional 
comments were made in support of safer road crossings and cycle lanes, especially 
when crossing Hyde Road and accessing the new Gorton Hub.  Furthermore, 87.5% 
of respondents supported the objective to make the centre greener, with comments 
regarding aspirations for new tree planting. 
  
Following this feedback a number of amendments had been made to the draft 
Framework:- 
  

•                     Early engagement indicated strong community feeling regarding any plans 
for the redevelopment of the existing gymnastics site. Amendments had been 
made within the document that any redevelopment would be subject to 
identification and delivery of a new futureproofed facility. 

  

•                     Aspirations were very clear about the ability for the redevelopment of the 
town centre to unlock opportunities to walk and cycle as appose to drive. 
Strong linear connections to the adjacent neighbourhoods had been 
incorporated, footpaths had been widened and Garratt Way now included a 
best-in-class segregated cycle way.  

  

•                     Along with better pedestrian crossings across highways, the carriageway 
width on surrounding secondary roads had been narrowed. Improved lighting 

Page 49

Item 10



 

 

on all existing and new footpaths will improve perceptions along with 
improvements to the market frontage providing natural surveillance.  

  

•                     Respondents agreed with the principle of promoting the historical Garratt 
Way as the new focus of the town centre and the framework proposes a new 
town square, reconnecting the indoor market back and providing opportunities 
for an outdoor makers market or facilitation of community events.  

  

•                     It was also recognised that Gorton was well connected to the local public 
transport network yet the town centre currently felt disconnected to the nearest 
station. Improvements had been proposed to the public realm from Chapman 
Street along with new development investment to animate uses and build 
density running towards the new town square. 

  
The feedback, engagement with stakeholders and local businesses had been 
invaluable in informing the formation of the future plans for Gorton District Centre. 
The interventions and future development opportunities outlined in the proposed 
framework would guide future investment in Gorton. And would provide a town centre 
that met the local community aspirations along with unlocking opportunities for new 
homes and employment. 
  
Councillor Reid (Ward Councillor) addressed the Executive, stating her complete 
support for the long-term aspirations for Gorton District Centre, recognising that 
investment and improvement had been long overdue. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)          Note the outcome of the results of the public consultation on the Development 

Framework Gorton District Centre. 
  

(2)          Approve the Development Framework for Gorton District Centre and request 
that Planning and Highways Committee take the Development Framework into 
account as a material consideration when considering planning applications 
with Gorton District Centre. 

 
Exe/23/8 Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - Solar Farm Purchase 

(Part A)  
 
The Executive considered a repot of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided an update on the progress of negotiation and Due Diligence for the 
purchase of a Large-Scale Renewable Energy Generation Project to help ensure the 
Council could achieve the CO2 savings as set out in the Council’s Climate Change 
Action Plan 2020-2025. 
  
In January 2022 Executive granted delegation for the Deputy Chief Executive and 
City Treasurer, in consultation with the Leader, Executive Member for Finance and 
the Executive Member for Environment to negotiate for the purchase of a solar asset 
/ PPA and any associated corporate documentation to establish a Special Purpose 

Page 50

Item 10



 

 

Vehicle if required. The report also highlighted the need to seek further capital 
approvals to increase the Council’s borrowing limit, via full council approval, if a 
binding offer were to be made to purchase a large-scale generation asset. 
  
It was explained that the volatility in the energy markets linked to the war in Ukraine, 
combined with uncertain government energy policy over the summer and autumn of 
2022 including a likely Government ban on new solar farm developments (since 
abandoned) plus the financial volatility arising from the UK Government’s short-lived 
financial policies of September 2022 had all contributed to a volatile market over the 
past 12 months.  During this period, the Council had tracked the market for suitable 
sites and explored potential options when they had become available.  These events 
had also very much shifted the balance in favour of asset  purchase as it offered a 
number of key advantages: 
  
In November 2022, officers identified a suitable large scale solar PV facility available 
for purchase and submitted an initial non-binding offer to the developer. This offer 
had been accepted by the developer and the Council had been invited to submit a 
final offer.  The developer required all bidders to clearly state that their internal 
approvals required were in place for their Final Offer. For the Council, this included 
Executive approval and for the capital budget increase and borrowing requirement, 
full Council approval. These approvals would be conditional on the outcomes of the 
due diligence and negotiations.  If the Council’s final offer was accepted, the Council 
would be granted exclusivity to complete full detailed due diligence following which a 
further report would be submitted to Executive 

  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer commented that the acquisition of a 
large-scale solar generation asset would give the early guarantee of long-term 
access to direct supply of renewable electricity generation, immediate overall CO2 
reduction and significant financial certainty of future electricity prices to be paid by the 
Council. 
  
Based on the projected energy demand assumptions, progress to both achieving the 
interim target of 50% reduction in carbon emissions by 2025 and to our long-term 
science-based target to be Zero Carbon by 2038 at the latest had been mapped.  
The modelling showed that, if the proposed solar farm was to come online as 
expected by the developer in early 2024 and generate the projected levels of 
electricity, the Council would meet its target to halve its CO2 emissions by 2025. The 
renewable electricity produced should also considerably accelerate the Council’s 
progress to meeting its 2038 targets in the following years, particularly between 2025 
and 2030.  After 2025, the effect of the solar farm would become less pronounced, as 
government-projected decarbonisation of the National Grid reached a consistently 
high level, although progress on National Grid decarbonisation was a variable outside 
of the Council’s control.  Without a source of renewable energy, achievement of the 
Council’s Zero Carbon 2038 objective would be largely dependent upon National Grid 
Decarbonisation.  
  
In the event that this or another suitable solar farm purchase of c.50MW was not 
secured, the impact would need to be mitigated via seeking to purchase renewable 
electricity through other means such as via a PPA,.  With energy markets currently in 
a state of high uncertainty PPA costs would have risen sharply and did not offer the 

Page 51

Item 10



 

 

same long term price hedge and security of supply offered by the large-scale 
generation option. 
  
Decision 

  
The Executive note the report and that further details and recommendations are set 
out in Part B to this report. 
 
Exe/23/9 Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
Exe/23/10 Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - Solar Farm Purchase 

(Part B)  
 
The Executive considered a repot of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
which provided details around the commercial, financial and legal arrangements in 
respect of the purchase of a Large-Scale Renewable Energy Generation Project. 
  
Decisions 

  
The Executive:- 
  
(1)      Recommend to Council approval of a capital budget increase of a maximum of 

£50m funded by borrowing on an invest to save basis, noting that the purchase 
will only progress if the Council is successful in its submission and it can be 
demonstrated that there are sufficient revenue savings to fund the capital 
financing costs.  

  
(2)      Endorse the proposal to submit a final offer for the purchase of a solar farm. 
  
(3)      Note if the bid submission is successful the Council will enter into a period of 

exclusivity to undertake further detailed due diligence with a further report to be 
brought back to the Executive for approval at a later date 

  
(4)      Note the indicative timetable for submission and completion of the transaction as 

set out in the report. 
  
(5)      Note that should the bid be unsuccessful an update will be provided to Executive 

 
 
 

Page 52

Item 10



Council meeting – 1 February 2023 

Rule 23. Questions for Executive Members and Others under Procedural Rule 
23 (Agenda Item 10) 
 
 
1. Question from Councillor Irene Robinson to the Executive Member for 
Environment and Transport 
 
Question:  
 
We've had several issues with blocked drains causing large puddles and muddy 
footpaths across the ward including Old Mill street and Bradford road. In terms of 
cleaning these and improving the streets have we set aside budget for clearing and 
unblocking drains to make safer roads and pathways? 

 
 
Received: 25/01/23 @ 20.18 
 
 
2. Question from Councillor Irene Robinson to the Executive Member for 
Housing and Development 
 
Question: 
 
Several new developments along Great Ancoats street which have impacted upon 
the pavement and pedestrians and cyclists as they are no longer able to use it. This 
includes blocking a cycle lane on Port Street. 
 
Can we review how building works impact upon the pavements for pedestrians and 
cyclists? Including ensuring bike lanes are maintained and useable whilst works are 
ongoing?  
 
Received: 25/01/23 @ 20:18 
 
 
3. Question from Councillor Nunney to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question 
 
There are a number of roads and paths in Woodhouse Park which flood regularly. 
When reported, the immediate issue is resolved. But what are the long-term plans to 
prevent flooding at known hotspots? As climate breakdown gets worse, so will the 
frequency of floods. 
 
Received: 28/01/23 @16:55 
 
 
  

Page 53

Item 11



Council meeting – 1 February 2023 

4. Question from Councillor Nunney to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question 
 
Could you please give us an update as to the progress of acquiring 200 new litter 
bins for the city? 
 
Received: 28/01/23 @16:55 
 
 
5. Question from Councillor Leech to the Deputy Leader (with responsibility for 
Crime & Disorder) 
 
Question 
 
At the last meeting of Council, I asked the following question - There was a 29% 
increase in recorded crimes in Greater Manchester in 2021/2022, up to around 
350,000. The GMP website rightly states that "We're committed to transparency and, 
as such, we want to give you as much data as possible to help you see what we're 
doing to combat crime". Can the Deputy Leader explain why residents still cannot 
view accurate crime stats in their local area? And can the Deputy Leader explain 
why I have not received an answer to this question, either from him or another 
Executive Member or a Deputy Executive Member since the question was submitted 
to Council last year? 
 
Received: 29/01/23 @21:07 
 
 
6. Question from Councillor Leech to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question 
 
It is often said that the definition of insanity is doing the same thing over and over 
again and expecting a different result. Therefore, can the Executive Member explain 
why the Council is once again not intending to consult with residents outside of the 
proposed Christie extended parking scheme, when the scheme is reviewed, even 
though the Council messed up the consultation process during the original Christie 
residents parking consultation, and then again during the consultation on the 
proposed extension? 
 
Received: 29/01/23 @21:07 
 
 
7. Question from Councillor Leech to the Executive Member for Environment 
and Transport 
 
Question 
 
What discussions has she had with HS2 regarding the impact on the local 
environment, flood storage capacity and site access, over their plans to move the 

Page 54

Item 11



Council meeting – 1 February 2023 

proposed location of the vent shaft in West Didsbury from Withington golf course, to 
land at the rear of Mersey Meadows? 
 
Received: 29/01/23 @21:07 
 
 
8. Question from Councillor Leech to the Executive Member for Vibrant 
Neighbourhoods 
 
Question 
 
How many complaints have been received by the Council regarding the failure to 
clear rotting leaves since the beginning of the current municipal year's leaf removal 
programme? 
 
Received: 29/01/23 @21:30 
 
 
9. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Leader of the Council 
 
Question 
 
Labour and the Green Party share the concerns of voter disenfranchisement with the 
new voting system for residents to have to show Voter ID before casting their vote at 
the next local election. This is a question I asked at the last Executive meeting that 
was not directly answered. Will every resident or every registered voter in 
Manchester receive a paper copy explaining the new regulations in terms of what 
kind of photo ID to bring or how they can apply for Voter ID at the council in the 
months running up to the elections? This is specifically important for people who are 
digitally excluded and may miss out on the planned social media information 
campaign by the council. 
 
Received: 30/01/23 @ 8:48 
 
 
10. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Leader of the Council 
 
Question 
 
Manchester’s council website states that “All Scrutiny meetings are open to the 
public.... If you come to a meeting and would like to speak about any of the matters 
under discussion, please ask the Chair if this is possible. This is entirely a matter for 
the Chair of the meeting…”. 
 
What are the considerations and guidelines for the Chair to permit a member of the 
public to speak? 
 
Received: 30/01/23 @ 8:48 
 
 
11. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Deputy Leader (with 
responsibility for Community Safety) 

Page 55

Item 11



Council meeting – 1 February 2023 

 
Question 
 
I am of course saddened that the Prime Minister has decided to block the 
implementation of the Scottish Gender Recognition Reform Bill, through an order 
under Section 35 of the Scotland Act. This piece of legislation simply seeks to make 
the process for legally recognising a trans man or trans women’s gender more 
respectful and straightforward. Trans people are particularly vulnerable to hate crime 
and vitriol. Manchester is an amazingly inclusive city, but I am still concerned that 
recent public debates may put Manchester trans people at a higher risk again. Have 
there been extra measures put in place to protect our trans residents? 
 
Received: 30/01/23 @ 8:48 
 
 
12. Question from Councillor Johnson to the Executive Member for 
Environment and Transport 
 
Question 
 
As you all know airport parking, travellers or staff leaving their cars for a day or 7, or 
10 or 14 etc., in an area with limited parking space because it was built as a Garden 
City at a time when not many people owned cars is one of the top issues coming up 
on the doorstep in Woodhouse Park. Cllr Rob Nunney and I are raising this issue 
constantly and I am pleased that the Executive Member for Environment and 
Transport had conversations with MAG about this. We were told in December that 
MAG would respond with solutions. When will all three Woodhouse Park councillors 
receive that information? 
 
Received: 30/01/23 @08:58 
 
 

Page 56

Item 11



 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Hitchen - In the Chair  
Councillors Azra Ali, Benham, Connolly, M Dar, Hilal, Hussain, Johnson, H Priest, 
Ogunbambo, Rawson, Wills and Wilson 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Rahman, Statutory Deputy Leader 
Councillor Igbon, Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development 
Councillor Wheeler, Ward Councillor for Piccadilly 
Chief Inspector Adam Wignall, Greater Manchester Police (GMP) 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Iqbal and Whiston 
 
CESC/22/48  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 November 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
CESC/22/49   Our Manchester Voluntary and Community Sector (OMVCS) 
Fund 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Assistant Chief Executive which 
provided an update on the process that had been followed to refresh the OMVCS 
funding programme for 2023-26. The report described the steps that had been taken, 
as well as providing an overview of the applications received and the current position. 
The Committee was given an indication on next steps and timescales for decisions. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Background to the VCSE sector in Manchester; 

• Summary of the OMVCS Fund and the refresh process; 

• Progress update July – December 2022; 

• Overview of applications received; and 

• Next steps. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• What would happen after the decisions were taken, in particular support for 
organisations which had submitted an application but had not been 
successful; 

Page 57

Item 12



 

• The geographical spread of applications and what work was taking place to 
ensure different communities across the city were being served; 

• Concern that smaller organisations were at a disadvantage in their ability to 
submit bids and the importance of supporting smaller organisations with 
submitting grant applications; and 

• Future funding opportunities for organisations which were not successful. 
 
The Assistant Chief Executive highlighted the support, outlined in the report, provided 
to organisations in submitting applications for the fund.  He advised that, due to the 
high number of applications, not all could be funded and that the infrastructure 
support provider would provide support to the organisations which were not 
successful.  He reported that a wide range of organisations, covering the different 
areas of the city, had applied to the fund.  He recognised that some areas of the city 
had historically had an under-representation of VCSE organisations.  He highlighted 
paragraph 4.16 in the report, which outlined how the Panel would proportionately 
target areas of under-representation across neighbourhoods and communities of 
identity.  In response to a question from the Chair, he highlighted that 69% of the 
proposals submitted aimed to tackle poverty.  He reported that a lot of bids had been 
received from very small organisations, with 81 bids in the small grant category, and 
that significant work had been done to engage with these organisations.  In response 
to a question about VCSE groups working to address climate change, he advised 
that it was a condition of receiving the funding that organisations had to have a plan 
for addressing climate change.  He supported a Member’s comment about the 
importance of collaboration between VCSE organisations, stating that collaborative 
working was a criteria within the funding process.  He reported that small voluntary 
organisations were supported by the infrastructure provider and neighbourhood 
officers in their ward. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Policy and Programmes Manager 
(Communities and VCSE) clarified that, although organisations applying for the fund 
could be based outside the city boundaries, they needed to demonstrate a strong 
Manchester connection over at least 18 months.  He reported that all the 
organisations which had applied to the fund, both those which were successful and 
those which were unsuccessful, would receive strengths-based feedback on their 
application, including information on how they could improve their application in 
future, and that the infrastructure provider would provide ongoing support.  He 
advised that there were alternative sources of funding which unsuccessful applicants 
could be signposted to.  He informed Members that the panel had receiving training 
on conscious and unconscious bias, with the aim of ensuring that applications were 
considered based on what the organisation was proposing to do, rather than on how 
well-written the application was, as the latter tended to lead to already successful 
organisations continuing to receive the funding.  In response to a Member’s question, 
he advised that a diverse panel had been recruited and that an Equality Impact 
Assessment had been developed throughout the process.  
 
The Chair recognised the important role of volunteers and thanked all volunteers in 
the city for their work, asking officer to pass on thanks to the voluntary organisations. 
 
 
 

Page 58

Item 12



 

Decision 
 
To request that information on which organisations are successful and alternative 
sources of funding for unsuccessful organisations be included in a future report. 
 
[Councillor Hussain declared a disclosable pecuniary interest as a Director of Muslim 
Writers North which had submitted a bid for the fund and left the room for this item.] 
[Councillor H Priest declared a personal interest as a volunteer at North Manchester 
FM which had submitted a bid for the fund.] 
[Councillor Ogunbambo declared a personal interest as the Chair of Blackley Football 
Club of Manchester] 
[Councillor M Dar declared a personal interest in relation to Youth on Solid Ground 
and Keep Youth Work Alive Beswick.] 
 
CESC/22/50   Public Open Spaces CCTV 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhood 
Services) which detailed the policy and procedure developed following the review of 
Public Open Space CCTV. It detailed how the Council would ensure that the 
significant investment in CCTV was targeted effectively in the city whilst ensuring 
compliance with the Information Commissioners Office Code of Practice for 
surveillance cameras. The Committee was invited to comment on the report prior to 
its submission to the Executive on 14 December 2022. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Investment in CCTV; 

• CCTV Board; 

• Policy and procedure for CCTV legitimacy and effectiveness; 

• Additional cameras; and 

• Legal advice. 
 
The Statutory Deputy Leader reported that the Council was committed to investing in 
upgrading its CCTV equipment and placing cameras in the right locations where they 
were most effective. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• Cameras that could be deployed across the city to address areas that were 
subjected to sustained fly-tipping; 

• Had a data protection impact assessment been carried out and, if so, could 
Committee Members see it; 

• The process relating to proposals to site cameras in new locations, including 
how Ward Councillors would be involved in this and whether residents could 
be involved too; 

• The concentration of CCTV cameras in the city centre, asking that 
consideration be given to placing more cameras in other parts of the city and 
ensuring that their location was spread fairly across the city; 

Page 59

Item 12



 

• To request a breakdown of how many CCTV cameras were located in the city 
centre and how many were in other areas and how many were used to 
address crime and disorder as opposed to fly-tipping; 

• Was a full review being carried out of the location of all CCTV cameras across 
Manchester; and 

• The capacity of the CCTV control room if additional cameras were installed in 
future. 

 
The Director of Commercial and Operations clarified that mobile cameras, operated 
by the Compliance and Enforcement team, were used to tackle flytipping and that 
additional funding had been provided for these from the Growth and Waste funding in 
the budget.   
 
The Community Safety Lead advised that the Council had a data protection impact 
assessment for CCTV cameras which was currently being updated and that she 
could share the existing one.  She advised that proposals for the location of cameras 
would be discussed at a ward level, facilitated by the neighbourhood teams, with 
Ward Councillors being able to discuss where they had concerns and thought that 
cameras would be a good solution for a crime problem; however, she advised that 
the views of the local police and neighbourhood teams would also be taken into 
account so it could be decided that it was not appropriate to place a camera in a 
particular location or that there were other ways to resolve the problem.  She advised 
that consideration would be given to how residents could feed into this.  She reported 
that cameras would be located where there was the greatest need, including 
consideration of the crime statistics and other provision in the area.  She stated that 
she could provide Members with the breakdown of the location of cameras between 
the city centre and neighbourhood areas.  She confirmed that the fly-tipping cameras 
were not included with the scope of the report.  She confirmed that a full review of the 
location of CCTV cameras would take place and that their location would be 
continuously reviewed to ensure compliance with the legislation. 
 
The Director of Commercial and Operations advised that decisions on the distribution 
of cameras would be evidence-based, identifying where they were most needed, 
rather than an equal spread across the city, and that this was what was required 
legislatively.  In response to a Member’s question about changes in technology, he 
reported that the new cameras would primarily perform the key function of observing 
what was taking place and feeding it back to the control room and that there were no 
current plans relating to the use of artificial intelligence.  He reported that there was 
physically space in the CCTV control room to monitor more cameras but it could 
require more operatives to monitor them, which would be an additional cost.  He also 
advised that the location and capacity of the control room was due to be reviewed. 
 
Chief Inspector Adam Wignall from Greater Manchester Police (GMP) reported that, 
where there were concerns about crime in a particular location but it did not meet the 
requirements for installing a CCTV camera, other measures would be put in place to 
tackle the problem and he outlined some of the work taking place to reduce crime 
and disorder, including the establishment of prevention hubs and work with the 
Community Safety Partnership and local communities to solve problems in local 
areas.  In response to a question from the Chair about GMP’s budget for CCTV 
cameras, noting that they had previously invested in cameras in Moss Side which 

Page 60

Item 12



 

were now obsolete, he advised that he would need to look into this.  He reported that 
GMP had recently installed cameras in Piccadilly Gardens, with assistance from the 
Community Safety Partnership. 
 
The Community Safety Lead reported that Safer Streets funding had been used to fill 
some of the gaps in areas of Moss Side and Rusholme which required CCTV 
coverage.  In response to a question from the Chair about the future replacement of 
cameras as they reached the end of their lifespan, she reported that replacing the 
169 cameras that were over 7 years old would make a significant difference but 
confirmed that there would be a rolling maintenance programme. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To receive the further information that Members have asked for at an 

appropriate time, including in relation to control room capacity, plans to 
manage the replacement of other cameras as they reach the end of their 
lifespan and GMP funding for CCTV cameras. 

 
2. To endorse the recommendation to the Executive that: 
 

The Executive is recommended to:-  
 
Approve the Policy and Procedure for legitimacy and effectiveness of CCTV in 
the city. 

 
CESC/22/51   Compliance and Enforcement Services - Performance in 
2021/22 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhood 
Services) which provided an update on demand for and performance of the 
Compliance and Enforcement service during 2021/22. The report also provided a 
forward look at challenges and future workload pressures as a result of changes to 
legislation, policy and areas of growth that would have an impact on the work carried 
out by Compliance and Enforcement teams. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• Demand; 

• Proactive activities; 

• Programmed activities; 

• Formal enforcement action; 

• Ongoing challenges; and 

• Future challenges/pressures. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• That enforcement activity and prosecutions in relation to fly-tipping should be 
publicised to assure residents that action was being taken and to warn fly-
tippers of the consequences of their actions; 

Page 61

Item 12



 

• Issues with poor bin management by students;  

• What work was being done to tackle landlords who were letting properties 
which were not fit for habitation; 

• To what extent could the future challenges and pressures outlined in the 
report be met and what were the risks associated with these; 

• How could local businesses better liaise with the Compliance Team so that 
they did not fall foul of the regulations; and 

• Concerns that jobs were sometimes being recorded as completed on the CRM 
(Customer Relationship Management) system when this was not the case. 

 
The Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety advised that the 
Council used social media to publicise action taken in relation to fly-tipping and 
issued press releases when they had successful fly-tipping prosecutions; however, 
she advised that they were dependent on the media picking up on the press 
releases.  She advised that they had previously worked with the Manchester Evening 
News on advertorials and could look into this again.  She reported that she was also 
open to Members’ suggestions for other ways this work could be publicised.  She 
advised that the Council did a lot of work to engage with students, as well as 
engaging with landlords, and that enforcement action was taken where appropriate.  
She advised that there were no enforcement powers in relation to taking wheelie bins 
back onto properties promptly, although the pavement should not be obstructed and 
she would ask officers to look into this issue.  In response to a Member’s question 
about street signage, she advised that most legislation did not require this.  She 
reported that Manchester was working to target rogue landlords, including the use of 
selective licensing and providing information to tenants and landlords on the actions 
they could take to address and report mould.  In response to a Member’s question, 
she offered to provide a copy of the relevant leaflets.  The Executive Member for 
Housing and Development outlined work to address damp and mould in both private 
rented and social housing, including making it easier for tenants to report issues.  
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods outlined how the Neighbourhood 
Teams, other Council services and partners organisations, including the universities 
and Manchester Student Homes, were working together to address the issues raised 
in relation to areas with a large student population.  She reported that this was a 
constant battle and that they were continually working to address this, as well as 
looking for new approaches which could be taken.  She advised that a further 
response would be provided to the Member who had raised this in relation to the next 
steps to address this within his ward of Withington and that she would be happy to 
discuss this further with him.  She agreed that it would be useful to further publicise 
the positive work which was taking place and that this could be done through the 
Ward Co-ordination Officers.     
 
In response to the question about future challenges, the Head of Compliance, 
Enforcement and Community Safety reported that the service would need to prioritise 
resources, stating that the service currently did a lot of work above and beyond the 
statutory role but that, where necessary, the statutory work would need to be 
prioritised, and the additional work reduced, focusing on the work which was most 
needed.  She advised that, when the government brought in new legislation, there 
should be funding made available and that her service was always looking for 
sources of funding and bidding for it.  In response to the question about work with 

Page 62

Item 12



 

local businesses, she advised that the Compliance Service’s initial approach was 
always to help businesses to comply with regulations, although enforcement was 
used where businesses were not willing to engage.  In response to a Member’s 
question about reporting fly-tipping, she advised that people could still report this by 
telephone as an alternative to using the website but that a lot of fly-tipping was 
identified through pro-active work.  In response to a Member’s question, she advised 
that she was not aware of an increase in noise complaints due to pavement 
licensing.  She asked Members to feed back on any instances where jobs had been 
recorded as completed on the CRM system when this was not the case. 
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods informed Members that a new 
CRM system was being introduced. In response to a question from the Chair, the 
Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) advised that, although this fell with the remit of 
the Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee as an ICT issue, he would liaise 
with the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer about providing an update on this 
work for this Committee.  
 
In response to a question about the Council’s regulatory duties in relation to industrial 
processes, the Strategic Lead (Compliance and Enforcement) reported that visits 
were carried out twice a year and that the focus was on education to ensure that they 
were operating correctly. 
 
The Chair thanked staff in this area for their work, recognising the wide range of work 
they undertook.  
 
Decisions 
 
1. To request that the Head of Compliance, Enforcement and Community Safety 

circulate the leaflets in relation to damp and mould to all Members of the 
Committee. 
 

2. To request that the Committee receive an update on plans for the new CRM 
system. 

 
CESC/22/52   Community Safety Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhood 
Services) which provided an update on the range of work delivered to address the 
priorities in the strategy and included updates on the City Centre and Wynnstay 
Grove Public Space Protection Orders (PSPOs). It also included information on how 
partners worked to help people feel safe in the city centre, including the role of 
Licensing, taxi marshals, pubwatch and event security. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Tackling neighbourhood crime and antisocial behaviour; 

• Keeping children and young people safe; 

• Tackling serious harm and violence; 

• Tackling drug and alcohol driven crime; and 

• Protecting communities through changing offender behaviour. 

Page 63

Item 12



 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• To recognise the positive, multi-agency work taking place in the Withington 
and Ladybarn area to tackle anti-social behaviour; 

• Plans to expand training, for example on Martyn’s Law, to licensed premises 
outside of the city centre; and 

• To request more information on the Complex Safeguarding Hub, including 
what the thresholds were for referral to the Complex Safeguarding Hub, what 
percentage of referrals were not dealt with through the Hub because they did 
not meet this threshold and how Manchester’s threshold compared to other 
Greater Manchester authorities. 

 
The Chair informed Members that the Chair of the Licensing Committee was unable 
to attend this meeting but had asked for his thanks to be passed on to the Licensing 
Team, GMP, partner organisations and the Scrutiny Committee for their work to keep 
residents and visitors to Manchester safe. 
 
The Community Safety Lead reported that, if a referral was not appropriate for the 
Complex Safeguarding Hub, this did not mean that they would not receive support 
and that a range of other support could be offered, with a focus on early intervention.  
She stated that she would ask colleagues in Children’s Services to provide further 
information in relation to the Member’s questions on the Complex Safeguarding Hub.  
She informed Members that the Complex Safeguarding Hubs across Greater 
Manchester were in contact with each other to understand how other Hubs across 
the region were working and to share good practice.  In response to a Member’s 
question about PSPOs, she reported that the PSPO in relation to street drinking was 
in place across the city, not just the city centre, although it was not a blanket ban on 
street drinking and was used to tackle anti-social behaviour.  She advised that 
begging was not covered by any of the PSPOs currently in place in the city but that 
there was a well-established approach to begging, focused on getting people the 
right help and support, and that this approach was used across the city. 
 
The Principal Licensing Officer advised that the training referred to would be 
expanded to the district centres next year.  In response to a question from the Chair, 
he confirmed that the multi-agency partnership was city-wide and routinely 
considered issues outside of the city centre. 
 
The Ward Councillor for Piccadilly Ward requested confirmation that none of the five 
Fixed Penalty Notices which had been issued in relation to the City Centre PSPO 
had been issued to people who were genuinely homeless.  The Community Safety 
Lead confirmed that none of these had been issued to homeless people. 
 
The Statutory Deputy Leader highlighted how partners were working together to 
make communities safer and the importance of this multi-agency, collaborative 
approach, particularly in the light of reduced resources. 
 
The Chair thanked everyone for their work and recommended that the Statutory 
Deputy Leader write to the Secretary of State to highlight the importance of adequate 
funding to do this work.  The Statutory Deputy Leader agreed that he would write to 

Page 64

Item 12



 

the Secretary of State and circulate a copy of the letter to all Members of the 
Committee. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To note that the Statutory Deputy Leader will write to the Secretary of State to 

highlight the importance of adequate funding to do this work and will circulate 
a copy of the letter to all Members of the Committee. 
 

2. To note that the Community Safety Lead will liaise with Children’s Services to 
provide the Member with a response to her questions about the Complex 
Safeguarding Hub. 
 

3. To request that Members be kept informed of the training taking place 
regarding Martyn’s Law and ACT (Action Counter Terrorism) training. 

 
CESC/22/53  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 
responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 
which the Committee was asked to approve. 
 
In response to a question about the Z-Arts grant, it was agreed that information on 
cultural grants should be incorporated into the Libraries, Galleries, Culture and 
Leisure Annual Report scheduled for the Committee’s February meeting. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above amendment. 
 
 

Page 65

Item 12



 

Page 66

Item 12



 

Communities and Equalities Scrutiny Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 10 January 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Hitchen - In the Chair  
Councillors Benham, Chambers, Connolly, Evans, Hilal, Hussain, Johnson, 
Ogunbambo, H Priest, Rawson, Sheikh, Whiston, Wills and Wilson 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader 
Councillor Igbon, Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Reid, Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee 
Paula Lyons, Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service (GMFRS) 
Superintendent Paul Walker, Greater Manchester Police (GMP) 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Azra Ali and M Dar 
 
CESC/23/01  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 6 December 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
CESC/23/02  An update report on the Homelessness Service 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Housing Operations which 
provided an update on the Homelessness Service and the improvement and 
transformation that was happening across the service in an increasingly challenging 
social and economic context. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Preventing homelessness; 

• Work to end rough sleeping; 

• Work to considerably reduce the use of temporary accommodation; and 

• Delivering better outcomes and better lives for people and families at risk or 
who were homeless. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• Recognising the challenges that the city was facing and thanking officers for 
the work that was taking place to make improvements, including welcoming 
the focus on preventing homelessness; 

• Noting that additional officers had been assigned to answer calls to the 
Housing Solutions Service, was it possible to increase this further, given that 
the target for the service was to be answering 85% of calls by the end of 
March 2023; 

Page 67

Item 12



 

• What did Manchester need from the national government to address the 
homelessness problem; 

• Emergency accommodation for rough sleepers with dogs; 

• To request a further update report early in the next municipal year, including 
data on the use of temporary accommodation and its geographical spread, 
noting the benefits of people being able to remain near their community 
networks; 

• Would the 200 units of self-contained dispersed accommodation be located 
within Manchester and noting that these were for families, not single homeless 
people; 

• Did the Council have any property which it could convert into temporary 
accommodation; and 

• The impact on children of living in temporary accommodation away from their 
community support network. 

 
The Chair of the Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee questioned whether 
the rent amounts in appendix 3 reflected the current situation as, she advised, 
landlords were increasing rents after evicting tenants.  She stated that the time taken 
to move new tenants into social rented housing after the previous tenants had left 
was too long.  She expressed concern at the costs of bed-and-breakfast 
accommodation and stated that cheaper alternatives should be considered.  She 
questioned why Camden’s figures for households in temporary accommodation were 
so much lower than Manchester’s.  She questioned whether community connection 
could be taken into account when allocating social housing and whether more could 
be done to incentivise families to allow their adult children to live with them.  
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Assistant Director of Homelessness 
reported that the count of rough sleepers was city-wide and included the airport.  He 
agreed with a Member’s comment that answering 85% of calls was still not good 
enough but advised that improvements were being made incrementally, that 
significant progress had already been made in the number of calls being answered 
and that the service would continue to work to improve this further.   
 
The Strategic Lead for Homelessness invited Members to contact her if they wanted 
to join one of the counts of rough sleepers.  She reported that work was taking place 
to encourage people to access the Housing Solutions Service digitally to increase 
capacity and make the service more easily accessible, while recognising that many 
people preferred to contact the service by telephone.  She reported that her service 
worked with the Dogs Trust and that there were hostels in the city which were very 
dog-friendly and others which would consider accepting pets on a case-by-case 
basis.  In response to a question about right-sizing, she advised that her service 
could assist people who were in properties which were too large for them to find a 
suitable-sized property and provide other incentives, such as helping an older person 
with packing and moving or carpeting or decorating the new property. 
 
In response to a question about case checks, the Assistant Director of 
Homelessness outlined how, over a ten-week period, service managers would come 
to have a firm understanding of all live homeless application cases.   
 

Page 68

Item 12



 

In response to a Member’s question, the Strategic Lead (Housing) provided an 
overview of the work to build more affordable homes in the city.   
 
The Deputy Leader reported that more investment was needed from national 
government to build affordable housing, including social rented housing, at the scale 
that was needed, although the Council was working hard with its partners to 
maximise what could be delivered.  She advised that the case needed to be made to 
the next national government about what big cities needed from them to address the 
housing crisis, and in the meantime, Members should continue to lobby on Section 
21 evictions and the Local Housing Allowance. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Assistant Director of Homelessness advised 
that the future plans for the ‘A Bed Every Night’ (ABEN) scheme and the Etrop 
Service were still being discussed.  He advised that the focus on families in relation 
to the 200 units was due to the legal position that bed-and-breakfast accommodation 
was never suitable for a family and could only be used in exceptional circumstances 
and then for no longer than six weeks, and also the negative impact that being in 
bed-and-breakfast accommodation had on children; however, he highlighted other 
work focused on single people which was detailed in the report.  He advised that the 
200 units would be almost exclusively within Manchester although consideration 
could be given to locations on the borders of the city.  He advised that placing 
families in these 200 units would save the Council £7 million per year and provide 
them with decent accommodation.  He explained how Camden’s allocations policy 
encouraged people to contact the Council earlier which gave more time to find a 
solution for their housing issue and that this had informed the proposal for 
Manchester to change its allocations policy.  In response to a Member’s question, he 
advised that there was no timeframe for how long someone could be placed in 
temporary accommodation and that it was usually until a longer term accommodation 
offer could be found, which could be a number of years.  In response to a question 
about people who could not provide a guarantor, which was requested by some 
private landlords, he advised that the service considered each case on an individual 
basis and would negotiate with landlords to reach an equitable solution. 
  
The Director of Housing Operations informed the Committee that his service was 
looking at 44 Council assets which could be considered for re-purposing as 
accommodation.  He outlined how homelessness prevention work would help keep 
people in their own communities with their support networks.  He advised that the 
number of void social rented properties had significantly reduced and was now less 
than 1.5% of housing stock. 
 
The Chair asked whether the Committee had received a response to the letter sent to 
Michael Gove in November 2022 and, as they had not, requested that a further letter 
be sent, inviting him to Manchester to see the impact of the government’s policies in 
the city and to see the strengths of the people of Manchester and the great work that 
Council officers were doing.  She also thanked officers for their work. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To write to Michael Gove to invite him to visit Manchester. 

 

Page 69

Item 12



 

2. To receive a further report early in the next municipal year. 
 
CESC/23/03   Bonfire Night Events 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) 
which provided an overview of the approach to planning and delivery of a safe 
Bonfire/fireworks season. The report included details of anti-social behaviour during 
this period and an assessment of the impact of the Council’s decision not to reinstate 
Bonfire Night events during 2022. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Background information; 

• The Greater Manchester Bonfire Campaign 2022; 

• Bonfire and fireworks incidents; and 

• The future of Bonfire Night events. 
 
Paula Lyons from GMFRS informed the Committee that her service’s official report 
would not be available until early February but that it would be shared with partners 
when it was available.  She reported that the service’s data showed that there had 
been a slight increase in bonfire and firework-related incidents in 2022 but fewer 
attacks on firefighters, with two incidents involving the throwing of fireworks at 
firefighters and fire engines. 
 
Superintendent Paul Walker from GMP reported that it was expected that there 
would be a level of anti-social behaviour up to and including Bonfire Night and that 
the levels in 2022 were as expected in a typical year. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• That official Bonfire Night displays held in Wythenshawe Park in previous 
years had created problems for local people, for example in relation to 
parking, and that, as a local Ward Councillor, a Member had received positive 
comments from residents about not having this issue around Bonfire Night 
2022, rather than people complaining that an official event was not held;  

• The environmental impact of Bonfire Night events, including people travelling 
to an official display; 

• The community events and activities to replace Bonfire Night displays and 
whether these were held in or attracted people from the wards highlighted in 
the report as the worst affected by fireworks incidents; and 

• Identifying shops which were selling fireworks to children. 
 
The Head of Parks outlined the reasons for not reinstating the Bonfire Night displays 
in 2022, including the funding gap which would have required diverting funds from 
other areas, the environmental impact of the events and that, with the cost-of-living 
rise, many people were less able to afford to spend money on the income-generating 
elements of the events, such as food and drink stalls and funfairs.  She informed 
Members about alternative events which were being provided throughout the winter 
period, which had included the provision of free or low-cost food.  She reported that 
she could provide details of the events broken down by localities.  She advised that 

Page 70

Item 12



 

not having to plan and prepare for the Bonfire Night events had enabled Parks staff 
to focus on engaging with local residents and raising quality standards but that the 
decision would be reviewed for 2023.  In response to a Member’s question, she 
confirmed that the Council had previously applied for and received a grant of £10,000 
from GMFRS towards safely putting on Bonfire Night events but that, if the Council 
had applied for the grant for 2022, they would only have been able to bid for £5,000. 
 
In response to a Member’s question, the Head of Compliance, Enforcement, and 
Community Safety reported that it was difficult to establish whether there was a 
causal link between anti-social behaviour and official Bonfire Night displays being 
held but that, when the full figures for 2022 were available, officers would be able to 
undertake a more detailed analysis.  She reported that her service had undertaken 
visits to fireworks retailers but had received no complaints this year of under-age 
sales.  She advised that test purchases would be undertaken at any retailers for 
which they received complaints about under-age sales.  She reported that her 
service would use the analysis of the data from 2022 to identify areas where there 
were higher levels of firework incidents and look at fireworks retailers in those areas. 
 
Paula Lyons reported that a range of factors, such as the weather, impacted on the 
level of incidents around Bonfire Night and that GMFRS had increased its community 
intervention with schools in the build-up to Bonfire Night 2022 which could have 
impacted on the number of incidents. 
 
The Chair reported that residents in her ward had been disappointed not to have a 
Bonfire Night display in their local park but that, instead, a well-attended and well-
received event had taken place in the run-up to Christmas.  She thanked officers for 
putting on that event and requested that a similar event take place in 2023.  
 
The Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods reported that it had been a 
difficult decision not to go ahead with the official Bonfire Night displays in 2022 but 
that it had been the right decision, based on the information so far, although they 
were still waiting for all the data to be available to make a full evaluation.  She 
outlined the considerable amount of work over months involving different Council 
services and partners to put on safe, funded Bonfire Night events.  She informed 
Members that work was taking place to ensure that there were other activities in 
parks and ensure that parks were used all year round.  She advised that young 
people did not always feel safe on Bonfire Night and that the Council was looking to 
put alternative events in place and she encouraged Members to contact her with any 
suggestions they had.  She offered to provide a further update at an appropriate time. 
 
The Chair recognised the hard work of officers and thanked GMP and GMFRS for all 
their work to keep Manchester residents safe. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
 
 
 

Page 71

Item 12



 

CESC/23/04  Advice Services Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Housing Operations which 
provided an overview of the advice services within the city. It detailed the range of 
provision across the city and outlined the outcomes achieved through the advice 
contracts that the Council commissioned. It articulated the pressures that were 
increasing for all advice providers in serving Manchester’s population and explained 
the offer that other advice providers gave, including the Council’s retained advice 
service and Registered Providers provision. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• An overview of the advice services in Manchester; 

• Advice demand, trends, and pressures, including the impact of cost-of-living 
rises; 

• The impact of the City Wide Advice Service contract, including social value 
and tackling inequalities; 

• Manchester Advice Forum; 

• The response to COVID-19; and 

• Future demand and delivery. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: - 
 

• To praise the work of advice workers and their tenacity in contacting 
companies to seek a resolution; 

• That the problems residents were contacting Ward Councillors about were 
increasingly complex and it would be helpful for Members to be provided with 
some guidance or training on where best to signpost residents depending on 
the situations they needed advice on;  

• Access to advice services for people who were working during the day; 

• To note that trade unions provided advice on employment issues to their 
members and to encourage workers to join a trade union; and 

• How the locations for the Mobile Advice Van were communicated. 
 
The Strategic Lead for Homelessness agreed to work with advice organisations to 
arrange training for Members.  She reported that work had taken place to improve 
digital access to advice outside of office hours, including a digital chatbox.  She 
advised that over the next year the Council would be reviewing what was needed in 
terms of advice services, in preparation for putting in place a new contract from 2024, 
and that this would include consideration about what was needed in terms of advice 
access on evenings and weekends. 
 
In response to the Member’s question about the Mobile Advice Van, the Service 
Manager (Homelessness) reported that Citizens Advice had targeted publicity in the 
areas where the Advice Van was visiting and that she would speak to Citizens Advice 
and the Council’s Communications Team about improving communication in regards 
to this, if Members were not seeing this information.  The Member stated that the 
Advice Van might not currently be visiting her ward but that it would be useful if it did.  
The Deputy Leader advised that Members could suggest to Citizens Advice any 

Page 72

Item 12



 

locations that they felt that the Advice Van should visit via their website, or through 
her or the Service Manager. 
 
In response to a question from the Chair, the Strategic Lead for Homelessness 
advised that retained advice services were within the Adult Social Care Directorate.  
She informed the Committee that representatives from a core group of services were 
meeting to look at how best to serve the demands arising from the cost-of-living 
crisis.  The Deputy Leader reported that an additional £200,000 would be spent in 
2023/24 to give additional capacity to advice services in response to the cost-of-living 
crisis. 
 
The Chair welcomed the work taking place and asked that the Committee’s thanks 
be passed on to all those providing advice services across the city. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To receive an update at an appropriate time. 

 
2. To request that Ward Councillors be provided with training on signposting 

residents to advice services. 
 
[Councillor Wilson declared a disclosable pecuniary interest as an employee of the 
Trussell Trust and left the room for this item.] 
 
CESC/23/05  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained a list of key decisions yet to be taken within the Committee’s remit, 
responses to previous recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, 
which the Committee was asked to approve. 
 
The Chair proposed that the Committee receive the update report on Homelessness 
in either May or June 2023 and requested that Committee Members be provided with 
a briefing note on the analysis of the information on Bonfire Night 2022, when this 
was available. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme, subject to the above comments. 
 
 

Page 73

Item 12



 

Page 74

Item 12



Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 6 December 2022 
 
 
Present:  
Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Andrews, Davies, Lanchbury, B Priest, Rowles and Wheeler 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources  
Councillor White, Executive Member for Housing and Development  
Councillor Stanton, Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources  
Councillor H Priest, Member of the Housing Advisory Board  
Christine Leyland, Co-opted Member of the Housing Advisory Board  
Safeena Rather, Co-opted Member of the Housing Advisory Board 
 
Apologies: Councillor Good and Kirkpatrick 
 
 
RGSC/22/53 Urgent Business  
 
Upon opening the meeting, the Chair informed members that meetings of the 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee would be held on Thursday 
mornings from the start of the new municipal year in May 2023. 
 
RGSC/22/54 Minutes  
 
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 8 November 2022 be approved as 
a correct record.  
 
RGSC/22/55 Housing Advisory Board  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Strategic Director – Neighbourhoods, 
which provided an update on the new governance arrangements in respect of the 
Council’s housing stock. The new Housing Advisory Board provided oversight of 
Manchester City Council Housing Services, which was formerly Northwards ALMO, 
and was a key contributor to empowering tenants and ensuring that North 
Manchester residents helped to shape and held the Council’s Housing Service to 
account. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         In January 2021, Manchester City Council agreed to bring the ALMO 
Northwards Housing back in house and the transfer of the ALMO took place 
on 5 July 2021; 

•         The Housing Advisory Board began meeting in July 2022 and the Resources 
and Governance Scrutiny Committee was instrumental in its formation; 

Page 75

Item 12



•         The purpose of the Housing Advisory Board and the key responsibilities of 
Board Members; 

•         The Board meets bi-monthly and was made up of 5 local residents/tenants, 6 
elected members (including the Chair, Exec Member for Housing and 
Development) and 3 co-opted housing professionals; 

•         The recruitment of the resident members to the board received a very high 
response, with over 300 residents expressing an interest. Officers remain in 
contact with all applicants to ensure a diverse network to engage with on 
future plans and current performance;  

•         Deep dive sessions on areas of particular focus and interest, such as the 
Housing Revenue Account, Zero Carbon and the Social Housing Bill, are 
undertaken as part of the Board’s collective learning and development; and  

•         There are two audit recommendations to fully implement over the remainder 
of the financial year, which relate to learning and development and further 
equalities reporting. 

  
Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussion included: 
  

• A previous recommendation made by the Committee for all Housing Advisory 

Board agendas to be circulated to all members, and why this had not 

happened; 

• Whether the Board’s remit required revision to include private finance initiative 

(PFI) properties; 

• How the Board could encourage residents to remain engaged; and 

• The number of voids - when a property is unoccupied for a period of time – 

and what was causing such a high level. 

  

In introducing the item, the Executive Member for Housing and Development advised 

the committee that the Housing Advisory Board had met three times and that the 

governance of the Board was robust.  

  

Members of the Housing Advisory Board, including a local elected member and 

independent co-opted members, attended the meeting and provided their insights 

into the work of the Housing Advisory Board. They explained their motivations for 

joining the Board and their role in holding the Board to account.  

  

The Director of Housing Operations responded to members’ queries and committed 

to sharing all past and future agendas for the Housing Advisory Board to members.  

  

The Executive Member for Housing and Development acknowledged a local gap in 

the governance of PFI properties and welcomed members’ feedback.  

  

In response to a member query on further engagement with residents, the Director of 

Housing Operations confirmed that this would continue and highlighted the significant 

engagement with a strong network of residents. He also highlighted new tenant 

satisfaction measures, as part of the Social Housing Bill requiring statutory tenant 

engagement. There was much to collaborate with residents on and the Housing 

Advisory Board would oversee a systematic approach to this.  

Page 76

Item 12



  

The Executive Member for Housing and Development also suggested the possibility 

of undertaking tenant scrutiny panels as the Board progressed. 

  

The Executive Member for Housing and Development explained that the Council had 

inherited a high level of voids from Northwards when the council housing stock was 

brought in-house. This was largely due to the Covid pandemic which had caused a 

backlog of repairs and labour and issues in accessing properties, which was a 

challenge faced by the housing provider sector as a whole. The issue of voids had 

been considered at every meeting of the Housing Advisory Board with a deep dive 

undertaken at the last meeting.  

  

The Executive Member for Housing and Development explained that the number of 

voids was reported at the last Board meeting as 178, which was a reduction but 

remained significant. He commented that the Council strongly sought to reduce the 

overall number of voids, particularly given housing need in Manchester. Work was 

being undertaken to assess the relet programme, handover of keys, use of 

contractors and void standard in order to reduce the number of unoccupied 

properties. He also advised members that there was a target of less than 100 voids 

by April 2023.  

  

Decision: 

  

That the report be noted.  

  
RGSC/22/56 Housing Revenue Account  
 
The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, 
Strategic Director – Growth and Development and Strategic Director – 
Neighbourhoods which provided an update on the ongoing work being undertaken to 
finalise the 2023/24 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) budget. The final proposed 
budget would be brought back to Members in March as part of budget approvals. 
  
The report also outlined the current assumptions for the 2023/24 HRA budget and the 
impact of the proposals on both the HRA and tenants, given the current economic 
climate and cost-of-living pressures. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         The HRA is a ring-fenced account and must, in general, balance on a year-to-
year basis, so that the costs of running the Housing Service, can be met from 
HRA income; 

•         The Government stipulates that registered providers may not increase rents 
by more than Consumer Price Inflation (at September of the previous year) 
plus one percentage point in any year, although the Chancellor of the 
Exchequer announced in the November 2022 Autumn Statement that social 
housing rents would be capped at an increase of no more than 7% due to 
current high inflation rates. 

Page 77

Item 12



•         HRA reserves are forecast to be around c£90m at the end of the current 
financial year (2022/23) and are forecast to reduce to around £44m by 
2026/27; 

•         As of October 2022, the HRA is forecasting that expenditure for the current 
year will be £17.7m higher than income and this would be funded through the 
use of reserves 

•         The HRA budget was being modelled on the basis of a 7% rent increase to all 
tenants with effect from April 2023 and if this increase is approved by 
members, it would produce an average weekly rent (based on 52 weeks) of: 

o   General Needs £83.88 (£5.49 increase) 

o   Supported Housing £76.45 (£5.00 increase) 

o   PFI Managed £98.15 (£6.42 increase) 

•         Housing benefit levels had not been capped and any approved rent increase 
would be covered in full for those residents in receipt of 100% Housing Benefit 
entitlement or Universal Credit (housing element). 

  
The key points and queries which arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

• Whether the government would fund the difference between the 7% rent cap 

and 11.1%, which would have been the proposed increase had the rent cap 

not been applied; 

• Work undertaken to mitigate inflationary pressures and ‘bad debt’, including 

non-payment of rent; 

• The extra work required to address voids and issues with damp and mould in 

properties; 

• Whether any flexibility was built into the budget regarding heat charges, given 

that the energy price cap will end in March 2023; 

• How the Council was ensuring deliverability on the contract with Equans, who 

were commissioned to bring voids back into use; 

• Seeking clarification as to whether the Council had assumed an annual 3% 

rent increase from 2024/25 onwards;  

• Types of hardship funds and cost-of-living support provided by other 

Registered Providers in Manchester; 

• Residents’ views on the level of voids in Manchester, and whether there were 

any particular “hotspots” for these; 

• The viability of the Right to Buy scheme, and the impact this has on the 

Housing Revenue Account;  

• Emphasising that the 7% rent cap is a limit and not a requirement, and that a 

7% rent increase would have a significantly detrimental impact on many 

Manchester families. 

  

In introducing the report, the Executive Member for Finance and Resources 

explained to the committee that a decision was still to be taken on the Council’s rent 

increase for 2023/24. He explained that the government had undertaken a 

consultation on whether to impose a rent cap of either 3%, 5% or 7%, which 

contrasted with the national rent policy which allowed social housing rents to be 

increased by up to the consumer price index (CPI) plus 1% and would have meant 

next year’s rents increasing by 11.1%.  

Page 78

Item 12



  

He advised that a 7% cap had been imposed but acknowledged the inflationary 

pressures facing the Housing Revenue Account, which was required to balance for a 

30-year period.  

  

The Executive Member for Finance and Resources also confirmed that the 

government would not fund the difference between the 7% rent cap and the 11.1% 

based on CPI.  

  

The Head of Finance for Corporate Core and Strategic Development advised that a 

provision of 1% per annum based on rental income had been built into the business 

plan for bad debts and this would be kept under review. However, previous 

experiences indicated that concerns over the introduction of Universal Credit leading 

to an increase in non-payment of rent were unfounded and this was largely due to 

work undertaken by Northwards previously and the Council presently in building 

relations with tenants and promoting early intervention.  

  

The Director of Housing Operations explained that removing damp and mould was 

part of the Council’s repairs programme and that this had been prioritised lately given 

recent events surrounding the death of a child due to mould in social housing 

elsewhere in the country.  

  

In response to a member query around heating charges, the Head of Finance for 

Corporate Core and Strategic Development explained that the previous year’s budget 

included a 20% cap for heating charges and increases in the Ofgem price cap and 

heating charges had resulted in an in-year deficit within the HRA. Officers were 

working through the impact of this for 2023/24 and this would be brought back to the 

committee in February 2023 as part of the budget approval process.  

  

Regarding the work of Equans, members were advised that the contract began in 

April 2021 with 6500 outstanding repairs jobs, of which 2000 remained. The number 

of voids had decreased from 260 at the commencement of the contract to 178, and a 

plan had been devised for March and April 2023 to get the number of voids back to 

the pre-pandemic figure.  

  

Assurances were provided by both the Executive Member for Housing and 

Development and the Director of Housing Operations that the Council was doing all it 

could within the current contract to reduce the number of voids and outstanding 

repairs sand to ensure value-for-money for residents and the HRA.  

  

The Head of Finance for Corporate Core and Strategic Development clarified that 

calculations of the surplus and deficit of the HRA’s 30-year business plan were based 

on implementing either a 3%, 5% or 7% increase in 2023/24 and reverting to usual 

practice of an increase based on CPI plus 1% in subsequent years.  

  

Page 79

Item 12



The Head of Strategic Housing also committed to providing additional information on 

the types of hardship funds and cost-of-living support provided by other Registered 

Providers in Manchester following the meeting.  

  
In response to members’ queries around residents views on the number of voids, the 
Executive Member for Housing and Development explained that the Housing 
Advisory Board had undertaken a ‘deep dive’ into the issue of voids at its last 
meeting and residents expressed strong views on the issue. He emphasised the 
moral responsibility of the Council in helping those in temporary accommodation and 
on the housing register. The Director of Housing Operations also advised that 
engagement had been undertaken with residents during the summer with over 500 
responses as to what residents wanted from the service. Many comments were 
centred around increased visibility in the community and repairs.  
  
It was noted that hotspots for voids could be identified by tenure type, particularly 
around older stock. The Executive Member for Housing and Development 
endeavoured to look into geographical hotspots and provide an update to members.  
  
The Head of Finance for Corporate Core and Strategic Development provided 
assurances around the impact of the Right to Buy scheme on the HRA and explained 
that assumptions on housing stock were built into the 30-year business plan. It was 
noted, however, that expenditure would need to be reduced to offset any reduction in 
rent income as a result of residents utilising the scheme. The Executive Member for 
Housing and Development also highlighted the Council’s progress in building more 
social housing to offset any reductions and expressed his desire for the Right to Buy 
scheme to be either scrapped or fundamentally reformed to ensure financial 
sustainability.  
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources recognised the hardships which 
residents were facing and urged residents to take advantage of the Hardship Fund 
offered by the Council.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
 
RGSC/22/57 Capital Programme - Impact of Recent Market Changes and 

           Budget Process  
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which provided an update on the impact of recent changes in the financial and 
construction markets on the capital programme and provided an update on the 
proposed capital budget process for 2023/24. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         The current forecast for the approved capital programme over this year and 
the next 3 years is £1,037.8m; 

Page 80

Item 12



•         The Council has seen costs rise across the programme since the start of 
2022 and some projects have sought budget increases given the severity of 
the cost increases; 

•         Whilst the forecast over the medium term is for inflation to subside, the price 
increases are not expected to reverse; 

•         The cost of debt available to the Council from the Public Works Loan Board 
has on average more than doubled since December 2021, resulting in 
increased ongoing revenue costs associated with additional borrowing; 

•         The current approved programme remains affordable and the Council has 
budgeted for capital financing costs across a number of years and built up a 
capital financing reserve from funding including underspends in the historic 
annual capital financing budget to smooth the effects of potential increases in 
interest rates; 

•         A set of principles were proposed to ensure that the limited capital resources 
are prioritised to achieve best value for money. Projects should demonstrate 
that they support corporate priorities, including both low carbon and social 
value, and will be supported to proceed if: 

o   the project is fully funded by external grants and contributions; 

o   the project generates additional capital receipts to the Council, so the 

impact on resources is minimal; or 
o   the project will generate a robust net income stream or revenue savings 

that is sufficient to meet the associated capital financing costs and 
therefore be funded on an invest to save basis 

•         Additional borrowing will only be considered for funding a project as a last 
resort, if there are no other funding sources available and the project is of 
critical importance to the Council; 

•         Proposed changes to the approval process for capital expenditure, to ensure 
it remains fit for purpose, reflects best practice and provides a strategic top-
down as well as bottom-up approach to the development of the future 
programme; 

•         Proposals would continue to be developed and would form part of the Capital 
Strategy to go to Executive in February 2023.  

  
In introducing the item, the Chair informed the committee that he had recently 
undertaken a tour of the Town Hall, which was undergoing renovation, and 
encouraged other members to do the same.  
  
The key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

•         The proposed changes to when key decisions are taken on capital 
expenditure, and the impact this would have on the call-in process; 

•         Requesting an update on the progress of the Council’s Levelling Up Funding 
(LUF) bid;  

•         If the Council was intending on taking a tougher line on Section 106 payments 
given the necessity of this revenue stream; 

•         Expressing concern over a suggestion that S106 monies could be used to 
fund projects which were not in the area of the awarding development, and 
how local members would be involved in the process;  

Page 81

Item 12



•         How the implementation of a due diligence template would facilitate a more 
robust decision-making process; and 

•         Seeking clarification as to the amount of additional borrowing required to fund 
the capital programme.  

  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that the capital programme 
existed in a more constrained environment given the increased cost of borrowing and 
inflation rate. The current capital programme had facilitated significant investment in 
Manchester and highlighted the parameters for future programmes.  
  
In response to a query from the Chair regarding the proposal to amend the 
Constitution to allow key decisions for capital expenditure to be taken at the point that 
the budget increase is approved, the Deputy City Treasurer confirmed that this would 
allow the call-in process to begin at the time that the budget is set, as opposed to 
when a contract is awarded. This would improve transparency and the role of the 
Scrutiny Committee.  
  
The Deputy City Treasurer advised members that the Council was successful in the 
first round of Levelling Up Funding and a bid had been submitted within the second 
round for the regeneration of Wythenshawe district centre. Any funding would be 
capped at £20 million and a decision was anticipated before Christmas.  He also 
acknowledged the need for the Council to only apply for grants and funding which is 
relevant to the corporate priorities.  
  
It was clarified that any S106 monies would continue to be linked to the schemes to 
which they are associated and that the proposed changes to the capital approval 
process were aimed to bring funding streams together to maximise resources and 
target priorities.  The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer stated that the 
report highlighted the importance of maximising all income streams, including S106, 
and making sensible decisions around the capital programme.  
  
With regards to the proposed due diligence template, the Deputy City Treasurer 
explained that this would form an initial ‘sense test’ for projects to ensure they fit with 
the Council’s priorities, whether it could generate external funding, budget 
implications and deliverability.   
  
The Deputy City Treasurer also explained that the capital programme would cost c£1 
billion over 5 years with the Council borrowing around half of this. This amount had 
not yet been borrowed fully but Members were assured that the Council had the 
budget and means to repay this.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
 
RGSC/22/58 Update on Autumn Statement  
 
The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which provided an updates on the main announcements from the Autumn Statement 
delivered by the Chancellor of the Exchequer, Jeremy Hunt MP, to the House of 

Page 82

Item 12



Commons on 17 November 2022. The report also focused on the implications of the 
Statement for local government funding. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         A total of £55bn was announced in either public spending cuts or tax rises; 

•         Pensions and benefits were increased by the September 2022 inflation rate of 
10.1% and would come into place in April 2023; 

•         Government department spend will increase more slowly than planned, below 
the current inflation rate, with exceptions in health and education, which have 
had increases in their budgets; 

•         The financial impact on the Council’s position remained unknown until the 
finance settlement is received in late December; 

•         Positive announcements were around increased funding for adult social care, 
a continued freeze of the business rates multiplier and an extension and 
enhancement of the Retail, Hospitality and Leisure (RHL) reliefs scheme into 
2023/24, plus a Supporting Small Business Scheme (SSBS); 

•         The announcements within the Autumn Statement were expected to have a 
positive impact on the funds available to the council for the next couple of 
years but there remained significant unknowns around the New Homes Bonus, 
the Services Grant and the Fair Funding Review; and 

•         The Statement’s focus on three core priorities for economic growth -energy, 
infrastructure and innovation. 

  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources stated that there were some 
positives announced in the Chancellor’s Autumn Statement, although he asserted 
that many difficult decisions after 2025 would need to be taken by local authorities 
and not the government.  
  
He explained that the Council would benefit from compensation from the business 
rates multiplier freeze and increased funding for adult social care. The Council’s 
financial position would become clearer upon receipt of the Finance Settlement, 
which was expected in late December 2022.  
  
He advised the committee that there was inadequate support within the Autumn 
Statement to mitigate against the financial implications currently facing local 
authorities and there was no guarantee that future funding would rise in line with 
inflation.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
  
 
RGSC/22/59 Setting of the Council Tax Base and Business Rates Shares for 

Budget Setting Purposes  
 
The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 

which outlined the methodology of calculating the City Council's council tax base and 

business rates income for budget setting purposes for 2023/24. The report also 

Page 83

Item 12



explained the timing of related payments and the decision on business rates pool 

membership. 

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

• The calculation of the council tax base is the number of dwellings within the 
Council’s boundary presented as ‘Band D equivalent’. Dwellings outside Band 
D are converted into a proportionate Band D value and individual band bills 
are calculated in the ratios proportionate to Band D; 

• The number of properties is adjusted to take account of discounts and 
exemptions for disabled occupants, single occupiers, students, exempt 
dwellings and reductions in accordance with the council tax support scheme 
and non-collection of council tax; 

• The fluctuating numbers of students and the transient population in 

Manchester make it difficult to predict how many properties will be exempt, 

empty or occupied by a single person; 

• Manchester has been part of the Greater Manchester business rates retention 

pilot since 2017/18 which means that 99% of yield will be retained by the 

Council and 1% paid to the Greater Manchester Combined Authority; 

• The starting point for the calculation of the business rates base is the estimate 

of gross business rates payable by business ratepayers in 2023/24 and is 

adjusted by the forecast cost of mandatory and discretionary reliefs; 

• The Council is required to estimate any business rates surplus or deficit on 

their Collection Fund for the relevant year and any such estimated surplus or 

deficit is shared between the billing authority and the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority; 

• An application was submitted to Government for the ten Greater Manchester 

authorities to form a Business Rates Pool in 2023/24 and each authority will 

need approval, through its respective governance arrangements, with a final 

decision on whether to participate in the 2023/24 Pool required within 28 days 

of the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement, which is expected in 

late December; and 

• Payment dates for the share of council tax payable to the Greater Manchester 

Combined Authority must be agreed and notified before 31 January 2023. The 

payment dates are proposed as the 20th of each month for 2023/24; and  

• How the Council approaches Council Tax debt recovery. 

  
In introducing the item, the Chair thanked officers for providing additional information 
regarding the Council’s procedure for debt recovery, which was included as an 
addendum to the report.  
  
The key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

•         Commending the Council for a reduction in using enforcement agents to 
recover debts, and querying what more could be done to reduce this; 

•         The Council’s procedure for dealing with complaints made against 
Enforcement Agents; 

•         Noting that the recovery process would stop if a resident contacted the 
Council and made and kept to an arrangement for payment; 

Page 84

Item 12



•         The need to recognise those facing mental health issues and how this 
impacts their ability to deal with financial difficulties and debts; 

•         Whether any information sharing was in place with partners to gain a clearer 
understanding of the personal circumstances of those who owed money; 

•         Noting that there was an increase of c.8000 Band D equivalent properties for 
2022/23, and how many more were anticipated for 2023/24; 

•         How the Council’s membership in a business rates pool with other Greater 
Manchester authorities would be advantageous; and 

•         Whether the Council would be required to pay central government if there was 
a decline in business rates growth in Manchester. 

The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that decisions around the 
estimated council tax surplus or deficit for 2022/23; the 2023/24 council tax base; the 
estimated business rates surplus or deficit for 2022/23; the 2023/24 business rates 
income; the Council’s membership in the business rate pool with other Greater 
Manchester local authorities; and the dates of precept payments to the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority would be taken as Key Decisions by the Deputy 
Chief Executive and City Treasurer, in consultation with the Executive Member for 
Finance and Resources, and that the Chair of the Resources and Governance 
Scrutiny Committee would be requested to waive these decisions from the call-in 
procedure.  
  
She also explained that the Council’s business rates position was particularly 
complex for 2023/24 due to the pending re-evaluation and the Council tax position 
was increasingly volatile due to the need to ascertain correct estimates for student 
exemptions and new properties.  
  
In response to a question around what more could be done to reduce the use of 
Enforcement Agents in collecting money owed, the Head of Corporate Revenues 
advised that over the last 10 years, the Council had utilised all information they had 
to contact and engage with residents who owed money to come to a mutually 
sustainable solution. The Council was also identifying companies who encourage 
residents through text messages and automated phone calls to engage with the 
Council. This had been trialled in other areas and had a good response rate.  
  
He also informed members of a HMRC trial, which provided the Council with 
information on residents’ employer and earnings and further encouraged them to 
contact the Council. Staff were currently making contact with those residents earning 
over £40,000 pa. 
  
Officers had been instructed to take account of cost-of-living pressures when making 
sustainable arrangements, recognising the pressure on resident's finances. 
  
The Head of Corporate Revenues advised that all Enforcement Agents wear body 
cameras with audio and visual recording functionality, and this could be utilised in 
response to a complaint. He explained that work was undertaken several years ago 
to examine the number of complaints against Enforcement Agents, and this was low, 
with around 5 complaints per company per year. He also provided an example where 
the Council had requested that a particular Enforcement Agent did not work in 
Manchester due to a complaint around conduct.  

Page 85

Item 12



  
Members were also informed of criteria within the Enforcement Agents’ Code of 
Practice, such as mental health issues and recent bereavement, which required 
Agents to desist from visiting a resident who may be suffering or dealing with 
personal issues. All enforcement companies had Vulnerability Teams, who would 
assume responsibility for collecting money owed in a sensitive manner. The Council 
would also take any mitigating information around mental health or personal 
circumstances into account before passing details over to Enforcement Agents and 
would make further efforts to engage with residents prior to this.  
  
A GDPR issue was acknowledged in response to a question around information 
sharing with partners, but the Revenues team had provided training previously to the 
Adult Social Care officers on council tax, to enable staff in the community to 
understand the payment process and encourage residents to pay. The Head of 
Revenues, Benefits and Customer Services explained that his service was looking at 
how best to link with the cost-of-living advice service which offered pathways to 
advice and support related to benefits, help with rent, debt and food poverty and 
worked in conjunction with Citizens Advice Manchester to provide holistic support to 
residents and acknowledge the wider issues as to why a resident may be in council 
tax arrears. 
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained, in response to a question 
from the Chair, that future forecasts of Band D equivalent properties were aligned 
with information from the Council’s housing department on proposed new 
developments, but this is not an exact figure as properties are not formally 
recognised until assessed by the Valuation Office. 
  
The Deputy Chief Treasurer advised that a 2% increase in the tax base was 
assumed for 2023/24 and would provide a figure as to how many properties this 
equated to following the meeting.  
  
It was stated that the Greater Manchester business rates pool would be 
advantageous for Manchester City Council if the pool was not a part of the 100% 
business rates growth pilot as this would enable the Council to retain its entire 
business rates income. Membership of the 50% business rates growth pilot would 
mean that grant funding would be provided to 9 of 10 Greater Manchester authorities, 
including Manchester City Council, with Trafford Council having to pay a tariff to 
central government and would be disadvantageous to the Greater Manchester 
economy.  
  
The Deputy City Treasurer advised that there was a baseline of 97% for business 
rates growth, under which the government would compensate a local authority. He 
assured the committee that the business rates growth in Manchester was above 97% 
as a result of cumulated growth. 
  
In summarising the item, the Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
reiterated that the use of Enforcement Agents in collecting debts was a last resort, 
that residents had a minimum of 12 opportunities to engage with the Council 
regarding their payments and that those on the Council Tax Support Scheme would 
not be referred to Enforcement Agents. He also highlighted that low income was not 

Page 86

Item 12



always the reason why a person may not pay council tax. However, he stated that 
council tax formed a substantial part of the revenue budget and was needed to 
provide essential and basic services.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee 

  
1.    notes that the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer, in consultation with 

the Executive Member for Finance and Resources, has delegated powers to: 
  

•      agree the estimated council tax surplus or deficit for 2022/23;  
•      set the 2023/24 council tax base for tax setting purposes in accordance 

with the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) 
Regulations 2013; 

•      agree the estimated business rates surplus or deficit for 2022/23; 
•      calculate the 2023/24 business rates income for budget setting 

purposes in accordance with the Non-Domestic Rating (Rates 
Retention) Regulations; 

•      determine whether the Council should be part of a business rate pooling 
arrangements with other Greater Manchester local authorities in 
2023/24; 

•      set the dates of precept payments to the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority. 

  
2.    notes that the Chair of the Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 

will be requested to exempt various key decisions from the call-in procedure; 
and  
  

3.    recommends that the Council’s partner agencies be provided with training on 
Council Tax to provide a collaborative holistic approach to residents requiring 
support. 

RGSC/22/60 Overview Report  
 
The Committee considered the report by the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided details of key decisions that fell within the Committee’s remit and the 
Committee’s work programme, which was to be amended as appropriate and agreed.  
  
In response to a query regarding the Major Contracts Oversight Board, which the 
committee had recommended be established, the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer confirmed that a meeting had taken place in November with a further one 
scheduled for January 2023. It was agreed that a report on the work of the Board 
would be added to the Committee’s work programme for a suitable time.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted and the work programme agreed. 
 
 

Page 87

Item 12



 

Page 88

Item 12



Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 10 January 2023 
 
 
Present:  
Councillor Simcock (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Andrews, Davies, Good, Kirkpatrick, Lanchbury and Rowles 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Craig, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport  
Councillor Stanton, Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources  
 
Apologies: Councillor Wheeler 
 
 
RGSC/23/1 Interests  
 
During the course of discussions, Councillor Rowles declared a personal interest in 
item 6 – Decarbonisation of the Operational Estate.  
 
RGSC/23/2 Minutes  
 
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on Tuesday, 6 December 2022 be approved as 
a correct record.  
 
RGSC/23/3 Election Act 2022  
 
The committee considered a report of the Chief Executive, which outlined the 

planning and governance arrangements for the implementation of the Elections Act in 

Manchester. 

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

• The Elections Act 2022 was introduced to make new provision for and 

amendments to existing electoral law and will come into effect over the next 

two years, impacting delivery of Local Elections in 2023, the Local and 

Mayoral Elections in 2024, and the next Parliamentary General Election; 

• The main legislative changes, including: 

o Requiring voters to show an approved form of photo ID at polling 

stations before a ballot paper is issued 

o A requirement to provide reasonable equipment to assist voters with 

disabilities in polling stations 

Page 89

Item 12



o Allowing all British citizens living overseas to vote in UK Parliamentary 

elections, regardless of when they left the UK, with applications 

required every 3 years 

o Enabling electors to apply online for an absent vote, with both online 

and paper applications requiring the applicant’s identity to be verified 

o Requiring postal voters to reapply every three years 

o Further limit to the number of people an elector may act as proxy for 

o Political campaigners will no longer be permitted to handle postal votes, 

and the number of postal votes an individual can hand in at a polling 

station will be limited. 

o A review of the eligibility to vote for some EU citizens 

• The scheduled implementation of these changes and suitable ID for voters to 

show at polling stations; 

• Work was underway within the Council to plan the ‘front door’ access, and 

what is required for the electors’ journey and processing of their enquiry; 

• Modelling work had been undertaken with the support of Performance, 

Research and Intelligence (PRI) to determine what transaction volumes could 

look like in polling stations, to model resourcing requirements; 

• Staff numbers had been increased per station and an additional five stations 

have been added to polling places where historical information indicated a 

larger turnout; 

• Detail of the ‘customer journey’ in a station or the processes to check ID had 

not been finalised and shared by central government; 

• The Elections Strategic Lead for Greater Manchester was leading on a project 

to seek a consistent approach to reasonable equipment and processes at all 

Polling Stations across the ten Greater Manchester Districts and meetings are 

taking place with GM Disabled persons groups to take their views on what can 

be delivered and how to communicate these provisions to disabled voters; 

• The Electoral Commission will run a high-profile national campaign to raise 

awareness of the requirement for Voter ID, targeting those who may not 

already have the required photographic ID and a GM-wide approach to amplify 

this was proposed; and  

• Members will be briefed on the changes being implemented, with initial focus 

around changes affecting May 2023 polls. The Member Working Group will 

also be re-established to provide regular updates as more information 

becomes available. 

  

Key points and themes which arose from the committee’s discussions included: 

  

• The need for any specific electoral communications to be easily distinguished 

from other Council campaigns; 

• Commending the inclusion of videos in British Sign Language to communicate 

changes around Voter Authority Certificates (VAC);  

• Why only four housing associations were listed within the 2023 local elections 

communications approach;  

• Whether members would be briefed on progress with implementing the 

changes arising from the Elections Act;  

Page 90

Item 12



• Accessibility within polling stations and what flexibility there was to respond to 

unforeseen circumstances such as rain;  

• When further information on the customer journey in polling stations and 

written training information was expected from central government;  

• Noting that VACs can be applied for up until 6 working days before Election 

Day, and querying whether the Council had capacity to support this short 

timescale;  

• Whether any Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) had been devised to monitor 

a return on investment in the joint campaign across Greater Manchester; 

• If the joint GM campaign would utilise advertising space on screens across the 

city; 

• Whether any additional funding would be provided from central government to 

mitigate the costs associated with changes introduced by the Election Act; and 

•         Communications regarding voting by post, and whether postal voting would 
be encouraged as an alternative to the new voter ID arrangements. 

  

The Chair began discussions on the item by quoting a British Politics and Policy 

paper from the London School of Economics (LSE) which stated “Conservative MPs 

frame voter ID as necessary to strengthen confidence in the electoral system despite 

public confidence in the running of elections being at its highest” and a piece by a 

Young Voices UK contributor published on the Conservative Home website, which 

declared “The government has failed to offer a compelling justification for voter ID 

requirement beyond fearmongering about non-existent fraud. These new guidelines 

seem to be little more than a rushed attempt to grant themselves a slightly less 

embarrassing election result by excluding groups more likely to vote for a non-Tory 

candidate”. 

  

In introducing the item, the City Solicitor explained that elections were ran well in 

Manchester in part due to a strong core Elections Team and the use of the whole 

organisation during the election periods. She clarified that the Election Act would 

come into effect over time and that two key changes would be implemented from May 

2023 – voter ID and further accessibility requirements. The Electoral Commission’s 

consultation on voter ID was ongoing and the Council would wait to begin a 

communications campaign until the VAC application portal was launched.   

  

The Leader of the Council stated that around 2 million people across the UK would 

be impacted by the changes introduced within the Election Act as a result of not 

having the appropriate forms of ID required and that this would disproportionately 

impact those from disadvantaged and deprived communities and those at risk of 

social exclusion. She highlighted the serious and focused effort of the Council’s 

Elections team and reiterated that the Council would amplify communications from 

the Electoral Commission and Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) in 

addition to its own targeted campaign.  

  

The Head of Strategic Communications responded to members enquiries and 

provided assurances that the Council’s communications on VACs would be 

distinguishable from other campaigns. These would be created in the same style and 

Page 91

Item 12



using the same graphics as the Electoral Commission’s campaign, which featured a 

range of different colours. The format of communications would also be in line with 

the GM-wide approach.  

  

A need for the communications to be wide-reaching was acknowledged and it was 

confirmed that the list of housing associations identified as channels for 

communication with residents was not exhaustive. Members were asked to contact 

the Communications team with details of other housing or community organisations 

who could help to reach residents.  

  

The Electoral Services Corporate Delivery Manager explained that annual reviews 

were undertaken to ensure the accessibility of polling stations and risk assessments 

would be carried out with Presiding Officers, given their knowledge and experience of 

their polling station. Work was also being undertaken with GMCA and disability 

groups to ensure a consistent approach.  

  

With regards to the flexibility of polling stations in dealing with unforeseen challenges 

and demand, members were advised that command and control hubs were in 

operation on Election Day and Polling Station Inspectors (PSIs) attended polling 

stations throughout the day. It was noted that transaction times in polling stations 

may be longer as a result of the Election Act’s provisions and busier polling stations 

and staffing levels were being reviewed in response to this to mitigate queues and 

waiting times.   

  

Members were also advised that other cultural and social requirements could be met, 

for example all polling stations would have moveable privacy screens for those 

wearing facial coverings and the number of female polling station staff was currently 

being finalised. Further information on this would be provided to members once 

complete.  

  

Assurances were also provided that the changes arising from the Election Act would 

be covered in the Candidate and Agent Briefing and a Member Briefing was 

anticipated to be held.  

  

In response to members’ questions around capacity to manage the supply of VACs 

up to 6 days before an election, the City Solicitor advised that processes and 

resources were being put in place to enable VACs to be issued as soon as the 

government’s online portal was launched. The Customer Services team had also 

employed additional staff to deal with telephone enquiries and all customer-facing 

employees within Customer Services had been briefed on the changes and 

timescales. The Electoral Services Corporate Delivery Manager also assured that her 

team was familiar with working to deadlines and time constraints given the nature of 

their roles. It was noted that there may be external challenges or issues around 

delivery of VACs, given the recent industrial action by Royal Mail, and officers would 

continue to monitor the situation.  

  

Assurances were provided that additional staffing requirements had been adequately 

budgeted for and that the Council would apply for all available grants and funding 

Page 92

Item 12



sources to offset any financial implication on the authority, although it was 

acknowledged that any grants or funding would typically be received after 

expenditure.   

  

The Head of Strategic Communications informed the committee that it was difficult to 

scope KPIs for the communication campaign, but the Council would be able to 

measure and identify trends in social media engagement and the number of calls to 

the contact centre around key dates for the campaign.  

  

Members were also advised, in response to a query, that GMCA’s campaign 

approach included advertising on digital screens across the city. The costs involved 

in the purchase of this advertising space would be part-funded by Manchester City 

Council and by the Electoral Commission.  

  

In response to a query from the Chair regarding whether postal voting would be 

encouraged as an alternative to the new voter ID arrangements, it was stated that the 

Council would not actively promote one method of voting over another and the level 

of communications encouraging residents to register for a postal vote would remain 

the same as previous years. Residents would, however, be encouraged to register 

for a postal vote earlier if they wished to vote via this method. 

  

The Chair wished the Elections team and all staff involved in the running of elections 

good luck.  

  

Decision: 

  

That the Committee notes 

  

1. the progress being made by the Elections Team and the Election Steering 

Group in relation to changes that will be introduced by the Election Act 2022 

for the Local Elections on 4 May 2023; 

2. the communication plan for local residents with regard to the changes for the 

May 2023 polls; and 

3. the changes that will be introduced for polls after the local elections 2023.  
 
RGSC/23/4 Decarbonisation of the Operational Estate  
 
The committee considered a report of the Head of Estates and Facilities which 

outlined the activities and progress to date of the Zero Carbon Estate Programme 

and the decarbonisation of Manchester City Council’s operational estate. These 

included MCC and grant funded retrofit projects delivered under the Public Sector 

Decarbonisation Scheme and major capital schemes that were delivering energy 

efficiency and carbon reduction measures.  

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

Page 93

Item 12



• The Council declared a Climate Emergency in July 2019 which recognised the 

need for the Council, and the city as a whole, to do more to reduce CO2 

emissions and mitigate the negative impacts of climate change; 

• 316 buildings were reported against in the Buildings & Energy section of the 

Climate Change Action Plan 2020-25, including offices, depots, leisure 

centres, libraries, markets, properties that provide social care services to 

adults and children, buildings in parks and buildings owned by the council but 

operated by third parties; 

• CO2 emissions from the operational estate had reduced by 7,161 tonnes 

(29.7%) compared to the baseline set by the Council’s Climate Change Action 

Plan 2020-25; 

• The completed phases of the Zero Carbon Estate Programme which upgraded 

energy conservation measures and invested in heat decarbonisation, energy 

efficiency and generation projects in 11 leisure centres; 

• £18.2m of funding was received from the Public Sector Decarbonisation 

Scheme (PSDS) for phases 1 and 2 and a further £3.1m had been awarded 

for phase 3a. A third bid for £1.2m of PSDS funding to support energy efficiency 

projects at the Town Hall Extension and Woodhouse Park Active Lifestyle Centre is 

awaiting decision; 

• The projects currently being delivered; 

• 80 Energy Audits had been  commissioned from Equans to inform the long-

term strategy for investment, the total scale of opportunity and key challenges; 

• Other projects that are being delivered in addition to the Zero Carbon Estate 

Programme, which support the decarbonisation of the estate, including the 

refurbishment of the Town Hall; and  

• Potential challenges to decarbonisation. 

  

Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 

  

• Welcoming progress to date; 

• Whether the Council would be able to continue decarbonisation works at the 

same pace in order to meet ambitions, given the challenges identified in the 

report;  

• How guaranteed future funding was and where this could from and if it would 

be sufficient to continue the Council’s decarbonisation agenda;  

• Whether there was any health and safety impact on Council staff following 

installation of LED lighting in the Town Hall Extension;  

• How decarbonisation was being approached in buildings which the Council 

owned but did not manage or operate;  

• Why the graph of Council buildings emissions within the report did not include 

future projections; 

• Why local authority-maintained schools were not included in decarbonisation 

plans; 

• How much decarbonisation had occurred in Council buildings as a result of 

programmes to decarbonise the National Grid; 

• Welcoming the installation of renewable energy generation capacity, and 

querying what more could be achieved by installing more solar panels; 

Page 94

Item 12



• Why the National Football Museum was withdrawn from the scope of the 

works;  

• Why there were no plans to make the Town Hall a zero carbon building;  

• How often carbon emissions were measured; and 

• If a financial figure of savings as a result of decarbonisation works was 

available.  

  
The Head of Estates and Facilities introduced the item and explained that the carbon 
emissions from the Council’s operational buildings amounted for around three 
quarters of the Council’s total emissions, which meant it was a focus area for the 
Climate Change Action Plan.  
  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport informed the committee of the 
Zero Carbon Coordination Group, which brought all Council directorates together to 
ensure a coordinated approach and to share learning and explore challenges. The 
Council also had a dedicated Zero Carbon section on the website and quarterly 
Climate Change Action Plan updates were reported to the Environment and Climate 
Change Scrutiny Committee.  
  

Councillor Mandie Shilton Godwin, Chair of the Environment and Climate Change 
Scrutiny Committee, submitted representations through the Chair and expressed her 
disappointment in the withdrawal of the National Football Museum from the scope of 
the Zero Carbon Estate Programme and stated that this demonstrated the present 
unsatisfactory national government system of allocating funding for such projects. 
She stated that this approach was constraining the city’s ambition and queried why 
this had been withdrawn and whether it could be included in a future phase of the 
programme. In response, the Head of Estates and Facilities advised that the National 
Football Museum was a complicated building in terms of fabric and construction. 
There was also a challenge around using PSDS funding for works to this building as 
it stipulated that heating sources had to be changed from gas to an electric solution, 
which would require a ground source heat pump, and there was a lack of space 
around the Museum to enable this. He explained that some works had been 
undertaken at the Museum such as upgrades to air handling units to improve 
efficiency and contribute to reducing carbon emissions. The Council would also be 
able to take forward elements of the programme, such as LED lighting upgrades, for 
the Museum in the future.  
  

In response to a member’s query around funding, the Head of Estates and Facilities 

explained that there was a mix of different funding streams available, and the Council 

pursued external grant funding where possible and practical. There had been two 

successful funding bids for PSDS, and a third bid was hoped to be approved soon. 

There was also a significant amount of the Council’s own resource invested in the 

programme, including on an invest-to-save basis, and some major capital schemes 

included firm commitments to reducing carbon emissions through these projects. 

There were plans to continue the carbon reduction programme, although it was not 

yet known if the PSDS would continue in the same form as previously, and the Head 

of Estates and Facilities confirmed that he was confident in the ability to continue the 

programme.  

  

Page 95

Item 12



It was acknowledged that the future of the carbon reduction programme would 

change given the challenges outlined in the report and that the next phase of the 

programme would focus on larger Council-operated buildings which emit less carbon 

than those worked on in previous phases. There had been significant learning from 

previous phases for the Capital Programme, Energy Management and Finance 

teams and there had been investment in capacity to enable delivery of 

decarbonisation projects.  

  

The Head of Estates and Facilities acknowledged the importance of sufficient lighting 

with the Town Hall Extension and explained that lighting had been upgraded 

throughout office spaces within the building. An advantage of this was that LED 

lighting levels were more adjustable compared to traditional lighting and the Health 

and Safety team were involved in the installation of this to ensure that lighting levels 

were adequate. 

  

A query was raised regarding works to buildings which the Council owned but did not 

manage or operate and the committee was informed that some buildings had 

proposals for decarbonisation works in development and some works had been 

undertaken at Bridgewater Hall, such as connection to the cyclical heat network and 

LED lighting upgrades, and the Art Gallery.  

  

In response to a question regarding a lack of future projections within the council 

building emissions graph, it was stated that this was due to accessibility of data as 

the Council’s energy usage was based on meter readings in buildings and future 

usage and carbon emissions could not be predicted. Members were advised that 

there are targets set for future emissions and that the Council was currently meeting 

these.  

  

It was clarified that decarbonisation of local authority-maintained schools was under 

consideration by the Council, but this fell within the remit of a different service. The 

Director of Education had recently met with schools to devise a plan for 

decarbonisation and officers from the Energy Management and Capital Programmes 

teams were assisting in this by sharing their learning and experiences.  

  

The Head of Estates and Facilities expressed his hope that Energy Audits, which 

were underway and due for completion in May 2023, would identify where additional 

capacity was available to install more solar panels.  

  

It was also clarified that the Town Hall was not included in the project’s scope to 

become a zero-carbon building because of its status as a Grade I Listed Building, 

which restricted the ability to add significant retrofit elements.  

  

Information on the amount of emissions reduced as a result of decarbonisation works 

to the National Grid and financial savings would be provided following the meeting.  

  

Decision: 

  

Page 96

Item 12



That the Committee notes 

  

1. the activities and progress to date on the decarbonisation of Manchester City 

Council’s operational estate, and  

2. the pipeline of future projects that are in development.  

 
RGSC/23/5 Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 2023/24 and 

Budget Assumptions  
 
The committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which provided an update on the main announcements from the provisional local 
government finance settlement 2023/24, which was announced on 19 December 
2022. The report also focused on the impact on the Council’s budget for 2023/24 to 
2025/26 and the next steps in the 2023/24 budget setting process. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

• The Council faced significant inflationary and demand pressures in both the 
current financial year and next, which the settlement addressed in part; 

• The Council’s proposed strategy was to use any additional funding, after 
covering new priority investment requirements and demand pressures, to help 
close the budget gap in future years and reduce the need for significant cuts in 
2025/26 and beyond; 

• Confirmation that the savings reported to the committee in November 2022 
were sufficient to deliver a balanced budget next year without any additional 
savings requirement; 

• The referendum principles for 2023/24, including a limit of 4.99% for upper tier 
authorities; 

• Changes to business rates retention and the introduction of additional grant 
funding for social care;  

• The scale of these policy changes could not have been predicted in advance 
of the Provisional Finance Settlement and are a significant change from the 
messages coming from government prior to the autumn statement; and 

• Implications for the Council, including the medium- and longer-term risks. 
  
Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

• What was meant by additional targeted support for most vulnerable residents, 
if the Council Tax precept was raised; 

• Whether additional funds for adult social care and children’s services 
potentially raised from a 1% adult social care precept and the Social Care 
grant could be directed into specific areas of need; 

• Staff pay awards; 
• Noting that central government assumed that the Council would increase 

council tax; 
• What the proposed council tax increase of 4.99% would equate to for the top 

and bottom band; and  
• How questions were phrased on the council tax consultation. 

  

Page 97

Item 12



The Executive Member for Finance and Resources introduced the item and 
explained that there had been a recent marked shift in the Autumn Statement, the 
Policy Statement and the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement which 
acknowledged a gap in public sector finances that would take four years to remedy, 
with public sector cuts deferred until after 2025.  
  
He explained that central government anticipated the Council increasing council tax 
to 4.99% to enhance income. He stated that the Provisional Local Government 
Finance Settlement provided breathing space for the authority but the additional 
funding outlined within the report would not mitigate the inflationary pressures faced 
by the Council.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer explained that there had been three 
significant policy changes arising from the Autumn Statement and the Provisional 
Local Government Finance Settlement. Business rates would be frozen and local 
authorities would be compensated by central government for the difference. 3 
additional grants for social care would also be awarded to the Council and would be 
ringfenced for supporting hospital discharges, social care improvement and a broader 
grant for children’s and adult’s social care. The final policy shift was around the 
reliance on the council tax precept to provide additional funding and an increase in 
the referendum limit from 2.99% with a further 1% for the adult social care precept 
and a further 1% for the general fund precept. She reiterated that none of this funding 
was guaranteed after the Spending Review period and that significant unknowns and 
budget gaps were anticipated following the public sector cuts planned for after 2025.  
  
Members were also advised that additional funding would also result in additional 
costs. Inflation was predicted to be 7% in the next financial year, which was higher 
than originally anticipated and officers were working to link funding and costs.  
In response to a member enquiry about potential additional support for vulnerable 
residents, the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer advised that officers were 
working through options for this and explained that £3.55m had been added to the 
Council’s budget to address immediate pressures including support for food banks, 
VCSE organisations and expanding the Council’s welfare provisions. Members were 
also informed of a government scheme in 2024 which would provide a rebate of up to 
£25 to those on the Council Tax Support Scheme to mitigate the impact of increased 
council tax and the Council would look to provide similar support, particularly for 
residents at risk of first-time debt and those who have previously had a repayment 
plan with the Council.  
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources reiterated that social care funding 
grants were ringfenced and would be used to reduce pressures and demand. Options 
for how grant funding would be spent were still being assessed and work was 
ongoing with the Director of Adult Social Care to identify investment proposals and 
priorities and assurances were provided that members would have the opportunity to 
discuss proposals before a decision is taken.  
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer responded to a member’s query 
about staff pay awards and explained that the pay award for 2022/23 had only been 
confirmed in December and pay negotiations for 2023/24 had begun. She advised 

Page 98

Item 12



that an uplift of 4% was originally budgeted for the pay award and this would be 
assessed during the budget process to ensure it is sufficient.  
  
In response to a question around the proposed council tax increase and what this 
would equate to for the top and bottom band, the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer confirmed that an increase of 2.99% was proposed. The impact of this 
increase had been modelled for those properties in Band A, Band D and on the 
Council Tax Support Scheme which had informed initial ideas around support for 
residents. The increase would result in an additional c.£2m income for the Council. 
  
It was also highlighted that Manchester had the smallest council tax base of all 
metropolitan authorities and although some grant funding compensated for this, it did 
not counteract the issue and raising council tax would provide some financial 
benefits.   
  
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources stated that raising council tax was 
not done lightly, especially in the current financial climate, and clarified that the public 
consultation on council tax increases provided indications of where residents wanted 
their council tax money to be spent. The consultation explained that an increase of 
2.99% of the general precept and 2% on the adult social care precept was proposed 
and that this additional revenue would be directed to those issues identified as 
priorities for residents and to improve adult social care.   
  
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer wished to put her thanks on record to 
the Council’s Finance team for their work on the Provisional Local Government 
Finance Settlement, particularly as it was received close to Christmas. The Chair 
concurred with this sentiment.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
 
RGSC/23/6 Overview Report  
 
The committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided responses to recommendations, details of key decisions within the 
committee’s remit and its work programme. 
  
In response to a member’s request, the Chair agreed to receive a report on the 
progress of the Major Contracts Oversight Board at the Committee’s meeting in 
March 2023.  
  
An amendment was also required to the work programme to reflect that the 
Committee would meet on Thursday, 25 May 2023.  
  
Decision: 
  
That  
  

1.    the report be noted and 

Page 99

Item 12



2.    the Committee’s work programme be agreed, subject to the amendments 
outlined above.  

 
 

Page 100

Item 12



 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Nasrin Ali, Bayunu, Curley, Karney, Newman, Riasat, Reeves and 
Richards  
 
Apologies: Councillors Appleby and Russell 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Collins, Deputy Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult 
Social Care 
Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny 
Committee 
Daniel Hall, NHS Gambling Treatment Service 
Matt Gaskell, NHS Gambling Treatment Service 
Joanne Oakes, Lead Nurse 
Ruth Speight, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 
 
HSC/22/52  Minutes 
 
In approving the minutes of the previous meeting a Member made reference to the 
comment that he raised under item reference HSC/22/51, in which he had discussed 
the need to scrutinise the provision and delivery of acute health services across a 
range of activities. He stated that an extraordinary meeting of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee should be convened to undertake this function.  
 
The Chair stated that to undertake this task effectively Members should email her in 
the first instance with the areas they would specifically wish to have included for 
consideration so that the correct information and representatives could be invited to 
the meeting. She stated upon receipt of these requests she would liaise with the 
Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care to progress this. 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 2022 as a correct 
record, noting the above comments. 
 
HSC/22/53 Gambling Related Harms 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Interim Deputy Director of Public Health 
that provided an update on the national, regional, and local context of Gambling 
Related Harms.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

Page 101

Item 12



 

 

• Providing a summary of the key findings from the Public Health England 
Gambling-related harms evidence review; 

• Information on the recently published Greater Manchester Strategic Needs 
Assessment on Gambling Related Harms; 

• Discussion of the epidemiology of gambling and associated harms; 

• Current prevalence of gambling, noting that the estimated prevalence of ‘problem 
gambling’ within the adult population was 0.5% in the United Kingdom, however 
this increased to 0.8% in Greater Manchester i.e.18,100 adults; 

• Harms associated with gambling, noting that research suggested that people 
living in the most deprived communities were nearly twice as likely to participate 
in gambling and were seven times more likely to experience problem gambling, 
compared with those living in the least deprived communities; 

• The impact of gambling harms on communities; 

• The work to prevent and reduce harm in Greater Manchester, including gambling 
treatment and support, and delivery of gambling related harms work;  

• Consideration of the estimated economic burden of gambling; and 

• Providing an overview of some of the activities that had taken place to support the 
strategic development of the gambling related harms programme both locally and 
sub-regionally. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Welcoming the report and describing it as very informative; 

• Noting that it was important to articulate and highlight the harms associated with 
gambling; 

• Calling for further regulation of the gambling industry, with the support of local 
MPs with a similar approach to that taken against the wealthy tobacco industry; 

• Noting the prevalence of digital gambling where there was little or no regulation of 
this sector; 

• Commenting that betting shops operated as mini casinos and they tended to 
target the poorest areas; 

• Future reports should include deep dives of specific areas of the city to 
understand the full impact of gambling in local communities; 

• Expressing concern at the data presented in regard to the prevalence of gambling 
amongst the student population;  

• The Council should use all of its powers and influence, working across all 
Directorates to discourage gambling by exploring all opportunities to provide 
alternative entertainment and diversionary offers; increased enforcement of 
venues and premises where gambling was facilitated and appropriate 
consideration given to the proximity of gambling venues to other facilities; 

• All front line service workers needed to be trained to identify people who maybe 
experiencing difficulties associated with gambling; and   

• Local prominent football teams in the city should be encouraged to support anti-
gambling campaigns. 
 

The Interim Deputy Director of Public Health stated that it was recognised that more 
needed to be done to increase front line workers awareness and knowledge of the 
issue of gambling related harms so that people could be signposted to the correct 
sources of support. 

Page 102

Item 12



 

 

 
The Programme Lead, Public Health Team advised that the licensing function did 
monitor gambling premises and would respond to any concerns, however she added 
that currently the licensing regime was such that the presumption was to grant 
licenses for gambling premises unless a specific threshold could be proven. She 
further noted the concerns expressed regarding the proliferation of online gambling, 
noting that this had become normalised in society. 
  
Matt Gaskell, NHS Gambling Treatment Service noted the comments raised by the 
Member in relation to the football industry and noted that many premier clubs were 
sponsored by wealthy and influential gambling companies which made it very difficult 
to engage with them on this issue. He further commented that a significant issue was 
the introduction of Fixed Odds Betting Terminals in betting shops, he stated that as 
the number of these were restricted in shops this accounted for the increase in the 
number of gambling premises. He also supported the observations and concern 
expressed in relation to online gambling. He commented that big tech used data to 
target people to maximise the amount of money they could extract from people, 
adding that the promotion of gambling as a leisure pursuit was not helpful. He further 
commented that the Authority could consider measures to restrict local advertising 
that promoted gambling.  
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care informed the 
Committee that this subject area had been recently considered and the approach in 
response to gambling related harms described had been endorsed by all partners of 
the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 
Decision 
 
1. The Committee recommend that the Executive and Lead Officer across each 
Directorate use their powers and spheres of influence to limit access to gambling 
across the city. 
  
2. The Committee recommend that any future update reports should include deep 
dives of specific areas of the city to understand the full impact of gambling in local 
communities. 
 
HSC/22/54 Adult Learning Disability Services 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services that outlined key developments across Health and Social Care in 
Manchester relating to Adult Learning Disability services. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Developments surrounding the commissioning strategy for Adults with a Learning 
Disability; 

• Developments surrounding the Planning for People with Learning Disability Board, 
noting that the board would focus on the whole Learning Disability agenda, 
including improving equalities in health, housing, preparation for adulthood, 

Page 103

Item 12



 

 

criminal justice services, social care, commissioning, and work within the 
community; 

• The NHS Transforming Care agenda; 

• Healthcare, with an additional focus surrounding the local response to the recent 
national Care Quality Commission (CQC) report that looked at the experiences of 
people with a Learning Disability and Autistic people, when they needed physical health 
care and treatment in hospital; 

• Transition to Adulthood, noting the approach for citizens who were transitioning 
into adulthood, as well as support for their carers/families throughout the process; 
and 

• Information in relation to the Manchester City Council/Manchester Local Care 
Organisation In-House Provider Services review, including Supported 
Accommodation, Day Services and Short Breaks. 
 

The report was accompanied by a presentation that highlighted the key areas of 
activity described within the report. 

 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Noting that the voice of the citizen and lived experience were missing from the 
report, noting that it was important to hear this voice to understand the challenges 
experienced; 

• The need to recognise that the term Learning Disability covered a wide spectrum 
of conditions and needs; 

• Further information was sought in relation to the work discussed to understand 
inequalities experienced by people with Learning Disabilities from minority 
communities; 

• Concern was expressed in relation to the Transforming Care section of the report 
that described delays in admission notification from some Mental Health wards 
when they had new admissions; and 

• Welcoming the update and the approach taken to transitions, however noting that 
consideration had to be given as to how people who may have been supported by 
families for many years suddenly found themselves in need of support due to a 
change in their support arrangements, such as a result of bereavement or parents 
going into care. 
 

The Executive Director of Adult Social Services addressed the Committee and 
advised that it had been agreed that as this report was a wide ranging, scene setting 
document it would not be appropriate for them to be present at this meeting. 
Attendance at the meeting had been discussed with key partners in the city who 
support engagement and co-production with citizens. She invited Members to identify 
areas of work that the Committee would like further detailed reports on, and citizens 
would be invited to contribute to those future meetings. She further noted the 
discussion regarding the most appropriate way for Members to engage with teams 
and citizens and if agreed, visits for Members could be facilitated outside of the 
formal scrutiny meeting format. The Committee welcomed this proposal. 

 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services stated that the issue highlighted as a 
concern by the Member in relation to delays in admission notification from some 

Page 104

Item 12



 

 

Mental Health wards when they have new admissions was being addressed through 
staff training. 
 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services commented that the range of needs 
for people with a Learning Disability was understood and there was significant data 
available to understand needs for the service due to established relationships with 
Learning Disabled citizens across the city. She stated this knowledge and 
understanding of the projected demand on the service also informed the work of the 
Better Outcomes Better Lives programme, with its emphasis on appropriate support 
and prevention. She stated that if Members came across any resident who was in 
need of support to refer them and they could be assessed, noting this was important 
to avoid any issues escalating to a crisis situation.   

 
Joanne Oakes, Lead Nurse advised that two organisations, BHA and Breakthrough 
UK had been commissioned to understand inequalities experienced by people with 
Learning Disabilities from minority communities. She advised that they would utilise a 
number of opportunities, such as Primary Care Networks and establishing focus 
groups to engage with specific community groups. She advised that the outcomes of 
this work would be reported. 

 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care paid tribute to 
all of the teams involved in the breadth of work described within the report. 

 
The Chair concluded this item of business by thanking all the officers for contributing 
to a detailed report. She advised that the Committee would consider a further 
detailed report on the Manchester place based Joint Health and Social Care 
Commissioning Strategy (2023-2028) at an appropriate time. She further reiterated 
her support for visits to be arranged for Members of the Committee to meet with 
teams and service users. 

 
Decision 

 
To note the report. 
 
[Councillor Curley declared a personal and non-prejudicial interest in this item as he 
is a Board Member of Breakthrough UK] 
 
HSC/22/55 Climate Change – Impact of the recent heatwave 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Public Health that provided 
an overview of the impact that heatwaves would have on the city and detailed the 
activity underway to adapt to a changing climate and reduce the health impacts of 
future heatwaves in the city. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background, noting that in July 2019, Manchester 
City Council had declared a Climate Emergency which recognised the need for 
the Council, and the city as a whole, to do more to reduce carbon dioxide (CO2) 
emissions and mitigate the negative impacts of climate change; 

Page 105

Item 12



 

 

• The UK had experienced a brief but unprecedented extreme heatwave from 16 to 
19 July 2022, as hot air moved north from the near continent; 

• The Met Office had issued its first red warning for extreme heat since the Extreme 
Heat National Weather Warning Service was introduced in June 2021; 

• The impact of heat on health and those identified as being at risk; 

• Discussion of the Manchester context, noting that climate projections suggested 
that Manchester would face warmer summers and more extreme heat events in 
the future; 

• Activity in Manchester to reduce the impact of future heatwaves, including 
information on the Heat Pack, Heat Vulnerability Index and Local Climate 
Adaptation Tool; and 

• Climate change was a key theme and action within the Making Manchester Fairer 
Action Plan. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• The Committee paid tribute to the Public Health Team for their timely and 
important response during the heatwave to support the residents of Manchester; 

• The need to recognise the importance of Public Sector workers in supporting 
residents; and 

• Noting the significant impact heat had on the health of older residents. 
 

The Head of City Policy informed the Committee that the Manchester Climate 
Change Framework had recently been updated to include more focus on adaptation 
and resilience including the consideration of heat. He added that detailed work on 
this issue had commenced in conjunction with Manchester Metropolitan University, 
the Met Office and the University of Exeter and would help to inform the Council and 
partners decision making.  

 
The Assistant Director of Public Health informed the Committee that a range of data 
would be released by the Office of National Statistics that would help understand the 
impact of the recent heatwave, including the numbers of excess deaths and 
pressures and demand on other services, such as primary care.   

 
Councillor Shilton Godwin, Chair of the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny 
Committee was welcomed by the Committee. She thanked the Committee for 
considering this important report and stated that heat would continue to impact upon 
the city as a direct result of the climate crisis. In response to a discussion regarding 
the impact of planning and climate change, she advised that the Environment and 
Climate Change Scrutiny Committee would be considering a specific report on this 
subject area at the meeting scheduled for 9 February 2023. 

 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care paid tribute to 
all of the Public Health team for their effective and immediate response during the 
heatwave. He informed the Committee that at that time all health partners were in 
constant contact to monitor the emerging situation using real time data.  

 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 

Page 106

Item 12



 

 

 
HSC/22/56  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
The Chair informed all those present that a whole meeting in the new municipal year 
would be dedicated to considering the Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust and 
the improvements instigated in response to the BBC Panorama documentary and the 
Edenfield Centre. Members requested that testimonies and Patient Groups be invited 
to attend that meeting. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
comments. 

Page 107

Item 12



 

Page 108

Item 12



 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Green – in the Chair 
Councillors Appleby, Bayunu, Curley, Karney, Newman, Russell and Richards  
 
Apologies: Councillors Nasrin Ali, Riasat and Reeves 
 
Also present:  
Councillor T. Robinson, Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care 
Councillor Collins, Deputy Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult 
Social Care 
Michelle Humphreys, Director of Strategic Projects, Manchester University NHS 
Foundation Trust 
Deborah Goodman, Associate Director of Operations, Greater Manchester Mental 
Health NHS Foundation Trust 
Gordon Reid, Deputy Head of Primary Care, NHS Greater Manchester Integrated 
Care 
Stephen Gardner, Director, Single Hospital Service Programme, Manchester 
University NHS Foundation Trust 
 
HSC/23/01  Urgent Business – Local Response to Current NHS Crisis 
 
The Chair introduced an item of urgent business by advising that she had requested 
the Interim Deputy Place Based Lead, NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care and 
the Executive Director of Adult Social Services to address the Committee on the local 
response to the current national NHS crisis that had been widely reported in the 
media. 
 
The Committee noted that an extraordinary meeting of the Health Scrutiny 
Committee had been called for 22 February 2023 to specifically discuss the issues 
currently experienced by Manchester residents accessing acute NHS services. The 
Chair stated that this would be a further opportunity to discuss the points raised by 
the Committee at today’s meeting in further detail. 
 
The Interim Deputy Place Based Lead, NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care 
informed the Committee that the health service had experienced unprecedented 
demand since October 2022. He stated that these pressures were added to because 
of the increased incidents of Covid infection rates and an earlier start to the flu 
season, commenting that during the month of December, 500 patients had been 
admitted to hospital due to flu across Greater Manchester. He advised that this 
situation would continue to be monitored. He stated that these illnesses had also 
impacted on staff and front-line health workers that had also added to the pressures 
experienced across the service. He advised that the System Operation Response 
Task Force, which consisted of senior leaders and clinical practitioners across 
Greater Manchester had been meeting weekly, increasing to now daily to understand 
the levels of demand and manage resources appropriately system wide. He provided 

Page 109

Item 12



 

 

an example of mutual aid as being when other local district hospitals had responded 
to relieve bed pressures experienced at the Children’s Hospital, adding that this care 
had been managed by paediatric specialists.  
 
In noting the industrial action being taken by Ambulance workers, the Interim Deputy 
Place Based Lead, NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care advised that the impact 
of this was being closely monitored by the System Operation Response Task Force 
and urged anyone experiencing a life threating emergency to contact 999 
immediately. He also advised the NHS 111 service was still available, both online 
and via the telephone. 
 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services described the established multi-
disciplinary teams that worked to manage patient flow. She described that Patient 
Target Lists were reviewed daily, six days a week to discuss and facilitate the safe 
discharge of patients into the most appropriate setting with the appropriate care 
pathways using the discharge to assess approach. She stated that data and activity 
was monitored at the Integrated Care Control Room, using real time data obtained 
via the Hive System. She also advised that Winter Discharge Monies had been used 
to support people living safely in their own homes, and this work had been supported 
by various Voluntary Community and Social Enterprise groups. She acknowledged 
that recruitment and retention of staff remained an issue nationally across the Adult 
Social Care sector, however work was ongoing locally with providers to address this. 
She commented that it was recognised that staff were the best and most important 
asset and a workforce development plan had been agreed that sought to support and 
develop existing staff, including the use of apprenticeships. She further noted the 
commitment to paying the Real Living Wage in Manchester. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that the 
Government had repeatedly failed to adequately fund both the NHS and Adult Social 
Care, noting that across Greater Manchester there had been a funding shortfall of 
£430m. He stated that despite this Manchester had continued to respond to the 
challenge and sought innovative approaches to support the most vulnerable 
residents of the city. He stated that the legacy of genuine partnership working across 
all stakeholders that had been established across Greater Manchester following the 
Devolution arrangements had supported and enabled such a positive response, 
adding that avoiding the need to call a major critical incident in Manchester was 
testimony to this.     
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care further advised 
that he would continue to provide briefings to Members outside of the formal 
Committee process to ensure they remained up to date with emerging issues. 
 
The Committee thanked officers and the Executive Member for Healthy Manchester 
and Adult Social Care for their update. A member noted that at the time of the 
meeting the Times newspaper was running a headline that reported there were 
currently 1000 excess deaths per week due to the national crisis in the NHS. The 
Committee stated that sole responsibility for this current crisis was as a direct result 
of the Government. 
 

Page 110

Item 12



 

 

Members also discussed the impact that this ongoing crisis would be having on other 
important NHS Services, such as screening and other preventative initiatives due to 
staff and resources being redirected.  
 
The Committee paid tribute to all staff and frontline workers working within the NHS 
and expressed their support and solidarity with those striking staff, adding that these 
workers had been left with no other option than to take industrial action. 
 
The Committee recommended that the Executive Member for Healthy Manchester 
and Adult Social Care, in consultation with the Chair and all Manchester MPs writes 
to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care to invite him to Manchester so he 
can meet with the Committee so that they can discuss the case for increased NHS 
funding in Manchester. A Member noted that if the invitation was refused a 
delegation should visit the Department of Health and Social Care to present the case 
for Manchester. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee recommended that the Executive Member for Healthy Manchester 
and Adult Social Care, in consultation with the Chair and all Manchester MPs writes 
to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care to invite him to Manchester so 
the Committee can present the case for increased NHS funding in Manchester. 
 
HSC/23/02  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
HSC/23/03 Adult Social Care Assurance - Care Quality Commission 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services that provided information on the forthcoming Assurance Framework by the 
Care Quality Commission (CQC). 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Noting that the Health and Care Act 2022 gave the CQC new regulatory powers 
to undertake independent assessment of local authorities’ delivery of regulated 
care functions; 

• A description of the four themes of the CQC assessment framework and their 
associated quality statements;  

• Information on the Test and Learn pilot undertaken by CQC of Adult Social Care 
in July 2022 and the key outcomes; and  

• Next steps. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Welcoming the report and welcoming the findings of the CQC; 

Page 111

Item 12



 

 

• The indicative rating was testament to the hard work and dedication of staff 
working across Adult Social Care on behalf of Manchester residents, led by the 
Executive Director of Adult Social Services; and 

• Noting that this external evaluation of the service provided the Committee with 
further assurance of the good work and strong leadership of the service. 

 
The Executive Director of Adult Social Services stated that she had welcomed the 
opportunity to partake in the pilot scheme, noting that it provided an opportunity for 
an external audit and review of the service and gave the residents of Manchester an 
assurance in the service provided. She stated that the CQC had met with a number 
of senior leaders, the Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social 
Care and staff across a range of services and the feedback from the inspectors had 
been very positive. She stated that the positive feedback from the Committee would 
be communicated to staff. In response to a Member’s comment regarding a specific 
case relating to Adult Social Care she advised that if the Member forwarded her the 
specific details she would make enquiries and liaise with her directly. 
 
The Principal Social Worker stated that the inspection had been an opportunity to 
showcase the excellent work that was delivered in Manchester. She stated as a 
result of this experience other Local Authorities had been in contact with a view to 
learning and adopting the good practice delivered in Manchester. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care paid tribute to 
the Executive Director of Adult Social Services and all her staff. He drew the 
Members’ attention to the section of the report that described that there was a real 
commitment from leaders for the local authority to be a learning organisation and that 
Senior leaders, including councillors, had a good understanding of the issues 
affecting the people of the City of Manchester. He concluded by stating that 
Manchester was an exemplar Authority and was recognised nationally as a beacon 
of good practice. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/23/04 Planning for Liberty Protection Safeguards Implementation  
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Director of Adult Social 
Services that provided information updates to Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS) 
planning work in progress in preparing for major statutory changes. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• The Mental Health (Amendment) Act 2019 for England and Wales introduces new 
statutory changes updating the current Code of Practice Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DOLS) to become the new Liberty Protection Safeguards (LPS); 

• The draft code of practice was published in July 2022 and is yet to be finalised; 

• It requires there to be new Responsible Bodies in Health as well as Adult Social 
Care and key new duties requiring organisational change and staff roles and 
practice; 

Page 112

Item 12



 

 

• The main changes widen the scope to those aged 16 from 18 and applicable in all 
community housing and settings not just those in hospital and 24-hour care where 
people are assessed as lacking mental capacity to make specific decisions in 
relation to receiving necessary and proportionate treatment, care and support 
enabling them to be appropriately involved and independent throughout the 
process; 

• New duties including evidence assessors put people at the heart of the LPS 
process and enable the voice of the person by respecting their experience, 
wishes, values and feelings supported by those who know them, or by 
independent advocacy throughout the LPS process and review;  

• Information on the Learning Disability / Autism and Mental Health Act reform and 
the joint work with the Learning Disability and Autism Service and Greater 
Manchester Mental Health Trust; and 

• Information on the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards Team. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Further clarification was sought in relation to that paragraph that described 
Learning Disability / Autism and Mental Health Act reform; and 

• Further detail was sought in relation to the figures presented within the report. 
 
The Assistant Director Adult Social Care stated that this was a very complex piece of 
legislation and work was ongoing across a range of teams to understand and plan for 
its implementation, adding that at the time of reporting the LPS final code of practice 
was yet to be released. He gave an assurance that this would not change the 
interventions and support for patients with mental health conditions and would rather 
strengthen the right of citizens with Autism / Learning Disability, ensuring that the 
citizen was at the heart of all decision making.  
 
The Chair advised that the Committee would revisit this subject before April 2024 and 
requested that any future update report included cases studies and examples. The 
Committee also requested that consideration was given as to how data was 
presented in reports. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and request that an update report is submitted for consideration at 
an appropriate time. 
 
HSC/23/05 Health Infrastructure in Manchester 
 
The Committee considered the joint report of the Interim Deputy Place Based Lead 
(Manchester) NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care, the Director of Strategic 
Projects, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust and the Director of Finance, 
IM&T and Estates Greater Manchester Mental Health NHS Foundation Trust that 
provided an overview of the key health infrastructure developments in Manchester. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• An update on the Wythenshawe Hospital master plan; 

Page 113

Item 12



 

 

• The developments encompassed under the umbrella of the North Manchester 
Strategy, including the redevelopment of the North Manchester General Hospital 
site and the reprovision of the Park House mental health facility; and 

• Key developments in primary care and community estates in the city. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• That a visit and briefing to North Manchester General Hospital be arranged for all 
North Manchester Councillors, with an invitation extended to all members of the 
Health Scrutiny Committee; 

• Was there an opportunity to increase the number of jobs and apprenticeship 
opportunities created through the development and investment in North 
Manchester;  

• Welcoming the Victoria North Development and asking if consideration had been 
given to health infrastructure to meet the demands on the local population; 

• Welcoming the improvements identified for North Manchester General Hospital 
and noting that this had only been made possible as a direct result of the decision 
taken to disaggregate North Manchester General Hospital from Pennine Acute 
Hospitals NHS Trust; 

• Expressing disappointment of progress in delivering the Wythenshawe Hospital 
masterplan; 

• Noting the uncertainty of Government adequately funding the Wythenshawe 
Hospital masterplan; 

• Noting the challenges and limitations presented by current Treasury rules in 
securing alternative funding opportunities to deliver the Wythenshawe Hospital 
masterplan;  

• Calling for the continued lobbying of Government to secure funding to deliver the 
Wythenshawe Hospital masterplan; 

• Expressing concern that Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust would 
utilise New Hospital Programme fees for 2022/23 to fund resource to March 2023, 
noting that there was currently no funding beyond March 2023 in place, noting 
that this situation could have implications for both North Manchester and 
Wythenshawe sites; 

• Had the issues relating to historic Private Finance Initiatives (PFI) and associated 
contractual arrangements been addressed at Wythenshawe Hospital; 

• Recognising that the number of GP practices was as a result of practices 
consolidating; 

• Was there any information relating to the provision of dentist practices; and 

• Had the views of service users been taken into consideration during the design of 
the Park House inpatient mental health facility. 

 
The Interim Deputy Place Based Lead, NHS Greater Manchester Integrated Care 
informed the Committee that a letter dated 10 January 2023 from Manchester 
partners, headed by the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive of MFT had 
been sent to the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care emphasizing again the 
vital importance of the North Manchester General Hospital redevelopment proposals. 
He further commented that he was happy to facilitate a visit and briefing at North 
Manchester General Hospital for all North Manchester Councillors, with an invitation 
extended to all members of the Health Scrutiny Committee. 

Page 114

Item 12



 

 

 
The Director of Strategic Projects, Manchester University NHS Foundation Trust 
stated that she shared the frustrations expressed by the Members regarding 
progress at the Wythenshawe site. She described that they were working with 
Bruntwood and the Council as part of the wider redevelopment of Wythenshawe. She 
stated that she supported the call for continued lobbying of Government for adequate 
funding to deliver the Wythenshawe masterplan. She further commented that the PFI 
arrangements had been taken into account during the planning and financial 
modelling. In regard to North Manchester, she stated that economic growth and 
development was central to the vision of the development and work was underway 
with local schools and other partners to maximise the delivery of social value of this 
programme. She stated that the business case for the North Manchester 
development had been submitted two years ago however this had been reviewed in 
November 2022 to take into account increased budgetary and inflation costs and 
these revised figures had been submitted to the Secretary of State. In reply to 
questions regarding the implications of the ‘New Hospital Programme’ and ‘Hospital 
2.0’ she advised that they were awaiting further information on these Government 
proposals. 
 
The Deputy Head of Primary Care stated that discussions have been ongoing with 
developers throughout the design and planning of the Victoria North Development to 
ensure that appropriate consideration was given to health infrastructure to meet the 
demands of a growing population in the area. He further addressed the issue raised 
regarding dentistry by advising that since July 2022 arrangements for the 
commissioning of these services had transferred to the Greater Manchester 
Integrated Care Board. He stated that work was currently ongoing to look at this area 
of activity. 
 
The Executive Member for Healthy Manchester and Adult Social Care stated that the 
report clearly demonstrated the scale and vision that Manchester had in regard to 
improving and delivering health infrastructure across the city. He acknowledged that 
more needed to be done to articulate this ambition to residents. He stated that the 
conversations regarding delivering the ambition for the city were live and ongoing 
and the Committee would be kept informed of developments.  
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
HSC/23/06  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme.  
 
The Chair commented that the 24 May 2023 meeting would be dedicated exclusively 
to scrutinising improvements at the Greater Manchester Mental Health Trust. 
 
Decision 

Page 115

Item 12



 

 

 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
comment. 

Page 116

Item 12



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 7 December 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors Alijah, Amin, Bano, Cooley, Gartside, Lovecy, Sadler and Sharif 
Mahamed 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
  
Co-opted Non-Voting Members: 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children Services 
Kim Stevenson, Nursery in the Park 
 
Apologies: 
Councillors Abdullatif, Hewitson, Johnson and Judge 
Miss S Iltaf, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
Canon S Mapledoram, Representative of the Diocese of Manchester 
 
CYP/22/57  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 9 November 
2022. 
 
CYP/22/58     Youth, Play & Participation Service (YPPS) Grants 
Framework 1st July 2023 to 31st March 2025 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Strategic Director of Neighbourhoods 
which followed on from the update on the Youth and Play Commissioning 
Arrangements which was presented to Executive on 20 October 2021. The report to 
Executive set out an alternative delivery model to be designed and developed 
following the decision to transfer responsibility for commissioning from Young 
Manchester. The purpose of this report was to provide the Committee with the 
outcome from the design and development work and to set out the proposed Youth, 
Play and Participation Service’s commissioning process and framework including 
timescales for the implementation of the proposed new arrangements. The 
Committee was invited to comment on the report before its submission to the 
Executive on 14 December 2022. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Strategic national and local context; 

Page 117

Item 12



• Principles of investment; 

• Governance and decision-making processes; 

• Funding; 

• Timeline; 

• Service requirements; 

• Quality assurance, impact and monitoring; 

• Other considerations; and 

• Next steps.  
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• Support for this approach; 

• How would it be ensured that the young people’s advisory panel was 
representative; 

• Suggesting that schools and parents could be engaged with to reach young 
people whose voices were not currently being heard and young people with 
Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND); 

• Ensuring that families and young people were aware of the activities which 
were available for them; 

• Communication between the Ward Councillors selected to be part of the 
district Members’ Advisory Panels and other Ward Councillors in the district; 
and 

• Smaller community groups who did not have experience in or confidence to 
bid for grants but who were doing good work in their local community and how 
they could be supported to bid for funding and to adapt and grow to meet the 
needs of the area. 

 
The Head of the Youth, Play and Participation Service reported that work was taking 
place to develop and expand young people’s participation, including around decision-
making and service provision, by his own team, working with Children and Education 
Services colleagues, and by upskilling the sector.  He stated that, when decisions 
were being made about district-based youth provision, young people from that district 
should be involved in the decisions.  He advised that the details of how this would 
work were still being fully developed and that more information would be provided in 
a future report.  He reported that there had been a good uptake of the Youth 
Investment Fund from small grassroots organisations, including ones which were 
Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME)-led, and that officers would be looking at 
how this could be expanded.  He stated that they would also be looking at how 
smaller organisations could access the Holiday Activities and Food (HAF) 
programme funding.  He agreed that communicating the offer to children and young 
people was important and advised that funded projects would be expected to 
publicise their offer and that his team would be working with neighbourhood teams, 
and with other colleagues and partner organisations, to communicate what was 
available in the local area.  In response to a Member’s question about opportunities 
for new Councillors to learn more about what was going on in their ward and to 
engage with this work, he advised that he would be open to any invitations to meet 
with Ward Councillors in their ward.  He asked Members to let him know of any local 
groups they were aware of which were doing good work with young people in their 

Page 118

Item 12



area and to help to promote initiatives that they could be involved in such as HAF 
and workforce development opportunities.  In response to a Member’s question 
about the statistics from the census, he advised that they were looking at this and 
would provide an update at a later date. 
 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services referred to areas of the city, 
particularly in north Manchester, from where fewer applications for funding were 
received and work which was taking place to address this.  He advised that Member 
involvement would be an important part of the new process as he felt that this had 
been an area of weakness previously.  He asked Members to let him know if they 
were interested in being on one of the district Member panels and advised that he 
was also arranging meetings for all Ward Councillors to enable them to give their 
views. 
 
The Chair advised that it was important to audit this work very quickly, including 
identifying any gaps, for example BAME-led groups.  She expressed concern that 
applications would be predominantly for youth provision rather than play activities for 
younger children and advised that it was important to encourage groups which 
provided play activities for younger children to apply for funding and to ensure that 
any gaps identified were addressed.  However, subject to these comments, she 
reported that she was happy with the direction that this work was taking. 
 
Decision 
 
To support the direction of the work taking place, subject to Members’ comments. 
 
[Councillor Alijah declared a personal interest as the Chair of the Hideaway Youth 
Project] 
[Councillor Reid and Councillor Lovecy declared a personal interest as members of 
the Members’ Advisory Panel for their district] 
 
CYP/22/59   Post-16 EET Strategic Plan 2022-25 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Education which provided an 
update on work done by the Council to increase the number of young people 
accessing EET (education, employment or training) opportunities in the city, aligning 
with the city’s economic priorities. It also outlined the plans for this work moving 
forwards, with the strategic plan developed to coincide with the Our Manchester 
Forward to 2025 Strategy and Manchester Inclusion Strategy 2022-25. The paper 
highlighted the challenges the city would have in ensuring sufficiency of places for 
young people wanting to continue in education due to the growth of the school 
population. It outlined the work that had been done to date including promoting 
opportunities for post 16 providers to access capital funding through bids to the 
Department for Education (DFE) and actively encouraging the submission of 
applications to open new provision through the free school process. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Post-16 provision; 

• Young people not in Education, Employment or Training (NEET); 

Page 119

Item 12



• The Risk of NEET Indicator (RONI); 

• Post-16 EET Strategic Action Plan 2022-25; and 

• Governance. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• Support for vulnerable young people; 

• The resources needed for the expansion of STEM (science, technology, 
engineering and mathematics) subjects; 

• Post-16 education for young people with Special Educational Needs and 
Disability (SEND);  

• To request that Wythenshawe councillors be briefed on what was going on in 
their area; and 

• Careers advice including for girls and young people who were less academic. 
 
The Director of Education reported that STEM was one of the most in-demand areas 
where work was having to take place to try to increase capacity, whereas demand for 
subjects such as modern foreign languages and history was reducing. The Post-16 
Lead informed Members that Manchester College had invested significantly in 
upgrading its facilities for STEM subjects in recent years and that other providers had 
put in bids for funding to improve their facilities.  In response to a question about 
additional staffing that would be needed for the expansion of STEM subjects, the 
Director of Education stated that this was not something which had been raised by 
the post-16 settings. 
 
The Director of Education advised Members that there was a strong post-16 sector 
for pupils with SEND, with most special schools having a sixth form, a strong offer 
from mainstream providers such as Manchester College and Loreto College and 
supported internships.  She encouraged Members to visit one of the special schools’ 
sixth forms.  She informed Members about an event which had taken place recently 
with businesses about employing more young people with SEND. 
 
In response to a question about vulnerable young people, the Post-16 Lead outlined 
work to identify, in conjunction with schools, young people who were at risk of 
becoming NEET and to work collaboratively across teams and with partners to 
address this.  He informed Members about the post-16 steering group, which 
included a range of stakeholders, including the Virtual School, Youth Justice, Care 
Leavers and EHCP (Education Health and Care Plan) Teams, contributing to an 
action plan for targeted support, and the introduction of NEET prevention panels 
which provided an opportunity for schools to get advice and put early intervention 
strategies in place.  He reported that approaches to careers advice varied across 
schools and post-16 settings, with some schools having their own in-house career 
services and some commissioning a service.  He reported that the Council used 
Career Connect, which worked to prevent young people becoming NEET.  He 
informed Members how his team was working with the Work and Skills Team on the 
quality assurance of school career services and about work to encourage targeted 
groups, such as girls, into areas in which they were under-represented.  In response 
to a Member’s question, he outlined some of the support available to young people 
who wanted to start their own business. 

Page 120

Item 12



 
In response to a comment from the Chair about young people travelling across local 
authority boundaries for post-16 provision, the Director of Education reported that the 
Council had commissioned a sufficiency report which had looked at the number of 
young people coming into and going out of the city to access post-16 provision.  In 
response to a question from the Chair, she informed Members about Manchester 
College’s work to rationalise its buildings, improving the facilities and modernising 
their offer.  She suggested that Members could visit their facilities, in the city centre 
or at Openshaw.   
 
The Chair suggested that the government should provide funding for more secondary 
schools to expand to include their own sixth form and that Members should lobby the 
government about funding for post-16 places.  She advised that the issue of pay in 
Further Education needed to be addressed.  She expressed concern that the entry 
requirements for T Level qualifications would exclude some young people.  She 
requested that a more detailed report be provided to a future meeting, including 
utilising social value, changes in the number of places available at Manchester 
College, whether Manchester Adult Education Service (MAES) could be utilised more 
and information from the sufficiency report which had looked across the Greater 
Manchester area. 
 
Decision 
 
To request a more detailed report at a future meeting, including utilising social value, 
changes in the number of places available at Manchester College, whether 
Manchester Adult Education Service (MAES) can be utilised more and information 
from the sufficiency report looking across the Greater Manchester area. 
 
CYP/22/60     Attainment Headline outcomes 2022 (provisional) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Education which provided a 
summary of the 2022 provisional outcomes of statutory assessment at the end of the 
Early Years Foundation Stage, Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2, Key Stage 4 and Key 
Stage 5.  The report described how outcomes for children in the primary phase had 
declined nationally as a result of the pandemic and that the impact in Manchester 
was far more significant than elsewhere especially for younger children who had 
missed out on most of their early years and were now in year 1. The report 
concluded with a list of actions which were being progressed to address some of the 
gaps in learning including a proposal for additional support to year 1 cohorts in some 
of schools in the most deprived areas of the city. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Headline outcomes based on provisional performance data for 2022 for: 
o Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS); 
o Year 1 Phonics Test; 
o Key Stage 1; 
o Key Stage 2; 
o Key Stage 4; and 
o Key Stage 5; and 

Page 121

Item 12



• Next steps. 
 

The Executive Member for Children’s Services drew Member’s attention to a letter he 
had written to the Education Secretary, highlighting the impact of the pandemic on 
younger children in the city, and warned of the negative consequences if this was not 
addressed. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To support the Executive Member’s comments about the importance of taking 
action to address the impact of the pandemic on children; 

• How to support children in the areas that they had fallen behind in during the 
pandemic without reducing time spent on play, which was also important to 
their development; and 

• Recognising the hard work of Manchester teachers and other school staff, the 
ongoing challenges facing them and that the impact on children from not being 
in school demonstrated what an important difference schools made to 
children’s development. 

 
The Assistant Director of Education reported that the response from the national 
government to addressing the learning debt from the pandemic had focused on 
tuition; however, she advised that very young children had a deficit of social 
interaction, were not ready for sitting and learning and needed to do a lot of play and 
have a rich language environment.  She reported that Manchester schools were 
responding to this by adapting the curriculum for the younger age groups, looking at 
where the gaps were for their pupils and responding to that.  She advised that neither 
Ofsted nor the Council’s Quality Assurance Team would support forcing children into 
learning activities which they were not yet ready for.     
 
The Director of Education expressed concern that the impact of the pandemic on 
children would be forgotten as there was no quick solution to this and it would need 
sustained effort over a number of years, particularly for younger children.  She 
reported that different age groups appeared to have responded differently, with 
children in Reception and Year 1 being very lively and not ready to sit and learn but 
with younger children who had been born in lockdown and were now going into 
nursery tending to be quiet and passive, so different approaches would be needed.  
 
The Chair drew Members’ attention to information she had circulated from the FFT 
Education Data Lab on attainment at Key Stage 1 following the pandemic.  She 
advised that the pandemic had had the most impact on more deprived areas, in 
particular in the north-west.  She suggested that research could be done through one 
of the universities.  She reported that the validated attainment data would come back 
to the Committee.  She highlighted the effects that the pandemic had had on babies 
and young children and how family circumstances had impacted the effect it had on 
children, for example, whether parents had the time and the academic ability to 
support their children’s learning.  She requested that the Committee receive a further, 
more detailed report at an appropriate time on how schools were progressing with 
this work. 
 

Page 122

Item 12



Decisions 
 
1. To note that the Committee will receive the validated attainment data when 

this is available. 
 
2. To request a further, more detailed report at an appropriate time on how 

schools are progressing with work to address the impact of the pandemic on 
children’s learning. 

 
CYP/22/61     An update on the structural condition surveys for Council-
owned Early Years buildings and future works 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Education, following on from 
a report which went to Executive in June 2021 which approved £3m capital to be 
spent on priority safety work for Council owned Early Years buildings, many of which 
were also used to provide daycare for children. This report provided an update on the 
structural condition surveys for these Council-owned Early Years (EYs) buildings and 
the development of a priority capital works programme which would lead to the 
inclusion of these buildings in the Asset Management Programme (AMP). In addition, 
there was an update on the progress made on reviewing lease arrangements for the 
private day care providers which occupied these buildings and the ongoing 
management of the early years estate. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Main issues; 

• Priority capital spend on the Early Years estate 2022/23; 

• Phase 2 Early Years estate capital priorities 2023/24; and 

• Review of tendered daycare leases. 
 
Kim Stevenson from Nursery in the Park stated that her site had been selected for 
improvement work and that she wanted more information on what was proposed for 
her building, stating that energy efficiency, in particular insulation, was important, 
along with building repairs.  The Executive Member for Children’s Services reported 
that the priorities for the works on Early Years buildings included making them safe 
and improving energy efficiency.  He suggested that Ms Stevenson meet with the 
Lead for Statutory Area Early Years Access and Sufficiency to discuss proposals for 
her building, advising that he could also attend the meeting, if that would be helpful.   
 
In response to a Member’s question about the closure of Moss Side Children’s 
Centre, the Director of Education advised that the costs of bringing the building to an 
acceptable standard would have used almost the whole capital allocation for this 
work, that there was sufficient daycare provision within that area and that other 
services which had previously been delivered from that location had been re-located 
to an alternative site.  She reported that the Council had worked with the daycare 
provider which had been based in that building to facilitate them moving to an 
alternative building.  In response to a question about the future use of the vacant 
building, she advised that this was now within Corporate Property’s portfolio but that 
she could ask them to speak to the Member, who was also a Ward Councillor for 
Moss Side, about the future use of the site.   

Page 123

Item 12



 
In response to questions from the Chair, the Executive Member for Children’s 
Services advised that this work was an ongoing process, that there were further 
issues to be considered and that the Committee could expect to hear more about this 
in future.   
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
CYP/22/62  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 
asked to approve. 
 
The Chair of the Ofsted Subgroup invited additional Members to join the Subgroup. 
 
Decision 

 
To note the report and agree the work programme. 
 
 

Page 124

Item 12



Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee  
 

Minutes of the meeting held on 11 January 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Reid – in the Chair 
Councillors Abdullatif, Bano, Gartside, Hewitson, Johnson, Judge, Lovecy, Sadler 
and Sharif Mahamed 
 
Co-opted Voting Members: 
Canon S Mapledoram, Representative of the Diocese of Manchester 
Mr G Cleworth, Parent Governor Representative 
  
Also present: 
Councillor Bridges, Executive Member for Children Services 
Councillor Bell, Ward Councillor for Moss Side 
 
Apologies: 
Councillor Alijah 
Miss S Iltaf, Secondary Sector Teacher Representative 
Ms L Smith, Primary Sector Teacher Representative 
 
CYP/23/01  Minutes 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 

December 2022. 
 
2. To receive the minutes of the meeting of the Ofsted Subgroup held on 23 

November 2022. 
 
CYP/23/02     Ofsted Improvement Plan 
 
The Committee considered the presentation of the Deputy Strategic Director of 
Children’s Services which provided an update on progress in response to the Ofsted 
Inspection of Local Authorities Children’s Services (ILACS) of Manchester's 
Children's Services. 
 
Key points and themes in the presentation included: 
 

• The findings from Ofsted’s inspection which took place in March and April 
2022; 

• The Council’s Ofsted Improvement Plan and how improvements were being 
made; and 

• What had been achieved so far. 
 

Page 125

Item 12



The Executive Member for Children’s Services reported that, while welcoming that 
Manchester’s Children’s Services had been judged as “good” by Ofsted, the Council 
was not complacent and was committed to continuing to improve. 
 
The Chair explained the history and context of this item for the benefit of new 
Members of the Committee and offered to meet with new Members if they wished to 
discuss this further.  She recommended that the Committee carry out further visits to 
frontline Social Work teams to ensure that Members knew what was going on in 
practice, rather than relying too much on what they were told in Committee meetings.  
This suggestion was supported by other Members. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• To welcome the work taking place; 

• Social Workers’ caseloads; 

• Workforce issues, including recruitment and retention of Social Workers, 
sickness levels, the use of agency workers and the diversity of the workforce; 

• Training for Social Workers, in particular on domestic abuse, and how the 
success of training was assessed; and 

• How to build trust with families. 
 
The Deputy Strategic Director of Children’s Services reported that there was a 
national debate about how pre-qualifying training prepared Social Workers for their 
role, including in relation to dealing with cases involving domestic abuse.  He 
reported that the Council used the Safe and Together model, which was a well-
evidence-based approach to working with people who had experienced domestic 
abuse, and brought in high-quality trainers from the Safe and Together Institute to 
deliver training to its Social Workers.  He reported that the Council’s policies and 
procedures, peer support and the quality of supervision they received also assisted 
Newly Qualified Social Workers in addressing their learning needs.  He advised that 
the quality of training was assessed through the outcomes for children and families.  
He reported that the Council had a target of an average caseload of 18 for Social 
Workers and 16 for Newly Qualified Social Workers and that over the last 18 months 
caseloads had been lower than that and that these figures compared well nationally, 
and particularly to other Greater Manchester authorities.   
  
The Deputy Strategic Director of Children’s Services advised that lower caseloads, 
training and improving competence levels, including cultural competence, helped 
Social Workers to build trust with families.  In response to a question about training 
on cultural competence, he informed Members about the development of a cultural 
competency toolkit, the Let’s Talk About Race course, which he reported had 
received positive feedback, the role of reflective supervision and how the diversity of 
the workforce could help to improve Social Workers’ insight into this area.  He 
reported that recruitment and retention had improved, although recruitment was an 
area which they were constantly working to address.  The Strategic Director 
(Children and Education Services) provided the Committee with workforce data, 
including stating that the vacancy rate for Social Workers was 12% and there was a 
turnover of around 18%, which represented an improvement.   
 

Page 126

Item 12



In response to a Member’s question, the Deputy Strategic Director of Children’s 
Services outlined the early intervention service which had been commissioned to 
support families with disabled children and prevent an escalation of needs.  In 
response to questions from the Chair, he described the audit process for examining 
the quality of practice in relation to individual disabled children and their families and 
outlined how the process for Education, Health and Care Plans (EHCPs) had 
improved.  The Chair expressed concern at the financial pressures affecting the 
families of disabled children and the funding challenges facing the Council services 
and schools which supported them. 
 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services suggested that the Committee receive 
a specific report on the Children’s Social Work workforce at a future meeting to 
provide the information which Members had requested, to which the Chair agreed. 
 
In response to comments from the Chair, the Deputy Strategic Director of Children’s 
Services outlined the improvements that the introduction of the Liquid Logic IT 
system had brought and how the service had invested in wifi and improving office 
accommodation.  In response to a question from the Chair, he reported that Social 
Workers had weekly protected learning time, usually for two hours, and that staff 
could have additional protected learning time, depending on business needs. 
 
Decisions 
 
1. To recommend that the Committee visit frontline Social Work services. 
 
2. To receive a report on the Children’s Social Work workforce at a future 

meeting. 
 
CYP/23/03     Our Year 2022 
 
The Committee considered the report and presentation of the Strategic Director 
(Children and Education Services) which provided an overview of Our Year and 
looked at the next steps to take this work forward. 
 
Key points and themes in the presentation included: 
 

• Our Year themes; 

• Highlights of the year; 

• Feedback from children and young people; 

• Achievements from Our Year; and 

• Work towards becoming a UNICEF UK Child Friendly City. 
 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services informed Members about the 
celebration event on 31 January and extended the invitation to this to the Co-opted 
Members. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

Page 127

Item 12



• To welcome the work which had taken place as part of Our Year and thank all 
those involved; 

• The priority that children and young people placed on protecting the 
environment; 

• Noting that, as part of the work towards becoming a UNICEF UK Child 
Friendly City, Manchester had to focus on three mandatory “badges” (priority 
areas) and could choose three others that it would focus on, how would these 
other three be chosen; 

• To request that Ward Councillors be informed of how they could support this 
work; 

• Were there any areas of the city where fewer activities had happened in 2022 
and which would be given more focus going forward; and 

• How best to communicate with young people about activities they could 
participate in. 

 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services confirmed that the environment had 
been a strong theme emerging from every engagement with children and young 
people.  He stated that a young people-led Bee Green conference had been held 
which had informed the Education Climate Action Plan, which the Committee had 
received a report on and had asked for an update on at a future meeting.  He 
reported that children and young people wanted action to be taken, not just to talk 
about climate change, and the Council had provided funding for posts to help to 
achieve this.  He advised that the environment had also been considered in all the 
events that had taken place as part of Our Year, making events as carbon neutral as 
possible.  He advised that there had been a lot of learning from 2022 on how best to 
communicate and publicise activities using a range of methods. 
 
The Our Year Project Lead advised that the decision on which three additional 
badges to focus on would be made through analysis of the school engagement 
exercises, looking at baseline data, feedback from surveys and a discovery day in 
the spring where young people would sit down with key decision makers to determine 
which badges were most important.   
 
The Strategic Director (Children and Education Services) reported that consideration 
was being given to children’s rights training, which might involve Committee 
Members or the Overview and Scrutiny Co-ordinating Group, and that the Executive 
Member for Children’s Services was leading on a piece of work looking at how young 
people’s voices could be incorporated into Council decision-making.  The Executive 
Member for Children’s Services provided further information on what was being 
considered in relation to this and advised that the Committee would be provided with 
an update on this at a future meeting.  
 
In response to a question about schools becoming Rights Respecting Schools, the 
Strategic Director (Children and Education Services) suggested that Members who 
were governors raise this at their governors’ meetings and reported that this was a 
priority for the Children’s Board who would be looking at how they could support 
schools which wanted to become Rights Respecting Schools. 
 
The Chair shared her experiences of carrying out engagement with children and 
young people as part of Our Year.  She emphasised the importance of targeting 

Page 128

Item 12



activities in deprived areas, promoting the Holiday Activity Fund (HAF) and providing 
activities in young people’s own area, rather than expecting them to cross borders.  
She also emphasised the importance of play activities and early years.  She praised 
the Baby Week which had taken place but advised that more of this type of activity 
was needed.  She advised that safety was a key issue for children and young people 
and that the Committee should look at road safety around schools.  She emphasised 
the importance of using social value for the benefit of young people. 
 
The Executive Member for Children’s Services reported that the Council had put 
extra funding in to the HAF schemes to cover half-terms.  He reported that 
applications for youth and play activities tended to be lower in the north of the city so 
the Council was working to address this, encouraging more applications and building 
capacity to deliver activities in north Manchester.  In response to the Chair’s 
comments on younger children, he informed the Committee about the Kickstart 
programme as part of the work as a Marmot city region and advised that further 
information on this would be provided in a future report. 
 
Decision 
 
To consider a report on road safety around schools at a future meeting. 
 
CYP/23/04     School Governance Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Education which outlined the 
support and future planned developments that the Council would provide to assist 
with fostering effective school governance across the city. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
 

• Governor recruitment; 

• Governor support and resources; and 

• School quality assurance. 
 
The School Governance Lead expressed her thanks to all school governors across 
the city for their work. 
 
Some of the key points and themes that arose from the Committee’s discussions 
were: 
 

• That the Council should periodically write to school governors to thank them 
for their work; 

• Increasing the diversity of school governors, noting that most recruitment of 
school governors was via recommendations from people known to the current 
governors, which was likely to limit diversity, that some people would need 
more support to become a governor and that it was important to think more 
widely about who could become a governor; 

• Improving recruitment methods, noting that it was important to communicate 
what a governor’s role was, the benefits for the individual and that governors 
could choose the degree to which they were involved; and 

• Mentoring and training for school governors. 

Page 129

Item 12



 
The School Governance Lead reported that the Council did try to thank school 
governors in the city; however, she advised that it did not hold the contact details for 
all governors, which made this more challenging, and the message might not be 
passed on to all governors and she would take on board the Member’s comments.  
She informed the Committee that a session had recently taken place on diversity in 
governance which had included consideration of different methods of recruitment.  
She informed Members about the methods the Council used to encourage people to 
consider becoming a governor or to find out more about what the role involved.  She 
welcomed the comments that Members had made in relation to recruiting governors 
and said that these reflected issues that were currently being discussed.  In response 
to a Member’s question, she confirmed that people who were retiring were 
approached about becoming governors.   
 
The School Governance Lead reported that the Council recommended that schools 
provide mentors to new governors and that she was currently asking Chairs of 
Governors across the city if they would be willing to mentor new Chairs.  In relation to 
training, she stated that she encouraged governors to join the National Governors 
Association, which had a suite of e-learning modules, and that schools could also 
commission their own training.  She advised that she visited schools which required 
additional support on governance, where this need had been identified through the 
Schools Quality Assurance process.  In response to a Member’s question, she 
advised that she could provide the Member with details of the process for becoming 
a school governor but that this varied depending on the type of governor and the type 
of school   The Director of Education informed Members that another route to 
recruiting governors was through large employers, including the Council and the 
University of Manchester.  
 
Councillor Bell, Ward Councillor for Moss Side, suggested that officers recruit 
governors through the Civic Leadership programme and offered to speak with the 
School Governance Lead about this outside of the meeting.  The Chair suggested 
that the School Governance Lead also speak to Canon Susie Mapledoram, the new 
Co-opted Member representing the Diocese of Manchester, who stated that they had 
recently invested a lot of time in training and supporting the governors of Church of 
England schools. 
 
The Chair emphasised the important role of Parent Governors to hold school leaders 
to account.  She commented that Teachers TV had provided a good source of 
information for governors but was no longer produced.  She requested that Members 
be provided with data on governor vacancies by ward. 
 
Decision 
 
To request that Members be provided with data on governor vacancies by ward. 
 
CYP/23/05  Overview Report 
 
A report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit was submitted. The overview 
report contained key decisions within the Committee’s remit, responses to previous 
recommendations and the Committee’s work programme, which the Committee was 

Page 130

Item 12



asked to approve. 
 
Decisions 

 
1. To note the report and agree the work programme. 

 
2. To appoint Councillor Hewitson to the Ofsted Subgroup. 

 
 

Page 131

Item 12



 

Page 132

Item 12



 

 

Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Chohan, Hughes, Ilyas, Lyons, Nunney, Razaq and Wright 
 
Apologies: Councillor Doswell and Holt 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
 
ECCSC/22/45 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 10 November 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
ECCSC/22/46  Local Area Energy Plan – Progress Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of Strategic Director, Growth and Development 
that described that Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) was the first city 
region in the country to compile and complete Local Area Energy Plans (LAEP) from 
street to network level. The GM LAEP was adopted by GMCA in September 2022. 
This report provides an overview of the city’s LAEP and how this would be used to 
meet our target to be a zero carbon city region by 2038. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background; 

• Describing identified main issues; and  

• Describing ongoing work and next steps. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Noting the challenge of domestic boilers being ready to use hydrogen fuel; 

• The challenges to retrofitting presented by heritage buildings and what could be 
done to support residents; 

• What support was available more generally to support local residents in regard to 
delivering sustainable energy solutions; 

• Noting the prevalence of pre-1914 homes across Manchester and these being 
reported as dwellings that were most consistently identified as needing fabric 
retrofit to support decarbonisation; 

• Noting that there were a significant number of properties that were still single 
glazed. 
 
 
 

Page 133

Item 12



 

 

In response to the Committees deliberations the Strategic Lead, Resources & 
Programmes advised that residents could access the GMCA Your Home, Better 
website as a source of information and support available. Your Home, Better is an 
independent service delivered by retrofit experts, providing advice, planning and 
delivery to help reduce the costs of your bills as well as carbon emissions associated 
with home energy and heating. He acknowledged the specific comment regarding the 
challenges and associated costs of retrofitting heritage buildings.  
 
The Strategic Lead, Resources & Programmes further commented that currently 
there was a national issue in the supply of hydrogen domestic boilers, noting that 
currently there was no demand for these. 
 
The Strategic Director Development stated that the Council was taking a civic 
leadership role on the issue of LAEP, and this was aligned to the Climate Change 
Action Plan. She stated that future reports to the Committee would include an agreed 
action plan. 
 
The Interim Head of Infrastructure and Environment noted the comments regarding 
pre 1914 housing stock across the city. He stated that this understanding helped 
inform the modelling and articulating the scale of investment required to adequately 
deliver the scale of retrofitting. He further noted that replacing single glazing would 
significantly reduce heat loss and improve energy efficiency.   
 
Decision 
 
1. The Committee note the report. 
 
2. Recommend that an update report is submitted for consideration in the new 
municipal year. 
 
ECCSC/22/47 Draft Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy 
 
The Committee considered the report of Strategic Director (Growth and 
Development) that provided an overview of the draft Manchester Electric Vehicle 
Charging Strategy. 
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction and background;  

• Consideration of the main issues associated with the strategy; and 

• Providing the draft Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy for comment. 
 
The Committee had been invited to comment on the report prior to it being 
considered by the Executive. 
 
Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Noting the challenge and increased costs experienced by leaseholders wishing to 
install Electrical Vehicle Chargers, and what support could the Council offer 
tenants in negotiations with their landlords and property owners; 

Page 134

Item 12



 

 

• How would Electric Vehicle Charging Points be distributed across the city; and 

• How did this strategy complement other strategies, noting that the ambition was to 
improve public transport, improve options for active travel and thus reduce the 
dependency on cars. 
 

The Strategic Director (Growth & Development) advised that the strategy described 
the role of the Council. The strategy recognised that this area of work would be led 
primarily by the market, and would respond to demand. 

 
The Interim Head of Infrastructure and Environment acknowledged that there was a 
need to introduce more electric vehicle charging facilities, hence the production of the 
strategy.  He further advised that the installation of domestic charging points was 
primarily currently for those with the funds and ability (i.e having a driveway) to do so, 
adding that the Council had limited ability to intervene between a tenant and a 
landlord on this issue. 

 
The Senior Policy Officer stated that this strategy would be reviewed in recognition of 
the speed of which technology developed. She said that these initial proposals were 
for the Council to consider the best use of their estates and facilities to deliver 
charging points, noting that grid capacity would also have to be taken into 
consideration. She said that the use of Council facilities would supplement wider 
provision by the market. She further commented that any new developments were 
now required through planning conditions to ensure electric vehicle charging points 
were installed. 
  
The Interim Head of Infrastructure and Environment stated that the GM 2040 
Transport Strategy had committed to 50% of all journeys being undertaken by public 
transport and active travel, and anticipated an increase in the use of electric vehicles. 
He said that as demand developed, the location of electric vehicle charging facilities 
across the city would remain under review. 
 
The Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport reiterated the 
importance of delivering an integrated sustainable transport strategy, adding that 
reliable alternatives would reduce dependency on cars. She stated that this also 
needed to be considered in the context of climate and health justice, noting the 
significant issue of air quality and health implications, particularly for children across 
the city.    
 
In considering this item the Chair reiterated the need to consider this topic in 
conjunction with the strategies to improve active travel and improve connected public 
transport across all areas of the city. 
 
Decision 
 
1. The Committee recommend that an additional principle be included in the list of 
Principles listed at page 15 of the Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy. To 
read as ‘Electric Vehicle charge points should be readily available and accessible to 
residents wherever they live in the city.’ 

 

Page 135

Item 12



 

 

2. The Committee recommend that the Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging 
Strategy be considered in conjunction with emerging policy and strategy on public 
transport and active travel.  
 
3. The Committee recommend that the Executive approve and endorse the 
Manchester Electric Vehicle Charging Strategy, noting the above recommendation. 
 
ECCSC/22/48  Single Use Plastics 
 
The Committee considered the report of Head of Integrated Commissioning and 
Procurement; Strategic Lead, Resources and Programmes and the  Sustainability 
Project Manager, Zero Carbon that provided an update on work being undertaken 
across the Council on Single Use Plastics as part of the action under Workstream 3 
of the Council’s Climate Change Action Plan.  
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing an introduction, noting that in 2019 Manchester City Council had 
pledged to eradicate avoidable Single Use Plastics (SUPs) by 2024; 

• All ten Greater Manchester local authorities, plus the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority had committed to actions related to reducing SUPs including 
aiming to eradicate avoidable single use plastic; 

• Describing the Council’s commitments as stated within the refreshed Manchester 
City Council Climate Change Action Plan 2020-25; 

• Progress to date; and 

• Next steps. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• What approach was taken to SUPs at markets, noting the success of the 
Christmas markets; 

• Noting that for specific health conditions it was necessary to use a straw; 

• How were avoidable and unavoidable plastics assessed; and 

• What was the approach taken to the various supply chains via the Council’s 
procurement process on the issue of SUPs. 
 

The Sustainability Project Manager responded by advising that SUP food and drink 
serveware and bags had been banned on the Manchester Christmas markets since 
2019, and this was routinely checked by officers. She further noted the comment 
regarding access to drinking straws for those with specific health conditions and 
advised that information on this would be provided to the Member following the 
meeting. She further advised that the Zero Carbon Team would continue to support 
the key messaging and enforcement surrounding SUPs, which will reflect the 
outcome of most recent Government consultation on a potential further ban on SUP 
items when known. She said they were committed to working with different teams 
and external partners on education and engagement on SUPs, including the Events 
Team to support them, adding that they produced written guidance in the form of a 
range of Sustainable Events Guides, including a specific guide on reusable cups and 
shared examples of good practice 

Page 136

Item 12



 

 

In response to the question raised regarding the distinction between avoidable and 

unavoidable plastics she advised that the approach was to understand what was in 

use; categorise the item as avoidable or unavoidable by 2024 through consideration 

of alternatives, including production and waste stream consequences. She also 

clarified that the categorisation of SUPs would be completed as part of action 

planning process within the next six months, so that avoidable SUPs could be 

eradicated by end of 2024 and a plan in place for unavoidable SUPs beyond 2024. 

The Head of Integrated Commissioning and Procurement advised that the Council 

had introduced a 10% evaluation weighting in procurements relating to climate 

change and the environment. He said that written guidance in relation to this was 

provided to contractors, noting that the questions asked of suppliers needed to be 

relevant to the specific nature of the contract. He advised he could provide written 

examples of questions asked regarding SUPs to the Chair to use in response to a 

resident’s query. 

The Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport called for the 
increased awareness amongst the population on the issue of SUPs. In response to a 
specific issue raised regarding the licensing regime, the Chair suggested that she 
should pursue this in her capacity as a Deputy Executive Member. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCSC/22/49  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
 
The Chair advised the Committee that the need to maximise revenue to the Council 
from commercial events that were delivered in Manchester parks that arose when 
discussing the Budget report at the November meeting would be considered by the 
Resources and Governance Scrutiny Committee.    
 
A Member recommended that an oral report be received at the January 2023 
meeting that provides an update on the waste collection service during the Christmas 
period. The Committee endorsed this recommendation. 
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
amendment. 

Page 137

Item 12



 

Page 138

Item 12



 

 

Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 12 January 2023 
 
Present: 
Councillor Shilton Godwin – in the Chair 
Councillors Doswell, Holt, Ilyas, Nunney and Wright 
 
Apologies: Councillors Hughes, Lyons and Razaq 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Craig, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Foley, Deputy Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Councillor Igbon, Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Councillor Ahmed Ali, Deputy Executive Member for Vibrant Neighbourhoods 
Neil Robinson, CSR and Future Airspace Director, Manchester Airports Group 
Andy Clarke, Head of Corporate Affairs, Manchester Airport 
Samantha Nicholson, Manchester Climate Change Agency 
 
ECCSC/23/01 Urgent Business - Large Scale Renewable Energy 

Generation - Solar Farm Purchase 
 
The Chair invited the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer to address the 
Committee on the report that is listed on the agenda for the meeting of Executive, 18 
January 2023 entitled ‘Large Scale Renewable Energy Generation - Solar Farm 
Purchase’. 
 
The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer stated that following the meeting of 
the Executive an update report would be submitted to the Committee for 
consideration at a time to be agreed in consultation with the Chair. 
 
Decision  
 
To note the update. 
 
ECCSC/23/02 Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 8 December 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
ECCSC/23/03  Waste Collection Over the Christmas Period 
 
The Committee received a verbal report on the waste collection service over the 
Christmas period.   
 
The Strategic Lead, Waste Recycling and Street Cleaning stated: 
  

Page 139

Item 12



 

 

• That compared to previous years there had been a reduction in the number of 
reported incidents and fly tipping; 

• Planning for the increase in waste over the Christmas period was anticipated and 
taken into account when planning service delivery; 

• Collection dates had been adjusted to take into account bank holidays over the 
Christmas period; 

• Changes to these dates had been communicated to residents, the contact centre 
and key stakeholders such as housing providers; 

• Availability of the Household Waste and Recycling Centres had been promoted; 

• Delays and missed bins collections had occurred due to vehicle malfunctions and 
staff shortages due to illness; 

• In the event of these incidents the agreed contingency plans were instigated, and 
missed bins were collected as soon possible, usually the next day with residents 
informed of these arrangements; 

• This was the first year that electric vehicle had been used and analysis of their 
performance would be undertaken to understand any challenges experienced and 
this learning would inform future service delivery planning over the Christmas 
period;  

• Street cleansing had continued to take place, noting that the water supplies for 
machinery had been affected by the bought of prolonged freezing weather;  

• Cycle lanes would be inspected, and any areas of concern identified would be 
addressed by Biffa; 

• The department worked closely with the Highways Department to ensure cycle 
lanes were designed to ensure they were accessible and could be cleaned easily 
by Biffa crews; 

• Different departments worked together to coordinate activities to reduce the 
incidents of pooling of water on highways; 

• If residents and/or Members wished to report missed bin collections, they should 
do this via the contact centre; 

• Members had been provided with the Annual Leaf Removal Programme, noting 
the impact of the spell of cold weather on the timing of leaf fall; 

• A lessons learnt exercise would be undertaken to inform future planning; and 

• Recommending that all residents subscribe to the alerts system that provided 
bespoke information on bin collections and any issues with the service. 
 

In response to a specific question raised regarding the potential for additional 
collections of paper and cardboard over the Christmas period the Committee were 
advised that the volumes of waste from the different streams would be analysed to 
inform the future planning of service delivery over this busy period. 

 
Decision 
 
To note the verbal update. 
 
ECCSC/23/04 Manchester Airport and Aviation Emissions 
 
The Committee considered the joint report of Manchester City Council, Manchester 
Climate Change Agency and Manchester Airports Group that provided an update on 

Page 140

Item 12



 

 

progress since the 9 December 2021 report the Committee received which 
considered the relationship between aviation and the city’s carbon emissions.  
 
Key points and themes in the report and accompanying presentation included: 
  

• Setting out the Council’s role in relation to reducing aviation emissions and its 
relationship to Manchester Airports Group (MAG) who own and operate three 
United Kingdom airports, including Manchester Airport; 

• An update from the Manchester Climate Change Agency which provided an 
extract from the 2022 Update to the Manchester Climate Change Framework 
setting out the citywide position in relation to aviation emissions; and 

• An update from the MAG on the international position in relation to aviation 
emissions, the approach taken by the UK Government and MAG's own work to 
reduce emissions from flights to and from Manchester Airport and from ground 
operations. 
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Recognising and welcoming the leadership demonstrated to date by the Council, 
MAG and the Manchester Climate Change Agency on this important issue;  

• Noting however that the projections provided remain incompatible with restraining 
carbon emissions to 1.5%  

• Noting that the report and information provided was more open and transparent; 

• Previous updates had included graphs to articulate the rate of emissions against 
projected targets and asked that these be included in any future updates; 

• The need to reduce domestic business travel and calling for an improved, 
sustainable and reliable rails service to support this; 

• What were that targets for increased passenger numbers and associated travel at 
the airport; 

• More needed to be done by Government, including consideration of the 
introduction of a frequent flyer tax; 

• Was the Jet Zero Strategy target of 10% of fuel must be sustainable alternative 
fuels (SAF) by 2030 challenging enough; 

• What was the approach taken to private jets at the airport; and 

• Asking for MAG to take their leadership to the next level within the sector so that 
the sector accelerates its activity to reduce emissions.  

 
Neil Robinson, Manchester Airports Group responded to questions and comments by 
stating that MAG had welcomed the rigorous challenge and debate with partners on 
the issue of addressing aviation emissions and they were keen to lead on this issue 
with the wider industry. He stated that MAG had delivered on their commitment to 
decarbonisation, noting that all MAG’s airports continue to be certified as carbon 
neutral. He advised that the majority of flights undertaken from Manchester airport 
were for leisure, adding that the number of private jets using Manchester airport was 
very small. He advised that most domestic flights were to destinations which either 
crossed over a body of water, or where the alternative mode of transport would take 
longer than 4 hours. The exception was Heathrow, a large airport that acted as a hub 
for other international destinations. He stated that it was important to manage 
emissions associated with whatever mode of transport was taken. 

Page 141

Item 12



 

 

 
In terms of decarbonisation, Neil Robinson, Manchester Airports Group informed the 
Committee that the projected industry figures were very broadly a 10% reduction in 
aviation emissions over the next decade, facilitated due to efficiencies realised by 
aircraft entering the fleet; a further 20% increase in the following decade to be 
achieved as a result of the increased take up of SAF and a further 40% increase in 
the next decade due to an acceleration of technologies, adding that these projections 
reflected those of the Government’s Jet Zero Strategy. He stated that the industry 
would still have associated residual emissions and it was important to be honest and 
transparent about this. He commented that as the scale of decarbonisation nationally 
accelerated, emissions associated with the aviation industry would appear to remain 
high, but it was important to understand these figures in relative terms.  He advised 
that the Jet Zero Strategy demanded that any residual emissions would need to be 
compensated for, either via carbon removal or carbon offsetting. He stated that the 
increased costs associated with these requirements would drive and further stimulate 
industry efficiencies and technological improvements. Members asked that further 
information on the carbon offsetting proposals were circulated following the meeting. 
 
Neil Robinson, Manchester Airports Group advised that with exception of the impact 
of COVID-19 the airport had witnessed sustained growth, as high as 10% year on 
year growth in passenger numbers and it was anticipated that future growth would be 
continued. He advised that it was important to acknowledge the significant economic 
and social value that the airport brought to the city and wider city region. He 
commented that the airport accounted for approximately 25,000 jobs on site with an 
additional 75,000 jobs in the associated supply chain. He stated that any growth 
needed to be delivered within safe and agreed environmental limits. He stated that 
the emissions limits imposed on the industry would stimulate improvements across 
the sector and incentivise technological progress within the industry. In terms of 
projected passenger demand he advised that this modelling would be provided 
following the meeting. 
 
In regard to SAF, he stated that a lot of the initial safety concerns had been 
addressed, adding that a significant amount of work had been done in the industry to 
provide an assurance in this regard. He stated that the challenge now was to 
facilitate the production of this at scale. He advised that significantly large investment 
would be required and as such any potential investor needed an assurance that they 
would see a viable return. He advised that in other countries a price support 
mechanism had been introduced to support this investment and he called upon the 
Government to introduce the same in the UK. He stated that this presented a great 
opportunity to stimulate economic growth and job creation in the UK, and in particular 
in the North West. He also commented that discussions were ongoing as to how the 
manufacture of SAF could be an opportunity to use residual waste from Manchester 
and support a circular waste economy. 
 
The Leader of the Council stated that MAG in partnership with the Council and the 
Manchester Climate Change Agency were taking national leadership on the issue of 
aviation emissions. She called for increased national leadership on the issue from the 
Government and an increased commitment to the delivery of reliable and sustainable 
rail travel. She stated that she supported the delivery of HS2, commenting that the 

Page 142

Item 12



 

 

introduction of improved connectivity would reduce the need for internal domestic 
flights.   
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCSC/23/05 Manchester City Council Climate Change Action Plan –  
   Quarter 3 Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City 
Treasurer that provided an update on progress in delivering the Council’s Climate 
Change Action Plan (CCAP) during Quarter 3 2022-23 (October – December 2022).   
 
Key points and themes in the report included: 
  

• Providing and introduction and background; 

• Key messages from the Quarter 3 progress report; 

• Noting that since 2020, the Council had remained within its carbon budget each 
year and the Quarter 3 report showed continued progress being made with the 
Council on track to meet its 2025 target; 

• Key achievements in this quarter; and 

• Data on CO2 emissions.    
 

Some of the key points that arose from the Committee’s discussions were: -  
 

• Welcoming the report and the good work described; 

• Recognising that this good work was being promoted amongst partners and key 
stakeholders; 

• Congratulating all staff involved in the programmes that had received awards and 
national recognition; and 

• The need to promote active travel amongst staff. 
 
The Zero Carbon Manager described how dedicated resources had been allocated to 
increase capacity within the team to look at staff active travel. She stated that this is 
an area identified as requiring additional attention which it is receiving and 
improvements were beginning to be realised and she was confident that 
improvements would be achieved. She said this included increased use of different 
channels of communication with staff and work with the Parks Teams. She advised 
that more information on this specific work would be provided at the next meeting. 
 
The Committee noted that they would be considering the Manchester Green and 
Blue Strategy at their March meeting and Chair asked that this included information 
on nature-based solutions.   
 
In response to a question from a Member who asked if there had been any analysis 
of any increase in the use of journeys undertaken by cars as a result of the disruption 
to the train service, the Strategic Lead, Resources & Programmes stated that he 
would take this enquiry away from the meeting and respond. 
 

Page 143

Item 12



 

 

The Executive Member for Environment and Transport stated that the learning from 
all the work described was cascaded and informed all the work of the Council. She 
stated that was everyone’s business to take action and responsibility to address 
climate change. 
  
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
ECCSC/23/06 Draft Terms of Reference and Work Programme for the  
   Climate Change Ward Action Plans Task and Finish Group 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
that set out the proposed terms of reference and work programme for the Climate 
Change Ward Action Plans Task and Finish group. 
 
The Committee were invited to agree the membership of the Task and Finish Group; 
agree the terms of reference for the Task and Finish Group and agree the work 
programme of the Task and Finish Group, which will be reviewed by the group at 
each of its meetings. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To endorse the terms of reference for the Task and Finish Group and agree the 
work programme of the Task and Finish Group. 
 
2. To appoint Councillors Doswell, Shilton Godwin and Wright (Chair), as members of 
the Task and Finish Group. 
 
ECCSC/23/07  Overview Report 
 
The report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit which contained key 
decisions within the Committee’s remit and responses to previous recommendations 
was submitted for comment. Members were also invited to agree the Committee’s 
future work programme. 
 
A Member requested that information on what support the Council can offer to 
leasehold owner-occupiers and tenants who maybe experiencing resistance from the 
property owner regarding installing energy efficiency improvements to the property 
be provided in either the Housing Retrofit update report scheduled for March 2023 or 
the update report on the Local Area Energy Plan.   
 
Decision 
 
The Committee notes the report and agrees the work programme, noting the above 
amendment. 

Page 144

Item 12



Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 8 December 2022 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Noor, Raikes, I Robinson, Shilton Godwin and Taylor 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Craig, Leader of the Council 
Councillor Midgley, Deputy Leader of the Council 
Jen Atkins, Bruntwood 
Nick Cooper, Adept Corporate Services 
Ross Holden, GMB 
Ian MacArthur, Director of the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter 
Professor Anthony Rafferty, University of Manchester 
Conor Rand, USDAW  
 
Apologies: Councillors Bell, Good and Moran 
 
ESC/22/47 Minutes  
 
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the previous meeting, held on Thursday, 10 November 2022, be 
approved as a correct record.  
 
ESC/22/48 Living Wage City: Evidence Hearing  
 
The Leader of the Council introduced the item and explained that the Council and 

Manchester had been on a significant journey to become a Real Living Wage Place, 

which would bring the Real Living Wage together across a range of sectors to ensure 

all residents and workers in Manchester receive the pay they deserve. There were 

over 200 Real Living Wage accredited organisations in Manchester, reaching around 

65,000 residents, and it could be demonstrated that between 5000 and 6000 people 

had directly received a pay rise as a result of their employer becoming accredited.  

  

The Leader acknowledged that almost a quarter of Manchester residents earned less 

than the Real Living Wage and that challenges around poverty in certain areas of the 

city remained. The Council’s Anti-Poverty Strategy worked to alleviate and support 

those living in poverty and a well-paid job with good terms and conditions and 

working standards was highlighted as the easiest way out of poverty.  

  

The committee welcomed and heard from a number of guests from a variety of 
industries and sectors within Manchester on the Living Wage and the good practice 
they undertake.  
  

Ross Holden, Research and Policy Officer for GMB trade union, explained that GMB 

engaged with a range of bodies on minimum wages and the Real Living Wage and 

Page 145

Item 12



that GMB were pursuing a policy for the national minimum wage to be raised to the 

same rate as the Real Living Wage and that a Foundation Living Wage of £10.90 p.h. 

be introduced for those sectors in which low pay was particularly prevalent.  

  

He noted that the adoption of the Real Living Wage was influenced by certain factors, 

including government funding and the emerging economy, but he believed that there 

were levers in place for the Council to encourage more businesses and organisations 

to pay the Real Living Wage.  

  

Ross raised points around private social care, where some staff were having to rely 

on food banks and there were issues around a lack of contractual sick pay and travel 

time between visits being unpaid. He called on the Council to encourage private 

social care providers to pay the Real Living Wage, to support GMB’s campaigns and 

to meet with trade unions to identify how social care can be commissioned differently. 

He also suggested that the Council commit to involving trade unions in the 

commissioning process and highlighted GMB’s Ethical Home Care Commissioning 

Charter, which other local authorities had signed up to. 

  

In response to these suggestions, the Leader stated that the Council would be happy 

to work towards signing up to the Ethical Home Care Commissioning Charter and 

that similar work had been undertaken in 2018/19 with Unison to redesign how social 

care providers were commissioned, abolishing 15-minute visits, not paying people by 

the minute and ensuring that travel time between visits were paid. 

  

GMB was also working to improve workers rights within platform organisations and 

asked that the Council, as a majority shareholder, worked with other shareholders at 

Manchester Airport Group (MAG) to ensure it becomes Real Living Wage accredited 

and that the Real Living Wage is paid to all workers, including contractors, in the 

airport zone.  

  

Conor Rand, Senior Researcher for the Union of Shop, Distributive and Allied 

Workers (USDAW) explained that the union represented around 360,000 workers in 

the UK and held agreements with a range of major retailers. He reflected on the 

importance of good work, given the cost-of-living crisis which had massively impacted 

USDAW members. USDAW had undertaken a cost-of-living survey in November 

2022 and found that 80% of respondents in Manchester had been unable to take 

time off work when ill and 77% reported the financial worries were impacting their 

mental health.  

  

Conor expressed that the cost-of-living crisis was largely a crisis of low pay, weak 

employment rights and a lack of good work. Whilst low pay was a significant issue, 

Conor advised that many USDAW members struggled most with the number of hours 

worked, whether this be above or below their contracted amount, and being denied 

extra hours by their employer.  

  

He explained that USDAW had created a New Deal for Workers campaign, which 

called for a minimum wage of £12 p.h for all workers, a minimum 16-hour week 

Page 146

Item 12



contract for those interested, a right to a normal-hours contract to reflect the actual 

hours worked, a ban on zero-hour contracts, improved sick pay and a holistic 

approach to good work. Members were advised that USDAW had successfully 

negotiated for minimum 16-hour week contracts for those interested and normal-

hours contracts with Tesco and this was hoped to be replicated with other retailers.  

  

The committee took the opportunity to ask questions of the trade union 

representatives and queried what work trade unions were undertaking to address 

discrepancies between hours of actual work and holiday entitlements.  

  

Conor responded by explaining that USDAW’s request for a minimum 16-hour week 

would benefit this and was seen to be the benchmark for access to statutory work 

rights and ensures a level of flexibility for employer buy-in.  

Issues around universal credit and how changes in pay can result in a claimant 

receiving less than anticipated were highlighted. Conor reiterated the effect of 

changes in pay and additional bonuses on allowances and the contrast in pay dates 

of wages and universal credit.  

  

A query was also raised as to what more the Council could do to improve the working 

lives of residents. It was suggested that there were major employers in Manchester 

who did not allow trade union oversight and the Council could apply significant 

pressure on such organisations and particularly national and international brands. 

The Council also had a role in leading by example socially and politically and it was 

suggested that social value could be maximised within the procurement procedure, 

although it was recognised that the Council had embedded social value into its 

procurement framework.  

  

In response to a question from the Chair around how trade unions were organising 

those who worked in a non-traditional workplace, Ross explained that GMB were 

increasing public knowledge and undertaking partnership work.  

Jen Atkins, People Director at Bruntwood commercial property company and member 

of the Real Living Wage Action Group, explained that the Real Living Wage had 

provided financial security for Bruntwood employees and helped them to feel valued 

for their work.  

  

Jen highlighted how paying the Real Living Wage was also beneficial for businesses 

as this improved recruitment, retention and performance. She acknowledged the 

impact of the cost-of-living crisis, increased energy costs and challenges in 

recruitment and how this reiterated the need to be a good employer. She concurred 

with the previous speakers that paying the Real Living Wage should be a minimum.  

  

In response to a question as to what more the Council could do to encourage 

businesses to pay the Real Living Wage, Jen acknowledged the leadership and 

influence that the Council had and that it could promote workers rights and 

entitlements to increase awareness.  

  

Page 147

Item 12



Jen was also asked how businesses absorbed additional costs of paying the Real 

Living Wage and advised that, in Bruntwood’s experience, there had been a £250k 

impact and that some of this had been passed onto customers through increased 

costs and that savings had been made through using smarter, digital technology and 

greater automation which reduced the amount required for repairs.  

  

It was asked what advice Jen would give to small businesses wanting to pay the Real 

Living Wage, and Jen suggested that they think about the long-term benefits for the 

company and the advantages this would have on retention and productivity.  

  

Members also referred to the issue of employees working more hours than 

contracted for, which was raised earlier. It was stated that Bruntwood offered both 

variable hours and 16-hour minimum contracts. Quarterly reviews were also 

undertaken to ensure that employees were not working over their contracted hours.  

  

Professor Anthony Rafferty, Professor of Employment Studies and Managing Director 

of the Work and Equalities Institute at the University of Manchester also attended the 

meeting and explained that there had been good progress in the number of 

organisations in Manchester signing up to the Real Living Wage. He suggested that 

there was a need to make the Real Living Wage attractive to employers, particularly 

with business cases such as an evidence base of retention and recruitment figures 

for those organisations already paying the Real Living Wage.  

  

Anthony expressed his belief that topics such as organisational development and 

business transformation would be pathways to opening up discussions on the Real 

Living Wage with organisations who may not be initially receptive. He also explained 

that the Productivity Institute had recently received funding to establish employer 

panels to guide through interventions to improve productivity and this may be useful 

to the work of the Council and the Living Wage Foundation.  

  

Ian McArthur, Director of the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter, 

provided an overview of his work and highlighted how the Real Living Wage was a 

binary condition of the Charter and that it was often a barrier to engaging with an 

employer.  

  

A Good Employment Week would be held in 2023 to address messaging directly to 

employees to help understand what was meant by ‘good work’. Ian acknowledged a 

need to reach out to those experiencing low pay and insecure work.  

  

Ian was joined by Nick Cooper, Managing Director of Adept Corporate Services 

which was the only security manned guarding company to be Real Living Wage 

accredited in the UK. Nick explained that Adept was a supporter of the GM Good 

Employment Charter and did not meet the eligibility criteria to become a member as 

Adept did not provide sick pay from the first day of employment. This would be 

implemented in 2023 and Adept would become a member of the Charter. 

  

Page 148

Item 12



Nick highlighted increases in retention rates and response rates to staff surveys as 

well as decreases in sickness levels and in the timescale between recruitment and 

fulfilment as a result of paying the Real Living Wage and being a Good Employer.  

  

He also explained that the company has the Adept Living Wage, which meant that 

92% of staff were paid at least an additional 50% of the Real Living Wage. All full-

time employees received an annual £500 bonus, with part-time staff receiving £250.  

  

Some challenges in clients not wanting to pay the Real Living Wage were 

acknowledged and Nick provided an example of where he had served notice on a 

client who refused to pay the Real Living Wage and staff would be redeployed to 

other clients who were willing to pay the Real Living Wage.  

  

The Chair queried what drove the reticence around providing sick pay from the first 

day of employment, to which Nick explained that this was due to cost and that this 

would work out costing Adept £84k based on sickness levels from 2022.  

  

Ian also advised that the requirement of sick pay from the first day of employment 

was added to the criteria for membership of the Charter due to the COVID-19 

pandemic as many low-paid workers were required to work with the virus. 

Experiences indicated that some sectors faced difficulties in agreeing to pay sick pay 

from the first day of employment due to national agreements and where sickness 

absence could last longer due to the nature of workplace injuries.   

  

In response to a query as to how Nick promoted conversations on being a Good 

Employer and paying the Real Living Wage with his Board members, some 

difficulties were acknowledged and Nick emphasised the need for businesses to look 

at the bigger picture and future forecasts to highlight the investment in staff and the 

return that this could provide.  

  

Ian also explained that the GM Good Employment Charter worked with organisations 

which were employee-owned and have transformed the values and culture of their 

business through this. Many of these also acted as advocates for the Charter and 

supported other employers on specific or sectoral issues.  

The Chair questioned how the GM Good Employment Charter worked with the labour 

market to encourage conversations around good employment and awareness of 

working rights. Ian explained that the Good Employment Week in 2023 would 

address this and would provide a QR code around the city, which would direct people 

to a website and ask a series of questions to tell them if they had a good job. The 

website would also advertise what the Real Living Wage is and link to resources on 

the GM Good Employment Charter website. This would also be sharable on social 

media to reach as wide an audience as possible.  

  

In response to a question around how awareness around good employment can be 

increased among young people, Ian advised that the Charter was working to provide 

an educational kit for schools and colleges about what good work looked like to 

Page 149

Item 12



provide a base knowledge for young people entering the workforce. It was hoped that 

this would be available in time for the Good Employment Week.  

  

Work was also ongoing with the Trade Union Congress (TUC) and colleagues on the 

Charter’s Board to encourage involvement in the Good Employment Week.  

  

The Chair, on behalf of the Committee, thanked guests for their attendance and 

contributions.  

 
ESC/22/49 Living Wage City: Report Discussion  
 
The committee considered a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy which 
detailed the Manchester Living Wage Action Group’s work to become a Living Wage 
City, why this is important, and how it intended to continue promoting the real living 
wage in Manchester. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         Manchester announced its intention to become a Living Wage City in 

September 2021 and was recognised in October 2022; 

•         The real living wage is set by the Living Wage Foundation and based on 

independent advice and was currently set at £10.90 per hour; 

•         Becoming a living wage city was important for Manchester as most of the 

city’s significant problems were linked closely to poverty, and while 

worklessness and benefit dependency remained the main drivers of poverty in 

Manchester, there had been an increase in in-work poverty in recent years; 

•         The criteria required to become Living Wage accredited; 

•         The benefits for both an employer and employee; 

•         Manchester was required by the Living Wage Foundation to convene a Living 

Wage action group to collectively develop a three-year action plan to increase 

the number of living wage employers in the city and to be made up of a range 

of accredited organisations, including anchor institutions, SME employers and 

the third sector; 

•         The role of the action group and the action plan; 

•         The targets and actions for the Action Group; and 

•         Next steps of Manchester’s Living Wage journey, including handing 

responsibility to the Work and Skills team for delivery.  

  

The key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

•         If the Council had experienced any difficulties in engaging with employers due 

to current financial difficulties, and whether this was difficult for specific 

sectors;  

•         Noting that voluntary, community and social enterprises (VCSE) was not 

typically a high-paid industry; 

•         Noting a recruitment and retention crisis within employment; 

Page 150

Item 12



•         If the Council was doing all it could within its licensing and planning policies to 

promote the Real Living Wage; and  

•         How the Council could promote the Real Living Wage through the 

commissioning procedure.  

  

The Director of Inclusive Economy acknowledged that the impact of current financial 
uncertainties on employer engagement with the Real Living Wage. She explained 
that big anchor institutions were key and the Council had asked them to encourage 
other employers within their sectors and spheres of influence to engage with the 
Living Wage Foundation.  
Some challenges were noted, such as the Living Wage Foundation only recognising 
the headquarters of a business which caused some issues if the Manchester office of 
an organisation wanted to become accredited.  
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy also explained that the Council would continue to 
present a video on the Real Living Wage, which members had watched earlier in the 
meeting, and use the levers it had to further encourage other employers to become 
accredited.  
  
The Director of the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter also advised the 
Committee that his organisation had surveyed members of Charter after the 
announcement of the increase in the Real Living Wage, and members remained 
committed to paying this.  
  
The Deputy Leader informed members that the Council stipulated in funding 
applications for VCSE that organisations must be able to demonstrate that they either 
pay the Real Living Wage or had a commitment to implementing this within the next 
two years and MACC were supporting VSCE organisations to devise an action plan 
for this.   
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy added that MACC strongly urged VCSE 
organisations to pay the Real Living Wage but acknowledged the need for Living 
Wage funders, who could build enough into commissions and grants so that VCSE 
organisations could pay the Real Living Wage and then monitor it through contract 
and grant conditions. Some progress had been made on this, although it was noted 
that more work needed to be undertaken.  
  
It was confirmed that there were no conditions around the Real Living Wage within 
the Council’s planning and licensing policies as there were no legal powers to 
enforce this. 
  
The Strategy and Economic Policy Manager also explained that social value was 
already well embedded within the Council’s procurement and commissioning 
processes, although he acknowledged the need to ensure consistency across the 
organisation.  
  
He concurred with members’ points about retention issues within the workforce and 
reiterated that those engaged with the Living Wage Action Group remained 
committed.  
  

Page 151

Item 12



The next phase of work for the action group would identify levers which the Council 
could utilise to achieve its outcomes for the city and would help to open up 
conversations with different employers.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee 

  
1.   notes Manchester City Council’s approach to increasing the number of 

residents being paid a real living wage; 

  

2.   expresses their support for the Council in using all its levers, including 

procurement, land ownership, civic influence and place-based lead for health 

to increase the number of employers paying a real living wage; and 

  
3.    supports the Council’s ambition to increase the number of residents being paid 

a real living wage by promoting this work through members’ own contacts and 

networks. 

 
ESC/22/50 The Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter  
 
The committee considered a report of the Director of the Greater Manchester Good 
Employment Charter which provided an update on the work undertaken to create the 
Charter Implementation Unit and delivery mechanisms, how the Charter had been 
delivered and its impacts, and reflected upon the challenges of the changing nature 
of work and the growth of the good employment moving in the current socio-
economic climate, moving from the COVID-19 pandemic through to the current cost 
of living crisis. 
  
Key points and themes within the report included: 
  

•         The Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter’s role as a key partner 

for Manchester’s Real Living Wage Campaign, Our Manchester Business 

Forum and the Work and Skills Team in improving good employment practice 

across the city; 

•         How the Charter would continue to create a good employment ‘movement’ in 

Greater Manchester; 

•         How the Charter would continue to work with its partners to deepen the pool 

of supporting resource and provide a platform for the Good Employment 

community to spread and support good practice; 

•         How the Charter would work with partners to develop innovative approaches 

to good employment practice and to continually evolve and develop new 

solutions; 

•         The characteristics of good employment; 

•         Since its inception in early 2020, the Charter had grown to reach around 

1,300 employers, including over 450 supporters and 76 full members, covering 

in excess of 400,000 employees; and  

Page 152

Item 12



•         Manchester Metropolitan University (MMU) evaluated the first year of the 

Charter, examining both the motivations and experience of Charter ‘leads’ – 

those who took their organisation through the process of becoming either a 

supporter or member – and employees in Charter organisations on their 

experience of good employment. The findings from the evaluation were 

broadly positive, with some suggested next steps and recommendations on 

how to improve reach and impact. 

  

Much of the previous discussions included reference to the Greater Manchester 
Good Employment Charter and the Committee expressed its thanks to the Director of 
the Greater Manchester Good Employment Charter for his attendance and 
contributions.  
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
 
ESC/22/51 Overview Report  
 
The committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided details of key decisions within the committee’s remit and its work 
programme. 
  
Decision: 
  
That the Committee note the report. 
 
 
 

Page 153

Item 12



 

Page 154

Item 12



Economy Scrutiny Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 12 January 2023 
 
Present:  
Councillor Johns (Chair) – in the Chair 
Councillors Good, Noor, Raikes, I Robinson, Shilton Godwin and Taylor 
 
Also present:  
Councillor Hacking, Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 
Councillor Rawlins, Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
Rhianna Austin, Laing O’Rourke 
Amanda Boyd, LendLease 
Lauren Murphy, Laing O’Rourke 
Abdul Tahir, Mace 
 
 
ESC/23/1 Minutes  
 
Decision: 
  
That the minutes of the meeting held on Thursday, 8 December 2022 be approved as 
a correct record.  
 
ESC/23/2 Employment and Training Opportunities from Major Capital  

Programmes  
 
The committee considered a report of the Director of Inclusive Economy which 

provided an update on the employment and skills opportunities created from 

Manchester City Council’s major capital investment programmes, with a key focus on 

the Our Town Hall and The Factory projects.  

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

•   The importance of social value and the need to embed it within the Council’s 

capital investment programmes; 

•   The integration of social value into the Our Town Hall Project through 

contractual mechanisms with construction and design team employers from 

the outset of the project; 

•   The monitoring of social value against 20 specific Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs), based around employment, skills, training, and local community benefit 

with a monetary value attached to each KPI that measures social return on 

investment (SROI); 

•   The social and economic value achievements of the Our Town Hall project 

and progress against KPIs, including individual case studies; 

•   The social and economic value achievements of The Factory project and 

progress against KPIs, including individual case studies;  

Page 155

Item 12



•   Noting that the Factory’s Social Value KPIs were realigned in June 2021 to 

create new jobs, new apprenticeships and Kickstart placements for 

Manchester residents first; 

•   The procurement framework used by several Greater Manchester local 

authorities and the North West Construction Hub (NWCH) focused on 

Manchester projects; 

•   Tenders for a large Manchester City Council capital funded project must 

answer a social value question with weighting of 30%. This includes a link to 

Manchester City Council’s Social Value Toolkit and tenders are asked to 

demonstrate how their social value proposal would be both Manchester 

specific and project specific and targeted at hard-to-reach groups within local 

wards. 

  
In introducing the item, the Executive Member for Skills, Employment and Leisure 
highlighted the importance of social value and explained that the Council had a 
strong reputation for delivering social value. He stated that social value was an 
important lever in the delivery of jobs, training and work experience and the Council 
was committed to providing these opportunities for residents.  
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy explained that size, scale, building type and 
procurement impacted the delivery of social value between different projects. She 
highlighted how the Our Town Hall project was a once-in-a-multigenerational 
opportunity and social value was embedded as a core objective of this development 
from the outset. The scheme included ambitious social value objectives with built-in 
financial incentives for contractors to meet social value KPIs, and financial penalties 
for under-performance. She explained that a different approach was taken with The 
Factory scheme to work collaboratively with Laing O’Rourke and Manchester 
International Festival to deliver social value outcomes across the construction and 
creative and digital elements of the project  
  
Two apprentices – Abdul Tahir from Mace and Rhianna Austin from Laing O’Rourke 
– also attended the meeting to share their experiences of apprenticeships.   
  
Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included:  

  

•   Whether the Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) relating to new apprentices 
were targeted to Manchester residents; 

•   Why the number of new apprentices up to level 3 was under target;  

•   What attracted the guests in attendance to their apprenticeships; and  

•   How the Council communicated the importance of social value to other major 
employers in the city. 

  
In response to a member’s query regarding whether the target number of apprentices 
were to be Manchester residents, the Work and Skills Specialist explained that the 
overall target for number of apprentices working on the Our Town Hall project was 
150, with 100 of these at level 2 and 50 at level 4 and above. For The Factory 
project, the target was 25 new apprentices for the construction element. He 
confirmed that the apprenticeship scheme for the Our Town Hall project was solely 
for those living or studying in Manchester whilst The Factory scheme had a 

Page 156

Item 12



‘Manchester first’ approach due to the way it was procured through the North West 
Construction Hub.  
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy highlighted how the KPI for the number of new 
apprentices at level 4 and above was overachieving. She also stated that the Our 
Town Hall project remained underway, and this meant that delivery on the number of 
apprentices below level 4 would continue. It was recognised that there had been a 
national and local decline in apprenticeships, partly due to the Covid-19 pandemic, 
and work needed to be done to improve take-up. The Work and Skills Specialist also 
explained that the final phases of both the Our Town Hall and The Factory projects 
were difficult to derive social value from due to rising costs and them being less 
appealing to those searching for an apprenticeship.  Assurances were provided that 
the Council’s Social Value Manager working on the Our Town Hall project had sight 
of contracts for individual packages with LendLease and this provided the Council 
with influence and the ability to support social value within projects.  
  
In response to a question from the Chair regarding what attracted the apprentices to 
their roles, Abdul advised that a college teacher suggested the idea of an 
apprenticeship and he researched the idea through the Council’s website, attended 
National Apprenticeship Week hosted by GMCA and visited the project. He reiterated 
previous sentiments that the Our Town Hall project was a once-in-a-lifetime 
opportunity. Rhianna explained that she wanted a career switch to the built 
environment sector, and she received an email advert from the Kickstart scheme. 
She had previously undertaken work experience with Manchester International 
Festival, which provided a link with The Factory project.   
  
The Director of Inclusive Economy informed the committee that the Council continued 
to encourage other major employers in Manchester to embed social value into their 
work. An example of this was the Social Value Framework and Charter which had 
been devised and implemented for partners in North Manchester. This included a 
shared set of social value objectives to deliver across all North Manchester projects 
in the next 15 years. This was the first time a place-based approach had been taken 
and opportunities to do this in other areas of the city was anticipated. Other examples 
of how social value is encouraged among other major employers included work on 
the Real Living Wage and a well-established programme between universities and 
The Growth Company to provide opportunities for residents in the construction 
sector. An annual conference was also held to showcase social value achievements 
across the city. 
  
The committee thanked the apprentices for their attendance and sharing their 

experiences and wished them luck in their careers. 

  

Decision: 

  

That the report be noted.  

 
ESC/23/3 Update on Public Engagement for Manchester Active Travel  

Strategy and Investment Plan  
 

Page 157

Item 12



The committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Growth and 

Development) which provided an update on the public engagement activity carried 

out to inform the production of the Manchester Active Travel Strategy and Investment 

Plan (MATSIP). 

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

•   The MATSIP aims to create a city-wide, Manchester-specific strategy and 

network plan for active travel investment and a prioritised pipeline of measures 

to deliver across the city; 

•   Public and stakeholder engagement was carried out between July and 

December 2022, including online consultation, public engagement workshops 

and email responses;  

•   Key themes arising from the public consultation, including safety; maintenance 

of existing infrastructure; new infrastructure; and non-infrastructure measures;  

•   A draft network map; and  

•   Next steps for the development of the MATSIP.  

  

Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included:  

  

•   Welcoming progress on the Strategy and noting its importance;  

•   Whether the Strategy could be more specific about what inequalities it aimed 
to reduce, and how this would be achieved; 

•   The need for an active travel network to be well-linked with schools and other 
infrastructure; 

•   The impact of speeding and pavement parking as barriers to active travel;  

•   The need for an active travel network to be integrated with public transport; 

•   Bus regulation was needed to encourage walking and reduce car usage; 

•   The impact of building works on reducing capacity for active travel by 
obstructing pavements;  

•   How the Council worked with developers to incorporate active travel 
provisions into major schemes; 

•   The need to repair gullies to improve road safety and encourage walking;  

•   Whether previous consultations on active travel were incorporated into the 
development of the MATSIP;  

•   A need for places to permanently store bicycles, particularly for residents in 
apartments; and  

•   Noting a distinct focus on cycling in the MATSIP and expressing hopes for 
there to be a balance between different active travel modes in the final 
Strategy. 

  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport introduced the item and 
explained that the Council had taken a different approach to consulting on the draft 
MATSIP by holding face-to-face engagement sessions as opposed to relying on 
online forms of consultation. She expressed her thanks to the members, residents 
and community groups who responded to the consultation and stated that this helped 
to inform a coherent and robust Strategy that would help to take advantage of all 
funding opportunities.  

Page 158

Item 12



  
The Principal Policy Officer explained that the consultation was undertaken in 
partnership with Sweco over a 6-week period in autumn 2022. He stated that the 
consultation responses had provided useful key themes to highlight in the final 
Strategy, which would be considered in February by the Environment and Climate 
Change Scrutiny Committee and, if endorsed, the Executive.  
  
In response to a member’s question around inequalities, the Executive Member for 
Environment and Transport highlighted that the Strategy aimed to make all active 
travel modes accessible to everyone, which would help to alleviate financial and 
health inequalities. The Principal Policy Officer advised that the Strategy would be 
based around five objectives, including reducing citywide inequalities, and further 
detail on this would be included in the final report considered by the Environment and 
Climate Change Scrutiny Committee in February. He also highlighted the 
prioritisation tool for the Strategy which would utilise qualitative and quantitative data 
on multiple deprivation, health data, population and employment densities to assess 
where investment would be best targeted to reduce these inequalities.  
  
A need for the active travel network to be well-linked with schools was acknowledged 
and members were advised that Manchester was taking part in the Greater 
Manchester School Streets Pilot, which placed restrictions on motor traffic at drop off 
and pick up times at 7 schools in the city. This would encourage people to make the 
school run and other everyday journeys by bike or on foot and would enable children 
to breathe cleaner air on the school run. The Strategy would also reference the 
Council’s aspirations to expand the School Streets programme and it was hoped that 
national legislation may be enacted to enable the Council to enforce further 
restrictions on motor traffic around schools. The Principal Policy Officer suggested 
other ways of addressing parking issues around schools, such as traffic restraint 
measures and filtered neighbourhoods.  
  
In response to issues raised by the committee regarding pavement parking and 
accessibility and speeding, the Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
advised that the Council’s Highways Access Group which works with officers at the 
design stage on any new development to ensure that these issues are considered 
earlier in the development process.  
  
The Strategic Director (Growth and Development) noted a need to look at active 
travel in an integrated way and explained that the Strategy sat alongside a number of 
other strategies related to mobility but was being developed with consideration given 
to the city’s growth ambitions and key growth locations.  
  
It was noted that movement strategies, public transport amenities and active travel 
provisions were key in the planning of major developments, such as the Co-op Live 
Arena. The Strategic Director (Growth and Development) confirmed that this would 
be undertaken through the planning process but negotiations and discussions with 
developers would also be held. 
  
It was also confirmed that the Council worked with developers to minimise disruption 
from building works through sequencing and aligning programmes where possible.  
  

Page 159

Item 12



In response to the Chair’s query as to whether previous consultations on active travel 

were incorporated into the development of the MATSIP, the Principal Policy Officer 

advised that the technical work undertaken by Sweco included responses from 

previous consultations and that this would be clarified in the final report.  

  

In summarising the item, the Chair proposed recommending that the Committee’s 

comments be included in the full MATSIP report going to Environment and Climate 

Change Scrutiny Committee and the Executive in February, which was supported by 

the Committee. He also informed members that the Committee was invited to attend 

the Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee meeting when the final 

report would be considered. 

  

Decision: 

  

That the committee 

  

1.  notes the report; 

2.  notes that the full MATSIP document and a summary report will be brought to 

the February 2023 Environment and Climate Change Scrutiny Committee and, 

if agreed, Executive for adoption; and  

3.  recommends that the full MATSIP document reflects the Committee’s 

comments and includes definitions as to what is meant by “inequalities of 

access” as stated at section 3.4(d) of the report.  

 
ESC/23/4 Revised Policy for Residents Parking Schemes  
 
The committee considered a report of the Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) which 

outlined a revised policy around the implementation and operation of Residents 

Parking Zones (RPZ) within the city. 

  

Key points and themes within the report included: 

  

• Resident parking schemes are implemented to tackle the impact of commuter 

and other non-residential parking on residential areas; 

• The revised policy reflects the feedback and issues that have been gathered 

during the process of extending the Christie Resident Parking Scheme and in 

the design of other planned schemes; 

• Existing policy challenges identified by the review of the current scheme;  

• Proposed changes to the scheme, including provisions for digital visitor 

permits, introduction of transferable paper permits for those without digital 

access and physical temporary parking permits to all residents;  

• There are currently no plans to change the design of existing schemes that are 

already in operation; 

• The removal of the visitor permit charge and provision of scratch cards to each 

household within the current schemes is estimated to cost £75k per annum; 

• Positive feedback had been received on the proposed changes through drop-

in sessions with residents within the extended Christie RPS. 

  

Page 160

Item 12



Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 
  

• The success of resident parking schemes in reducing parking problems; 
• How the proposed changes to permits would help digitally excluded residents;  
• How secure the online system was, and whether any Penalty Charge Notices 

(PCN) issued during technical faults with the system would be rescinded;  
• Provisions for parking permits for carers;  
• Whether the estimated £75k cost of the proposed changes was funded from 

revenue;  
• How often enforcement and levels of non-compliance would be reviewed and 

what the process would be if additional enforcement resources were required; 
• The Council’s legal right to enforce parking policy on unadopted roads;  
• How many scratchcard permits each household would be permitted;  
• The Executive’s approach to the issues which make Resident Parking Zones 

necessary, and what can be done to reduce the need for these; and 

• What more could be done to deal with dangerous parking, such as near 
junctions. 

  
The Executive Member for Environment and Transport and the Strategic Director 
(Neighbourhoods) introduced the item and explained that the revised policy reflected 
feedback from the extended Christie resident parking scheme and other emerging 
schemes to ensure that the policy was fit for purpose.  
  
The Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) explained that the revised policy was to be 
agreed by the Executive, after which work would begin to identify how the scheme 
would operate in practice. Some detailed thinking around this had already been 
undertaken but the main design work would begin once the policy was agreed, with 
implementation scheduled for the next financial year.  
  
Ensuring that digitally excluded residents could access parking permits would be 
addressed during the practical design phase of the policy.  
  
The Parking Services Manager provided assurances that in the event of a resident or 
visitor with a permit within a resident parking scheme area receiving a PCN, this 
would be rescinded. She emphasised that resident parking schemes were in place 
for the benefit of residents and that the Council did not seek to penalise residents. 
This would remain the approach in the event of a system failure or technical issues.  
  
She also assured members that the new online permits portal was fit for purpose, 
quick to use and user-friendly.  
  
Confirmation was given that parking permits for carers would be provided in addition 
to the proposed two permits per household.  
  
In response to queries regarding scratchcard permits, members were advised that 
these would allow for 10 visits per scratchcard. Discussions were ongoing as to how 
many free scratchcards would be provided to each household, although it was 
suggested that this may be one per year. It was stated, however, that this may differ 
between schemes depending on their location in the city.  
  

Page 161

Item 12



The Parking Services Manager also explained with regards to parking enforcement 
that the Council had recently entered into a new contract beginning in April 2023 
which included a 20% increase in the number of Civil Enforcement Officers (CEO) for 
out-of-town areas. This would help to alleviate issues in some areas where resources 
had previously been stretched. Members were also informed that there would be a 
further uplift in the number of CEOs following the introduction of the resident parking 
scheme in Eastlands.  
  
Members were advised that the Council had a right to enforce parking regulations 
and restrictions on any highway which the public had access to, regardless of 
whether this was adopted by the local authority or not.  
  
In response to a member query around how to reduce the need for and reliance on 
resident parking schemes, the Executive Member for Environment and Transport 
highlighted the importance of connectivity within the city’s travel network and the 
need for reliable alternatives to car use. She acknowledged that a behaviour change 
was required with a focus on education around the Highway Code. There was also a 
need to ensure communication between departments such as Highways and 
Neighbourhoods so that parking schemes worked to the benefit of residents.  
  
The Head of Design Commissioning and PMO informed the committee that rule 243 
of the Highway Code, which stipulated where drivers cannot park, was incorporated 
into every resident parking scheme to mitigate dangerous parking particularly around 
junctions. Measures such as creating double yellow lines by junctions were 
sometimes included in the introduction of a parking scheme to address these issues.  
  
The Strategic Director (Neighbourhoods) explained that the estimated £75k cost for 
the removal of the visitor permit charge and provision of scratchcards related to the 
collective impact of introducing the proposed changes compared to revenue which 
may have been received from a ringfenced reserve for reinvestment into parking-
related services. It was felt that this cost was necessary to ensure a series of 
schemes and zones across the city which could operate effectively and respond to 
the needs of residents.  
  
He expressed that there was no intention to generate income from the proposed 
changes and that any income from PCNs was held for reinvestment.  
  

Decision: 

  

That the Economy Scrutiny Committee endorses the Revised Resident Parking 

Scheme Policy for approval by the Executive.  

 
ESC/23/5 Highways State of the City Annual Report 2021/22  
 
The committee considered a report of the Head of Network Management, which 

provided an update on the substantial works completed and progress achieved by 

the Highways service and provided an overview of methods of communication to 

ensure ongoing engagement with residents and members, as well as the 

performance of the service during the financial year 2021/22. 

  

Page 162

Item 12



The key points and themes within the report included: 

  

•   Manchester’s highway network includes over 1,350 km of road length, 2,600 

km of footway length and over 350 bridges and structures and the total 

highway asset has an indicative gross replacement value of over £3 billion, 

making it the Council’s most valuable asset; 

•   Achievements for 2021/22, including the successful delivery of the 5-year 

capital investment programme, receiving £37.2m in funding from the Mayor’s 

Challenge Fund to improve walking and cycling facilities, embedding social 

value and sustainability within procurement and establishing the Highways 

Access Group;  

•   Delivery of planned maintenance, inspections and repairs, street works, winter 

services, major projects and road safety; 

•   The Council’s highway infrastructure assets are currently being maintained in 

a steady state, with improvements in several areas following the 5-year 

investment programme. Service delivery performance has generally been 

maintained with improvements in some areas and decreases in other areas. 

  

Key points and queries that arose from the committee’s discussions included: 

  

•   How many service requests had been opened in the past 12 months and 

whether there was a backlog of outstanding requests; 

•   The ability for Highways Inspectors and Operatives to resolve any unreported 

issues in the same visit to reduce repeated call-outs;  

•   Noting that speed is a major factor in road collisions; 

•   Expressing disappointment in the lack of a road safety budget due to 

government cuts;  

•   Noting that the Council is below the National Highways and Transport (NHT) 

average satisfaction score for road safety, and expressing hope that this could 

be improved in the future;  

•   What other measures were being taken to promote social value within the 

Highways service; 

•   Noting that there were no capital funds earmarked for Highways in 2023/24;  

•   The prioritisation scheme for gully repairs and the timescales around this; and 

•   Whether there would be provision for gullies to be repaired or replaced outside 

of the cyclical programme in 2023/24. 

  

The Executive Member for Environment and Transport opened discussions on the 

item and advised committee members that they could raise any ward-specific issues 

with her directly.  

  

The Head of Network Management highlighted that the report related to 2021/22 and 

that reports were provided annually. He also welcomed any feedback around specific 

issues and areas to be included in future reports. 

  

Page 163

Item 12



In response to a question from the Chair around the amount of service requests, the 

Head of Network Management explained that the number of requests were available 

by ward area. He stated that ward dashboards would be reimplemented so that 

members had sight of all outstanding and completed service requests. A new asset 

management system had also been procured which would link to the Council’s 

Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system to provide real-time information 

as to the progress of service requests.  

  

The Head of Network Management explained that Highways Inspectors could log 

service requests whilst carrying out their roles across the city. He stated that repairs 

contractors were provided with up-to-date information before jobs to ensure all 

outstanding repairs can be undertaken at the same time, where possible. He also 

informed members that the Council was taking a “find and fix” approach to new 

contracts so that repairs can be undertaken as quickly as possible.  

  

Members were informed that the Highways service undertook a lot of work on road 

safety despite having no formal budget. Road safety was included within all highways 

improvement schemes and £2 million of funding had been received for road safety 

schemes in 2021/22. It was also stated that the Council was developing a pilot 

scheme to reduce all 40 and 50 miles-per-hour speed limits in Manchester to 30 

miles-per-hour speed limits and the Council would be the first in the country to have 

no speed limits above 30mph if the scheme was successful. The Head of Network 

Management also highlighted how the Council worked to ensure a 20 mph speed 

limit on any new roads developed and that the Mayor of Greater Manchester had 

recently declared reduced speed limits as a priority and it was hoped that this may 

lead to funding being available in the future.  

  

In response to a query around social and environmental value, the Head of Network 

Management stated that the service was always looking for different ways to do 

things which could be beneficial to carbon reduction and recycling. The Head of 

Design Commissioning and PMO expanded on this and explained that two specialists 

had been recruited with one officer responsible for social value and the Highways 

Access Group and the other responsible for environmental sustainability. There was 

an extensive list of social value achievements, including inclusive recruitment; 

donations in kind; tree-planting by developers; and promotional material for Road 

Safety Week in 2022 which had been funded by developers. The Head of Design 

Commissioning and PMO also explained that the Highways Access Group was 

formed in late 2021 and won the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Initiative of 

the Year Award at the Chartered Institution of Highways and Transportation (CIHT) 

industry awards in November 2022. The Group met monthly and included 

representatives from 10 external organisations.  

  

In response to a query from the Chair regarding gullies, the Head of Network 

Management explained that there were two programmes of work – cyclical gully 

cleansing and the Highways Gully Improvement Programme. Records of broken and 

slow gullies were maintained, and the cyclical programme informed how these were 

running and whether additional works were needed. The current priority for gully 

Page 164

Item 12



repairs were those on the key route and community networks but members were 

assured that this would not prevent other urgent repairs to gullies not on these 

networks.  

  

In summarising the discussion, the Chair suggested that a report on road safety be 

considered at a meeting in the new municipal year which the committee supported.   

  

Decision: 

  

That  

  

1.    the report be noted; and  
2.    the Committee requests that a report on road safety in Manchester be 

provided to a meeting in the new municipal year.   

 
ESC/23/6 Overview Report  
 
The committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which provided details of key decisions within the committee’s remit and its work 
programme. 
  
Decision: 
  
That the report be noted.  
 
 
 

Page 165

Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

Audit Committee  
 
Minutes of the meeting held on 29 November 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Lanchbury - In the Chair 
Councillors Curley and Simcock 
Independent Co-opted member: Dr S Downs 
Independent Co-opted member: Dr D Barker 
 
Apologies: 
Councillor Russell 
 
Also Present: 
Councillor Akbar, Executive Member for Finance and Resources 
Councillor Stanton, Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources. 
Karen Murray, Mazars (External Auditor) 
Suresh Patel, Mazars (External Auditor) 
 
AC/22/45 Minutes  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting were submitted for consideration as a correct 
record. 
 
Karen Murray (Mazars, External Auditors) asked the Committee to agree the 
following amendments: 
 
AC/22/39  – bullet point 3 be revised to refer to the 2021/22 budget instead of 

2022/23. 
 
AC/22/40  – the commencement of Mazars external audit work was again in 

relation to 2021/22 budget and not 2022/23. Clarification that the 
agreed timeline for completion had been for the end of January 2023 
was also put forward. 

 
Those amendments were accepted. 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 18 October 2022 as a correct record, 
subject to the amendments above. 
 
AC/22/46 External Audit update 
 
The Committee received a report of the External Auditors ( Mazars) which provided 
an update on progress on the completion of external audit work for the financial years 
2020/21 and 2021/22. The Committee welcomed Karen Murray (Mazars) who 
introduced the report and Suresh Patel who members were informed would lead on 
completion of 2021/22 audit work.  
 

Page 167

Item 13



 

 
 

The report provided the current position on: 
 

• 2020/21 Financial Statements Work  

• 2021/22 Financial Statements Work  

• 2021/22 Value for Money Arrangements work; and 

• An overview of national publications relevant to the Local Government audit 
function, one of which was with specific reference to Local Government Audit 
Committee function and remit. 

 
With regard the list of national publications, a member referred to statistics on the 
number of Local Authorities that invest in corporate property outside of area. The 
Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer gave assurance that such investments 
did not align with the Council’s Capital Strategy principles which require that 
corporate property investments must fall inside the Local Authority area (or in respect 
of energy investments, its economic area) or must not be made purely for yield.  
 
In respect of recently published Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountability (CIPFA) guidance on Audit Committee function and remit (Audit 
Committee: Practical Guidance For Local Authorities And Police (2022 edition), the 
Head of Audit and Risk Management confirmed that a short update would be 
provided at the next meeting with regard to future implications on roles and 
responsibilities.  
 
The Committee was invited to note that reference in the report to the external audit of 
2020/2021 financial year related to Manchester Airport Group accounts and not the 
Council’s 2020/21 accounts. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the update. 
 
AC/22/46  Letters from those charged with Governance 
 
The Committee received a report for information from the Deputy Chief Executive 
and City Treasurer which presented the main points of assurance issued to the 
External Auditor from the Audit Committee Chair and the Deputy Chief Executive and 
City Treasurer, in connection with the audit of the 2021/22 accounts. 
 
A member noted that the responses did not make reference to the topic of potential 
fraud risk in schools. The Head of Audit and Risk Management explained that scope 
for potential fraud risk to an extent that it could impact on financial statements work 
was unlikely to be sufficient to warrant raising with external auditor colleagues as a 
significantly material concern. 
 
Having duly considered the responses provided on financial accounting 
arrangements, the risks of fraud and compliance with laws and regulations, the 
Committee noted the report. 
 
  

Page 168

Item 13



 

 
 

Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/22/47 Treasury Management Interim Update 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which set out treasury management activities of the Council during the first six 
months of 2022/23.  
 
The report provided information on: 
 

• The Council’s portfolio position as at 30th September 2022 

• A review of economic conditions 2022-23 to date 

• An overview of Treasury borrowing in 2022-23 to date, with specific reference 
to Public Works Loan Board (PWLB), temporary borrowing and Salix 
borrowing 

• Compliance with Prudential Indicators and Treasury Limits 

• Investment Strategy for 2022-23 to date 

• Temporary Borrowing and Investment for 2022-23 to date 

• Implications of Rising Interest Rates; and 

• Concluding comments 
 
The Commercial Finance Lead responded to questions from members about the 
temporary borrowing portfolio, lender option borrower option (LOBO) loans, the 
implications of rising interest rates including international considerations, the nuances 
of local government cashflow and compliance with treasury limits. 
 
The Executive Member for Finance and Resources thanked officers for the 
comprehensive report with particular reference to their important role in minimising 
borrowing costs and maximising the Council’s investment returns in the context of 
financial volatility and uncertainty. 
 
The Committee noted report. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
AC/22/48  Risk Review: Governance and Management of Complaints 
 
The Committee received a report of the Assistant Chief Executive and the City 
Solicitor which presented the complaints, enquiries and information request 
dashboard. The dashboard set out the Council’s annual performance for 2021/22 in 
the management of corporate and social care complaints, Councillor and MP 
enquiries, as well as information requests. 
 
Key themes of the report were: 
 

• An overview of the complaints and enquiries dashboard  

Page 169

Item 13



 

 
 

• Corporate Complaints: 77% of Stage one complaints. responded to within ten 
working days, 16% of complaints escalated to Stage two., 60%of stage two 
complaints responded to within ten working days, 28% of Stage one and two 
complaints upheld. 

• Councillor and MP enquiries: 76% of enquiries responded to within ten 
working days 

• Social Care Complaints: 59% of social care complaints handled within 
timescale, 27% of social care decisions upheld 

• Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman (LGSCO) Enquiries: There 
had been an increase in the number of Local Government and Social Care 
Ombudsman enquiries, and performance had improved in that the average 
number of days taken to respond had fallen to 16 in comparison with the 
previous year’s 2, 24% of Local Government and Social Care Ombudsman 
decisions were upheld 

• Praise: there had been an increase in the number of instances of praise (409) 
in comparison with the previous year (383) 

• Learning from complaints: including Critical Learning and Learning Action 
Plans 

• Freedom of Information and GDPR requests: 84% of GDPR requests 
responded to within relevant statutory timescale, 79% of Freedom of 
Information Act requests responded to within relevant statutory timescale  

 
The Committee welcomed the comprehensive report and noted the increase in 
instances of praises for Council Services. A discussion followed on the comparative 
increase in complaints with regard to the previous year’s data. The impact of 
changed expectations about service delivery in the post-pandemic environment, 
including a greater reliance on remote-working and an associated trend towards 
uptake of digital channels for residents, businesses and service users were cited 
amongst possible influencing factors.  
 
A member commented on the significant increase in complaints to Children’s 
Services and Education which had arisen following the implementation of a new 
system being used for school place admissions. The Deputy Chief Executive and 
City Treasurer spoke about the value in learning from complaints and emphasised 
the significance of the tone of engagement taken with the city’s residents and the 
shift to a listening culture. 
 
Following a question about the number of logged Councillor enquiries referenced in 
the report and how that compared with the number of councillor-led requests for 
service / information, the Assistant Chief Executive agreed to undertake a piece of 
work with services to improve how Councillor enquiries are recorded and monitored, 
including the development of refreshed guidance.  
 
The Deputy Executive Member for Finance and Resources spoke about plans to 
broaden digital access to Council services to ensure inclusivity of all of the city’s 
residents, businesses and other users of Council services and the impact of an 
increased awareness about legislative rights under for example, the General Data 
Protection Regulation and Freedom of Information Acts. 
 
In terms of closing comments, the Executive Member for Finance and Resources 

Page 170

Item 13



 

 
 

acknowledged the importance of a robust, positive and responsive complaints 
system which supports the organisation in identifying weaknesses in its systems or 
policies in seeking to address them. He indicated that the overall increase was 
attributable to a shift towards increased remote-working practices which, in the 
context of a natural tendency to notice when things go wrong as opposed to when 
they work well and an ongoing commitment to widen digital access, should be 
encouraged and embraced as opportunities for continuous and ongoing 
improvement. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the update. 
 
2. To note that the Assistant Chief Executive will undertake a piece of work with 

services to improve how Councillor enquiries are recorded and monitored, 
including the development of refreshed guidance.  
 

AC/22/49  Code of Corporate Governance 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which presented the revised draft of the Council’s Code of Corporate Governance 
(the Code). The Code had been updated to align with published guidance and was 
attached as an appendix with a proposal that the Code should instead be a stand-
alone document, instead of an aspect of the Council’s Constitution to create greater 
flexibility in terms of timings of updates 
 
The Committee was invited to note that revised draft had been considered at a recent 
meeting of the Council’s Standards Committee, which made no amendments.  
 
The Committee was invited to consider the Code and to recommend to the Council 
that responsibility for approval of the Code of Corporate Governance is delegated to 
the Audit Committee, with Standards Committee members invited to comment. Next 
steps were described as an assessment of the Council’s compliance with the Code to 
be completed within the Annual Governance Statement to be considered by both 
committees in the summer of 2023. 
 
The Committee agreed the recommendations. 
 
Decision 
 
1. To note the report 
 
2. To recommend to the Council that responsibility for approval of the Code of 

Corporate Governance is delegated to the Audit Committee and in doing so that 
Council: 

 
• Agrees changes to the delegations to the Audit Committee set out in the 

Council's Constitution so that approval of the Code of Corporate Governance 
is the responsibility of Audit Committee.  

• Agrees to delete the reference to the Code of Corporate Governance from the 

Page 171

Item 13



 

 
 

Council's Policy Framework at Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution; and  
• Removes Section G of Part 6 ("Manchester City Council - Code of Corporate 

Governance") from the Council's Constitution. 
 
AC/22/50 Risk Management Strategy and Corporate Risk Register 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which discussed the Council’s corporate governance and risk management 
arrangements, the control environment and associated anti-fraud and anti-corruption 
arrangements. It included a copy of the latest refresh of the Corporate Risk Register 
and an overview of the approach being taken to respond to inflationary finance risks, 
at the committee’s earlier request. 
 
The Committee was invited to consider the assurance provided in the report, which 
made specific reference to: 
 

• The context of recent updates to the Corporate Risk Register, influenced by a 
fundamental rewrite of the risks and the description of response actions which 
itself had arisen due to a re-evaluation of the degree those risks interact. 

• A summary of risks agreed at the Senior Management meeting held in 
September 2022 (the Corporate Risk Register (CRR) was appended to the 
report) 

• A discussion about Inflationary risk 
 
In response to a question about climate change targets, the Deputy Chief Executive 
and City Treasurer explained the reasons behind the risk being split and the 
Council’s approach to deliver high return / low risk interventions as part of the agreed 
Action Plan. With regard to actions to meet cross city targets, she referred to the 
Climate Change Partnership Framework which sets out the scale of action required 
and those that sit within the agency of the Council or local partners. She added that 
the Council would continue to seek solutions use its influence in terms of lobbying 
and pressure regarding policy change requirements that sit within the agency of 
central government. 
 
There was a discussion about risk management of a further global pandemic. The 
Head of Audit and Risk Management referred to the involvement of the Local 
Resilience Forum as well as a Greater Manchester and city-wide response to 
business continuity, with appropriate planning around response. However those risks 
would be cross-referenced.  
 
A member noted the risk referred to in relation to scale and type of housing in the city 
and requested further information and assurance on how those risks are being 
managed. The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer referred to pressures on 
the availability of temporary accommodation in the city some if which directly affected 
the Council’s ability to develop services associated with homelessness. She however 
asked the Committee to note that aspects of provision did not sit wholly with the 
Council which added to a degree of complexity around the matter. 
 
With regard to the Cost of Living Crisis, the Chair commented that implications 
associated with Risks 6 and 7 in the report are given appropriate focus assessed in 

Page 172

Item 13



 

 
 

preparation for the next review of the Register. The Deputy Chief Executive advised 
that the review would reflect the impact on service delivery implications as well as the 
impacts residents (a number of whom were employees) and mitigations associated 
with the Anti-Poverty Workforce Strategies that would be in place. 
 
The Chair thanked officers for the helpful and informative report and requested that 
should risks in relation to the implications of the Cost of Living Crisis significantly 
increase, a further update to the Audit Committee should be brought for members’ 
views. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report and in doing so, request that should risks in relation to the 
implications of the Cost of Living Crisis significantly increase, a further update shall 
be brought to the Committee. 
 
AC/22/51 Register of Significant Partnerships 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
which provided a six-monthly update on the partnerships issued a ‘reasonable’ or 
‘limited’ rating in terms of governance arrangements. A copy of the Register in full 
was appended to the report. 
 
An overview of further steps that had been agreed to strengthen and enhance 
governance practices was also included. These incorporated amendments to the way 
relevant information was captured, the timeline for the production of the register as 
well as proposals to build a lessons learnt exercise into the annual process to aid 
continuous improvement. 
 
The Committee was invited to note that a further six entities had been identified for 
inclusion on the  Register. The next annual update to Committee is scheduled for 
June 2023. 
 
In response to a comment about recent events under the remit of the Greater 
Manchester Mental Health Trust (GMMHT), the Head of Programme Management 
Office: Commercial Governance advised that the partnership’s performance would be 
reviewed as part of the next cycle. The Deputy Chief Executive and City Treasurer 
gave assurance that the Council was working closely with GMMHT and that an 
update outlining that assurance would be reflected in the next update. 
 
The Committee was also invited to note the Acting Chief Executive of One 
Education’s term of office had been further extended whilst further arrangements 
were being implemented to improve governance and strategy were being developed 
and formalised. 
 
In response to a question from the chair about board vacancies for Manchester 
Working Limited, the Head of Programme Management Office: Commercial 
Governance advised that those vacancies were a package of directorships under 
review given the impending departure of the Director of Commercial Operations from 
the Neighbourhoods Directorate. 

Page 173

Item 13



 

 
 

AC/22/52 Work Programme and Recommendations Monitor 
 
The Committee considered a report of the Governance and Scrutiny Support Unit 
which set out its future Work Programme for the forthcoming municipal year. 
 
Members discussed proposals for the Annual Training Event and noted the 
information provided in Sections 2 in respect of recent comments in relation to the 
Christie Car Parking Scheme. 
 
Decision 
 
To agree the Committee’s Work programme as set out in the report.  
 
 

Page 174

Item 13



 

 

Licensing Committee 
 

Minutes of the meeting held on Monday, 5 December 2022 
 
Present: Councillor Grimshaw – in the Chair 
 
Councillors:  Connolly, Flanagan, Connolly, Hassan, Hilal, Jeavons, Judge, Reid 
and Riasat 
 
Apologies: Councillor Evans, Hewitson and Hughes 
 
LHP/22/03 Minutes  
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 7 March 2022 as a correct record. 
 
LHP/22/04 Licensing Update 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing, which provided an update on the following licensing functions:  
 

• An update on the Government’s response to the Licensing Act (2003): post-
legislative scrutiny  

• An update on Martyn’s Law, Manchester’s Action Counters Terrorism (ACT) 
Pilot and the delivery of training associated with the pilot. 

• The Manchester Arena Inquiry 

• An update on the Licensing Policy Review 

• Gambling update including statistics at Greater Manchester level on the 
number of residents experiencing the harmful effects of gambling. 

 
The Chair welcomed the report, with particular reference to commend officers for the 
work undertaken with all stakeholders to deliver training for operators and staff in 
preparation for the implementation of Martyn’s Law. 
 
There was a discussion about the accuracy of the reported number of residents 
across the Greater Manchester region who were experiencing the harmful effects of 
gambling.  A member commented that those figures appeared be low given the size 
of the geographical area and established intelligence about associated levels of 
deprivation. It emerged that those figures were captured through self-reporting 
mechanisms. Scope that those figures could be exacerbated in the current Cost of 
Living Crisis was also highlighted. The Director of Planning, Building Control and 
Licensing agreed to circulate a note to members of the Committee outlining the 
interventions/support to businesses and residents with regard to the harmful effects 
of gambling that the Council currently undertakes.  
 
There was a discussion about the development of guidance for premises to enable 
them to support the needs of people with a disability (including those with hidden 
disabilities) who experience difficulties arising directly or indirectly from licensed 
premises’ activity. A member commented that not all types of disability would be 

Page 175

Item 13



 

 

captured by a reliance on building regulations legislation only. The Director of 
Planning, Building Control and Licensing referred to a wholesale review and refresh 
of the Council’s current guidance to raise awareness about the reasonable steps 
required to effectively manage issues and challenges associated with disability that 
may arise. An interim update would be submitted to a future meeting of the 
Committee. A member suggested that this particular piece of work was done in 
consultation with disability groups and the Council’s Lead Member for Disability. 
 
Decision 
 
To note the report. 
 
LHP/22/05 Delegation of Licensing Authority Functions. 
 
In line with its statutory responsibilities, the Committee considered a report of the City 
Solicitor in which it was invited to agree non-executive licensing authority delegations 
as described in Sections C and F of Part 3 of the Council’s revised Constitution 
(appended to the report). 
 
The changes were predominantly in relation to the Constitution’s Scheme of 
Delegation and reflected the transfer of delegated responsibility for the discharge of 
particular non-executive functions from the Director of Neighbourhoods to Director of 
Planning, Building Control and Licensing, recent amendments to the Local Authorities 
(Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations (2000) as well as the 
correction of a small number of typographical errors from the previous version. 
 
The Director of Planning, Building Control and Licensing, gave assurance that the 
changes did not represent an extension of officer’s delegations nor should be seen 
as a dilution of powers within the committee’s gift. She described the changes as a 
simplification and smoothing of processes for officers in terms of reporting 
arrangements. 
 
Decision  
 
To approve the delegation of non-executive functions as set out in the revised 
Sections C and F of Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution (as referenced in the report 
submitted). 

Page 176

Item 13



Planning and Highways Committee 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2022 
 
Present: 
Councillor Curley – in the Chair 
Councillors Shaukat Ali, Andrews, Davies, Flanagan, Hewitson, Kamal, Leech, 
Lovecy, Lyons and Riasat  
 
Apologies: Baker-Smith, Y Dar and Stogia 
 
 
PH/22/66 Supplementary Information on Applications Being Considered  
 
A copy of the late representations received had been circulated in advance of the 
meeting regarding application 135281/FO/2022, 134603/FO/2022 and 
134971/FO/2022. 
  
Decision 

  
To receive and note the late representations. 
 
 
PH/22/67  Minutes 
 
Decision 
 
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 17 November 2022 as a correct 
record. 
 
 
PH/22/68 Application 135281/FO/2022 - 32 Montcliffe Crescent, Manchester, 

M16 8GR - Whalley Range Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that presented an application that sought the retention of a 3-bedroom 
single storey dwelling house (Class C3) in the rear garden of a two storey 
dwellinghouse known as 32 Montcliffe Crescent in the Whalley Range Ward.  
 
This application relates to the rear garden of a modern two storey detached house 
within the Whalley Range ward. The property has a single storey side extension and 
gardens to the front and rear. There is a drive at the front of the property and a 
garage in the rear garden which has been demolished and replaced with a single 
storey 3-bedroom dwellinghouse that is the subject of this application. The original 
dwellinghouse fronts a footpath linking Montcliffe Crescent to Stoneyfield Close. 
Montcliffe Crescent runs along the eastern side of the site where access is provided 
by a double metal gate to the single storey dwellinghouse in the rear garden.  
 
The planning officer did not add anything by way of a statement. 

Page 177

Item 13



No objector to the application attended or made any representations. 
 
The applicant’s agent for the application addressed the Committee and stated the 
family’s reasons for retaining the building at 32 Montcliffe Crescent, stating that the 
dwelling had been built for the family’s disabled daughter (a single mother) and her 3 
children. The children were attending a school in the area, and it was hoped that the 
family would not have to be re-housed and need to find other school places as a 
result. The family’s needs would not easily be met outside of Whalley Range. The 
agent stated that these are challenging times and there would be a long waiting list 
for the family to await a housing solution in Manchester. The agent wished for the 
Planning Committee to support this family and overturn the officer’s recommendation 
of Refuse for the application. 
 
The planning officer stated that this was decision was made all the more difficult in 
that the premises was currently occupied but added that there had been 2 previous 
applications for planning permission at this site that had been withdrawn due to 
having not been supported by the Planning team at the city council. Any public 
benefits of the scheme would be outweighed by the harm caused. Other extensions 
in this location had been granted but these differed in that they formed part of the 
main dwelling/garden and were not a separate dwelling with own fencing and sub-
standard garden, parking and mentioned that this site, having already been built, 
was cramped and out of character for the area. The planning officer requested the 
Committee to refuse the application. 
 
Councillor Leech asked how long the dwelling had been occupied. 
 
The planning officer did not know but stated that it was not occupied prior to the 
previous, withdrawn applications. 
 
Councillor Leech asked if the applicants were aware that the previous applications 
were deemed unsuitable by the Planning team. 
 
The planning officer stated that they would have been made aware of this. 
 
Councillor Lovecy felt some sympathy with the family and asked about dimensions of 
the building and if they met expected standards. 
 
The planning officer confirmed that the overall floorspace of the dwelling was 
deemed below standards expected for a three bedroomed building for four 
occupants. 
 
Councillor Andrews referred to the report whereby it stated that previous applications 
would not have been granted and asked what timescale would be given for the 
family to relocate if the Committee agreed with the officer’s recommendation of 
Refusal for this application. 
 
The planning officer stated that there would be a period of negotiation to agree an 
appropriate timescale to allow the family to relocate. Ideally, there would be no need 
to issue an enforcement, but the planning officer added that there would still be 
reasonable negotiations if notice was served on the occupants.  

Page 178

Item 13



Councillor Davies referred to the report and a table which showed the planning 
history, noting that withdrawals of previous applications had been implemented prior 
to the building work beginning. Councillor Davies enquired about the legal aspect of 
removing the family, any conditions attached in this regard and the following 
phrasing in the Late Reps report “Compliance with the Equality Duty involves 
consciously thinking about the aims of the Equality Duty as part of the process of 
decision-making.” 
 
The Director of Planning stated that there would be regard paid to the Equality Act, 
that there was an understanding of the family having a disabled member and added 
that there was no prescribed way of dealing with “consciously thinking about the 
aims of the Equality Duty.” 
 
Councillor Davies asked what would happen if the Committee support the officer’s 
recommendation to refuse this application and whether the decision to remove the 
family is not legally a part of the Committee’s decision. 
 
The Director of Planning stated that all factors have been considered in making the 
recommendation to the Committee and it is expected that the Committee take all 
factors into account in their decision making. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Refuse for the 
application and requested that any enforcement action taken would be over an 
appropriate period of time, taking account of the circumstances of the occupants at 
the property. 
 
Councillor Lovecy seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 

 
The Committee resolved to refuse the application for the reasons detailed in the 
reports submitted. 
 
 
PH/22/69 Application 134603/FO/2022 - Pellowe House, Francis Road, 

Manchester, M20 9XP - Withington Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that presented an application for the erection of a three-storey building 
to provide 24 apartments following demolition of existing buildings including creation 
of a new vehicular access from Francis Road, parking provision, landscaping and 
associated works. 
 
The application site currently contains a former industrial building that previously 
contained a commercial laundry with areas of hardstanding to the front and rear 
used for vehicle parking associated with the use. The building on the application site 
is vacant. 
 
The planning officer did not add anything by way of a statement. 
 

Page 179

Item 13



No objector to the application attended or made any representations. 
 
The application’s agent attended but did not wish to add anything to the printed 
report as no objector had attended to make representations. 
 
Councillor Lyons enquired whether the scheme was affordable or social and also 
rent and/or shared ownership. 
 
The planning officer stated that the scheme was either for affordable or social rented 
accommodation which will be decided through discharging a condition of planning 
permission for 100% rented product, managed by the registered provider. 
 
Councillor Leech stated that he knew this area fairly well and questioned the lack of 
100% off-street parking for the scheme, with parking being a problem in this location. 
Councillor Leech was not convinced that the scheme would not add to additional car 
journeys or further parking issues in this area, noting that Christies Hospital 
extended parking scheme areas which has experienced problems. He noted that 
there were more electric vehicle charging points to come but asked what would 
happen for cars with no parking space for this development. Previous planning 
applications for this site had been deemed not sustainable at 16 places for 16 
dwellings and yet this scheme had been deemed suitable at 62% parking. Councillor 
Leech concluded by stating that affordable rented property was welcome, but should 
the Committee approve them if the parking was not sustainable. 
 
The planning officer stated that there was a balance to be struck with what exists at 
the site already. Currently there was a factory building with limited parking on site 
whereas this was a scheme with a travel plan including public transport links and 
100% cycle parking for all dwellings, and therefore, fully sustainable. The planning 
officer asked the Committee to consider the merits of this application and noted the 4 
electric vehicle charging points with more to follow. Additionally, the scheme was 
worthy of approval on its own merits, regardless of its offer of 100% affordable 
rented property. 
 
Councillor Leech noted the report stating the need for people to downsize who are 
under-occupying their properties. Councillor Leech felt that the majority of tenants for 
these dwelling places would be older people who would be less likely to cycle, 
adding that there was a need for larger homes in the area, contrary to the comments 
in the report. 
 
The planning officer referred to his previous statement with nothing further to add. 
 
Councillor Flanagan stated that he would not put car parking before affordable 
housing, was in agreement of turning a run-down warehouse into affordable rented 
accommodation and moved the officer’s recommendation of Approve for the 
application. 
 
Councillor Davies seconded the proposal, adding that the city has seen a reduction 
in car ownership and that this should be further encouraged, and that down-sizing 
would free up larger family homes whilst allowing single occupants to have a more 
affordable solution. 

Page 180

Item 13



Councillor Lyons added that car ownership in the city was at 44% and added that 
there was a need to move with the technology of the times. 
 
Decision 

 
The Committee resolved to agree the application for the reasons detailed in the 
reports submitted. 
 
 
PH/22/70 Application 134971/FO/2022 - 67 Deansgate, Manchester, M3 2BW 

- Deansgate Ward 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Director of Planning, Building Control 
and Licensing that presented an application for the use of a ground floor property on 
Deansgate in Manchester City Centre as an Adult Gaming Centre. 
 
It is proposed to change the use of the ground floor to an adult gaming centre (Sui 
Generis), with slot machines for gambling. This would occupy the ground floor with 
the upper floor and basement used for storage and staff facilities. The premises 
would be open to the public and in use 24 hours a day, seven days a week.   
 
This site is a three-storey building with frontages onto Deansgate and Barton 
Square. The building adjoins the Grade II* Listed Barton Arcade and is in St Ann’s 
Square Conservation Area and adjacent to the Parsonage Gardens Conservation 
Area.  
 
The building is not listed but is a non-designated heritage asset with decorative 
stone elevations and modern shopfronts. 
 
The planning officer noted the information in the late representations report 
regarding the marketing that was taken to let out the property and explained why this 
was not successful. The applicant stated that vacancy rates had risen on Deansgate 
and that no other offers came forward for the property during the advertising period. 
The planning officer confirmed that the officer’s recommendation was still to refuse 
the application. 
 
No objector to the application attended or made any representations. 
 
The applicant’s agent for the application addressed the Committee and stated that 
there were no external alterations and that the refusal reason given was that the 
scheme was not compatible with Deansgate. Leisure uses in this area were 
permitted by the city council and the NPPF specifies that this style of property is a 
leisure-based premises, appropriate for town centres. The agent expressed that it 
would surely be better to have this development and the creation of 12 jobs, rather 
than a derelict shop front. He noted that the client had provided a bespoke plan and 
that the use of digital displays would add interest to the frontage. Another gambling 
premises in this location with digital displays in the windows had their planning 
applications approved and the agent noted that a refusal reason was regarding the 
scheme providing insufficient natural surveillance and would be harmful to the 
vitality, viability and character of the area, yet there had been no objections from the 

Page 181

Item 13



environmental agency or GMP, who had encouraged a 24-hour establishment. 
Having a premises open for 24 hours a day would be good for the area in terms of 
safety, environment and security. Adult Gaming Centres are notable for generating 
increased footfall in town centres, information in which had been submitted to the city 
council and possibly overlooked. The agent concluded by stating that the client 
would not have chosen this area if they did not think it suitable and requested that 
the Committee overturn the officer’s recommendation to refuse the application. 
 
The planning officer stated that all the reasons for the officer’s recommendation to 
refuse were set out on page 86 of the printed report. 
 
Councillor Davies stated that there were restrictions on traffic in this location which 
can lead to it feeling less safe for pedestrians with a reduced traffic flow. She noted 2 
points, that units in this area had been empty and also had traffic controls in place 
prior to the pandemic. It had been raised that this had impacted on businesses in this 
location and Councillor Davies felt that it was not currently a good place for 
businesses. Councillor Davies supported the planning officer’s recommendation to 
refuse this application but asked, if approved, what would the opening hours be and 
would security be on site? 
 
The planning officer stated that the Committee could restrict the hours of operation if 
they approved the application. 
 
Councillor Leech noted the agent’s comments on other local gambling 
establishments and asked if the refusal reasons were robust enough for the 
Committee to agree without an appeal being subsequently lodged. 
 
The planning officer expressed that the refusal reasons were robust and defendable. 
 
Councillor Leech thanked the planning officer for their assurance. 
 
Councillor Andrews moved the officer’s recommendation of Refuse for the 
application, noting that the scheme was contrary to the policies contained in the 
report. 
 
Councillor Davies seconded the proposal. 
 
Decision 

 
The Committee resolved to refuse the application for the reasons detailed in the 
reports submitted. 
 

Page 182

Item 13


	Agenda
	Meeting of the Council – Wednesday, 1st February, 2023

	4 Minutes
	1.	Adopt, subject to recommendations 3 and 4 below, the revised Sections of the Constitution of the Council, namely:
	a)	Part 1
	b)	Part 2
	c)	Part 3: Sections A, B, C and F
	d)	Part 4: Sections A, B, E and F
	e)	Part 5: Sections B, D (to be redesignated as C) and E (to be redesignated as D) and in doing so delete the former Section C
	f)	Part 6: Sections D and F
	g)	Part 7
	h)	Part 8

	10 Proceedings of the Executive
	11 Questions to Executive Members and Others under Procedural Rule 23
	12 Scrutiny Committees
	13 Proceedings of Committees

